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Financial Summary

MBERE

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t-ALEE
2014 2015* 2016 2017 2018
—T—mE —T-hafr —T-RFE —T—tF ZB-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET FET FET FET
Revenue WA 509,250 145,944 163,856 130,625 178,885
Profit/(Loss) for the year & AFIHEA AME(L
attributable to the FERF(ER)
owners of the parent (174,565) (56,480) (68,015) 213,675 43,450
At 31 December
R+=—H=+—H
2014 2015* 2016 2017 2018
—E-F —T-HF* —T-RF —E—+tF ZB-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FAT FHET FHET
Assets and liabilities EENEE
Total assets BEE 2,961,339 3,226,035 3,298,589 3,890,963 3,752,718
Total liabilities HwmaE (1,028,648) (429,272) (597,123) (720,950) (619,673)
901,183 1,932,691 2,796,763 3,170,013 3,133,045
Equity attributable to [SYNCIE RPN
owners of the parent W 1,723,520 2,711,373 2,564,405 2,888,193 2,847,967
Non-controlling interests  ZEfE A% HE2E 209,171 85,390 137,061 281,820 285,078
1,932,691 2,796,763 2,701,466 3,170,013 3,133,045
* Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015 included the revenue * HEZZT-—AF+t-A=+t—HLEFEZHABE
generated from the discontinued operations. REDRIEEZEB 2N -
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the results for the year ended 31 December
2018 (the "Year") of Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry
Group Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) to the shareholders (the “Shareholders”) of the Company.

The Group, as an investment and financing platform of Beijing
Enterprises Group Company Limited principally engaged in general
health business, has adhered to the principle of “making health
more intelligent, making lives more honorable” with the mission of
“Beijing Enterprises as a pilot for healthy China”. It is committed to
exploring and developing the health industry in the direction of the
national policy development, which is driven by financial capital and
supported by quality resources, to promptly occupy resources of all
large cities, expand the market size and build up a leading brand in
a bid to establish a top-notch comprehensive health industrial and
investment group.

2018 was a year that brought us the strongest feelings and thoughts
ever since the Group's inception. During which, we tackled several
difficulties by improving our team’s capability in various aspects
through deliberations and innovations, enabling a sustainable and
steady growth of the Group. We have been upholding the corporate
culture of moving ahead in a stable and cautious manner, making sure
that every single plan has achieved ideal integration with the market
condition and has been carried out through careful consideration. To
date, Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health has a net asset of over
HK$3 billion, demonstrating our high asset quality and strong risk
resistance.

EHMHBARER

AAMARERUEZEFRREXEEER QA
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Chairman’s Statement ® = /& #E

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2018, with the concerted efforts of all staff, Beijing Enterprises
Medical and Health has achieved the goals laid down in the
beginning of the year in respect of the major business sectors
including intelligent geriatric care, medical care and health care,
health industrial park, sports and entertainments and health industry,
thereby making considerable contribution to the results of the Group
as a whole.

The business of intelligent geriatric care has been growing steadily.
As of the end of 2018, the number of beds for the geriatric care
services was 2,098, members of which reached 559,300, and there
were 9 geriatric care institutions and 16 community care centers.
Coping with the policies for general health care industry and the
market environment, the medical care and health care business has
been exploring new model, for which we have built up a self-owned
"healthcare ecological system” and kept communicating and sharing
thoughts with top-tier international medical care and health care
companies. The Group was invited to the “The 11th World Medical
Tourism and Global Healthcare Congress” held in the US to deliver
a speech titled “Practice and Research in the Administration of
Health Care Business in China (FEIf#REEEXNEREZER)". All
these helped lay a solid foundation for Beijing Enterprises Medical
and Health to further develop the general health care sector. The
business of medical and geriatric furniture has experienced rapid
growth with its sales for 2018 rising up to HK$161 million, representing
an increase of 39%. By successfully introducing an internationally
renowned cooperating partner, we obtained additional funds of
HK$267 million for the development of health industrial park. Besides,
the successful change of land use plan for the Shanghai Choice
Project (L8 FIEE) has also created groundbreaking values for
the Group. In terms of sports business, Chinese Athletic Association
has become our partner to commence cooperation in various athletic
fields through corporatization. In pursuit of the objectives for 2018
of fund investments in the general health industry, we have made
investments in numerous enterprises, including the only company
in China that focuses on developing the medical examination
technology system for circulating tumor cells and the related products
series, an international biomedicine company principally engaging in
CDMO, and a serious disease treatment platform for immunotherapy
of personalized tumor. Valuations of all investments have been
increasing, which attribute to the breakthrough of the Group's health
industry investment sector in general health industry.

EH O
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Chairman’s Statement ® =@

OUTLOOK

The Group continues to be optimistic to the future development
of the health industry and carries out timely refinement on its
development strategies in accordance with the changes in the market
environment and the industry. The Group will adjust the overall
strategy from “positive and proactive” to “advance in a steady pace,
innovate while progressing”.

In 2019, we have to be prudent when undertaking new projects, while
being creative for the existing ones. A project-oriented organizational
structure will be set up for proper designation of talents to the best
positions so as to realize the overall objectives.

Upholding its core visions of right positioning, healthy growth
in the institutional geriatric care sector, the Group's intelligent
geriatric care business will focus on the development of general and
economical geriatric care institutions to enable an affordable and
comfortable living conditions for hundreds of millions of elderly in
China. With regard to the medical care and health care business, we
will further implement a healthy operating model so as to achieve
constant growth of this core business. As for the health industrial park
business, the planning, positioning and pre-construction developing
procedures for the Shanghai Chunshen Road project will be underway
to build a health care and commercial complex based on the core
concept of health. Joining hands with Chinese Athletic Association,
our sports and entertainments business sector will strive to create
a comprehensive industry chain by building up different segments
such as athletic event organization, training, sports agency, sports
finance, big data’s application in sports, etc.. In respect of the health
industry and investment sector, we will continue to pay attention to
exploration and investments in high quality projects in the field of
general health, while making full utilization of our fund platform to
realize expansion and innovation in the financial sector.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow Directors, the
management and all staff, and to express heartfelt gratitude to all
colleagues for their hard work and contribution to the development
of the Group in the past year. Meanwhile, | would also like to express
appreciation to all shareholders, the banking sector, the investment
community and business partners for their full confidence and strong
support to the Group.

CONVERGENCE TO EMPOWER,
COLLABORATING FOR PROMISING FUTURE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWED T

BUSINESS REVIEW

Geriatric Care Business

The Group has set up an intelligent, ecologically chained geriatric
care system incorporating information platform, home care,
community care and institutional medical support through its geriatric
care brands "Golden Sun” and "Hongtai”. The system delivers
systematic and intelligent geriatric care solutions to cities for the
provision of one-stop services to the elderly. The Group has seized
the opportunities by leveraging on the brand image and professional
services of the "Golden Sun” and "Hongtai” brand. As of 31
December 2018, the number of elderly members served by the Group
was over 559,000; the number of community service centres was
352; the number of care centres was 16; the number of geriatric care
institutions was 9; and the number of beds provided by geriatic care
institutions was approximately 2,098. The occupancy rate of geriatric
care institutions has been rising. In particular, the occupancy rate of
Gulou Senior Apartment (B £% AH), Hongru Senior Apartment
(BfFEEFAE) and Guangyi Geriatric Care Apartment (Em&E R
&) reached 100%, while the average occupancy rate of bed spaces
of elderly care centres reached over 80%. Meanwhile, the Group has
achieved innovative breakthroughs in business models, and started to
provide commercial services such as catering service, elderly travel,
products purchasing, home modification for the elderly and project
consultation in its elderly care centres and most of its community
service centres, which resulted in a continuous increase in revenue
from the geriatric care business.

In 2018, the State Council of the PRC abolished the permission to
establish geriatric care institutions, which indicates that the Chinese
government is deliberately guiding the geriatric care industry towards
marketization. With the gradual coequality between for-profit
institutions and privately run non-enterprise institutions, the number
of for-profit institutions will gradually increase. The competent
authorities are establishing exit mechanisms and the market-oriented
reforms are being progressively implemented.

Although the permission of establishment has been abolished,
the market has gradually returned to rationality under economic
downturn. The severe economic situation led to shortage of money in
all walks of life, and investors became more cautious and proceeded
mergers and acquisitions in a more prudent way, thus large-scale
financing realization has become extremely difficult. The first round
of investment and mergers and acquisitions in the industry expansion
has basically ended.

EF (]
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Management Discussion and Analysis ® E# &5}

As the geriatric care business of "Golden Sun” under the Group has
been focusing partially on high-potential but low-income home-based
geriatric care sector, and has deployed to build a big data platform
solely for geriatric care by increasing the number of the home-based
elderly, and then to conduct the sales of elderly-friendly products.
Under the structural problems such as the absence of large-scale
capital inputs by investors, the capitals purchased by the government
not being timely in place and low fees for home-based geriatric
care services, the financial performance of the Group’s geriatric
care business has not been realized as planned and the short-term
commercial valuation has declined. Therefore, the Group prudently
impaired HK$19,658,000 of the goodwill of the geriatric care business
segment for the current year. Further details of the impairment are set
out in note 16 to the financial statements.

Nonetheless, as indicated by relevant statistics, during 2000 to
2018, the number of elderly population aged 60 or above in China
increased from 126 million to 249 million, and the proportion of
total population increased from 10.2% to 17.9%. It is estimated that
by 2026, the proportion of population aged over 65 will exceed
14% and China will formally become an ageing society. Due to the
rapid growth of the elderly population and the increasing pressure
caused by aging population, the Group expects that institutional
geriatric care and geriatric health services will become a “sunrise”
industry which can still achieve continuous growth while in economic
downturn. During the year, the Group adjusted its proportion of
the geriatric care business based on its extensive experience in the
industry. It captured the momentum of the state-supported general
geriatric care institutions business, and the opportunity arising from
the favourable policy that the country will add one million beds for
the general geriatric care institutions in the next three years, so as to
focus on building an operation system of geriatric care industry with
a leading scale, differentiated development and clear profit model in
China. For the next year, the Group expects to be able to expand our
market share rapidly and achieve stable profitability in the geriatric
care business segment.

Medical and Health Care Industry

Leveraging on years of experience and resources accumulated in the
health sector such as medical services, geriatric care services, family
doctors and sports, the Group endeavours to develop a health service
system in China and gradually form a landscape of which the health
tourism destinations and the urban health services complex as the
carrier, the health promotion hospitals as the support, family doctors
and the health management services platform as the linkage and the
sales of medical and geriatric products as the complement, so as to
establish an ecological chain for health services which is committed
to changing the health conditions of sub-health people in China as
well as providing high-quality and one-stop health services of resort
type and urban life type, respectively, for the mainstream people in
China’s well-off society. Therefore, the Group’s business can achieve
a sustainable, rapid development of its businesses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis ® EI2[E 517w 917

In 2018, the Group has contacted 171 health management resources
related companies, visited about 136 health management institutions
and contracted with 10 institutions. The Group has formulated sports
health experience planning scheme, the draft of the operational and
strategic planning of Dali project and the draft of trial operation of
projects, as well as preparing two projects for Shanghai Sports Health
Experience Centre and the health complex of Shanghai Chunshen
Road project, so as to actively explore the healthy ecosystem and
build up a self-owned health management system.

Hospitals

Dali Hospital (RI2EPr)

The Group successfully bid a land with an area of more than 50,000
square meters in Haidong New District of Dali City for medical
charity purpose, which will be established as a mid to high-end
boutique hospital with chronic disease control, health management
and rehabilitation as its main services, targeting at chronic diseases
such as cardiovascular and oncology. The Group has commenced
multisector services like sports medicine, functional medicine,
nutritional diet, psychological counseling and Chinese medicine
conditioning through means of procuring advanced facilities and
equipment for health management, introducing domestic and foreign
authoritative experts and developing specialist personnel nurturing,
so as to provide professional health care support to the Group's Dali
health tourism destination project.

In 2018, the Group has completed the overall positioning of Dali
project and determined the direction, scale and design ideas of the
hospital. We have communicated with the Dali Prefecture Health
Commission for several times and obtained the approval of the
hospital positioning. The Group has completed the qualification
application and the basic audit, while we have also established a
partner project database. On one hand, we have gradually identified
our partners, while we have also established preliminary cooperation
intentions with local universities and hospitals on the other hand, so
as to build up a talent base and service personnel nurturing.

During the year, the Group actively visited the health management
hospitals in the United States and referenced them to make
alternatives for the hospitals to design units. The Group introduced
Dali project to relevant national-level research institutions and
experts to lay the foundation for cooperation and scientific research.
In the meantime, we are well-prepared for medical-level health
management operation of similar projects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis ® &1 &5}

Xuancheng Hospital (5 ¥ & Fr)

The Group has signed an investment agreement with the Government
of Xuanzhou District of Xuancheng City, Anhui Province, pursuant
to which, the Group will invest in and operate a third-tier specialist
hospital in Xuancheng City, Anhui Province, in order to provide
treatments for major chronic diseases such as cardiovascular and
oncology through preventive control, professional treatment,
health management and post-rehabilitation, improve the overall
health conditions of residents and serve the medical and health
care business of local and the southern area of Anhui Province. This
hospital is initially planned to offer 350 beds, 4 operating theatres
and 6 intensive care units, focusing on the treatment of diseases
such as cardiology, oncology and rehabilitation. The project is now
undergoing decoration and staffing.

Family Doctor Service Platform

Since 2015, the Group has been committed to exploring and
promoting the family doctor business. Under the guidance of the
national policy in relation to family doctors, the Group has worked
with the government to target family doctors and residents as the
customer group, family doctors and residents are connected and
construction costs are charged by building up the platform; through
operating the platform, we will receive operation and maintenance
costs. As of 31 December 2018, the family doctor service platform has
covered all 14 healthcare service centres in Yiwu city, 205 healthcare
service stations and some third-tier hospitals in the city, creating a
three-level linkage mechanism. On the platform, there are over 1,500
contracted family doctors and 283,000 contracted service residents.
The Company has also developed several health related software
products through cooperation with various health products and
services enterprises.

Since the family doctor business mainly collects and maintains data
principally from public hospitals, the commercial transformation of
the online and offline services of family doctors calls for the support
from policies like national medical insurance and the project needs
more long-term and continuous cultivation, the existing capital of
the project company was difficult to maintain accordingly. Therefore,
the Group and other shareholders of the project company decided
to suspend the family doctors business in the next year. Hence, the
Group made full impairment provision for the goodwill and intangible
assets of the family doctor platform in the amount of HK$9,267,000
and HK$5,540,000 respectively during the year. Further details of the
impairment are set out in Note 16 and 17 to the financial statements.

In line with the strategic directions of the intelligent geriatric and
intelligent health management of the Group, the project company will
actively explore business transformation in 2019 and plans to expand
the preventive health management business leveraging on existing
business resources and data advantages.
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Sale of Medical and Geriatric Products

Beijing Vissam Prosperity Furniture Limited* (At REFHREEREFR
‘AR]) ("Vissam Prosperity”), a company under the Group engaging
in medical and geriatric product business, has maintained strong
growth momentum. During the year, our new customers are mainly
China's top 500 enterprises, including Greenland Group, Taikang Life
Insurance, Vanke Group, China Everbright Group, China Construction
Bank, Ocean Group and Sunshine Life Insurance, etc. Supply contracts
with a total of 87 medical and geriatric care institutions were signed
and implemented during the year. The business model for the
subsidiary engaging in medical and geriatric product business has
gradually developed from one of merely sales to an integrated model
consisting of overall design, production, sales, and the supply of raw
materials. In 2018, Vissam Prosperity was awarded a series of green
brand titles including the Top Ten Hospital Furniture Brand in China
(2FE+AXEFR AR E), Geriatric Care Furniture (B ZEMA X A), School
Furniture (B 5K &) and Office Furniture (J#A%K &) and acquired a
number of software copyright certificates.

During the year, the Group entered into an agreement to contribute
RMB10,000,000 to Huarui Furniture Limited (EEXEBR A F) in
exchange of 50% of its equity interest in order to develop the B2C
business of medical and geriatric products, aiming to cover the
residential home care geriatric market and improve the layout of the
medical and geriatric home business.

Health Industrial Park Business

As the reform of the national land policy proceeds, the property
market in China has been transformed from a unitary residential and
commercial model to an industrialised property model. The Group
purchased high-quality lands mainly in cities such as Beijing, Shanghai
and Dali based on the policies and directions on land planning
adjustments of central and local governments. Leveraging on the
transformation and upgrading, it introduced advanced industrial
construction philosophy to fully satisfy the needs of the government
and market users. Focus has been placed on developing new types of
operations such as corporate headquarters and healthcare industrial
parks.

BEEREE
SETENEEERARILRERREXRAAR
AE([EREXDRBRUFERDLHE  AFE
FIEEFP T ERTES008 % - HPBEGM
S8 - FERR - BREE - CAKE - ZRR
17 BFREREARRE - 2FABTLHNT
SREERBEHEAN BEEMAAERHRE
ABRE—HE  BHXERKNSEEBERGT &£
E HEARRMHHEER 8 —FT—/\FE&
REXESEBREBEIETNEZE T ABRAK
A BZERARE  BRRAMBLRAZEM
TSR A R Z MM ZEEES -

REBRFREFEETHEUAR10,000,0007T 1
BEFREBRAF - BUSS0%EE - HRE
EMIIB2CET  BMEB=ZERBEREEMS
EEBERBEEB MR -

REEXBERR

RERR TIHENNE - BREEDBEME
fE—MEEREEEABAEZCENR -
EEREERAE 07 BT iR HARNK
ERAH - EBEILR - L6 - KBSRHER
BEL BB SARENEXER
BE 2ERLBNETSAFPNES - S
RO - (EFEERESHA R -

BEIJING ENTERPRISES MEDICAL AND HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED it BEREEXEEER AR



Management Discussion and Analysis ® E12[E 515w 91T

Currently, the Group owns or is involved in seven development
projects in Beijing, Shanghai, Dali and Canada, with a total site area
of approximately 449,000 square meters. The implementation plans of
the projects have obtained support from the governments where the
projects are located. As the positioning of the projects is in line with
market demands, they are expected to have considerable potential

in terms of commercial value enhancement. As of 31 December 2018,

the progress of the projects under development of the Group is as

BRIASEEILR - £F -
RS ELEERER
HHEBESREEE
BEMFEamgHK

RERMEAKFH
WM A 449 F 7K »
SIEEAMEBZBFXE - 1B
BEEERTENEK -
HIE—Z-—NFT_A=T—HIL FTEEZH
FIREERWT ¢

follows:
Location Project Name Land Area  Percentage Planning Vision of the Project Status
B HEEH THEE it HEERRE ER
Beijing  Chaoyang Port Project 87,607m? 82.24%  General health industrial park It is being developed in three phases,
bl GO FEE 87,607°F ;K AEREXR the first phase (Land area: 73,891.29 m2)
has been sold by equity transfer at a total
consideration of RMB1.23 billion. Pre-
construction planning procedures are in
progress for the second and third phases.
DZHRE - E-HUEATE ¢ 73,891.29F
TRIEERBREL  REAREERENAE
HRERAARB123(ET - E_REZHE
ETTREREITE -
Beijing  Changping Project 13,490m? 70%  Office and commercial complex Properties are on lease.
Sl SRR 13,490F 75 K YNSNEE SN MEHRLED o
Shanghai  Sanlu Road Project 20,480m? 20%  Headquarter of the healthcare  Properties have been completed, and 80%
& =ZBKER 20,480F 75 K business, office and commercial  equity transfer was completed during the
complex year. Currently, they are recruiting tenants.
REEFEDRN BERAR NECEMALNTFDTHB0%RIESEE « B
IEEfTHARR -
Shanghai  Chunshen Road Project 39,448m? 100%  Office and commercial complex The procedures for changing the nature of
L& BRRIER 39,448 1 K WA BEREE the land are in progress.
FEETIHUEEEFE -
Dali Haidong New District ~ 275,181m? 60%  General health industrial park  Pre-construction planning procedures are in
RE Project 275,181 J K complex, including residential,  progress.
BENREE commercial, and medical purpose  [EFEEFTRIEIREIF4E -
ARFEXEHFAE B8FEE%-
BERBER
Canada  Ovation Project 2,430m? N/A*  Residential Project Pre-sale is in progress.
MEX  OvationEE 2430F R TERr EEEE IEETRET -
Canada  Mount Royal Project 10,588m? N/A*  Residential Project Pre-construction planning procedures are in
mex  ERWER 10,588 F 7k @R EEEA progress.

ERETREREITE -

The project is invested in the form of debenture.

# AR B A ERETAEZA -
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The Group will continue to identify lands which are appropriate
for developing geriatric care, medical and general health business
through Beijing Enterprises Group Company Limited ("BE Group”)
or on the market. Through extensive negotiation with the local
governments and grasping golden opportunities arising from the
industrial transformation pursued by these governments, the Group
would gradually develop and create a unique series of products
related to its industrial park investments.

Sports Business

Since 2016, through Beijing Sports and Entertainment Industry Group
Limited (“Beijing Sports”, a company listed on Hong Kong Main
Board, stock code: 1803), an associate of the Company, the Group
has been engaged in sports-related businesses in China, orienting
itself to the construction of stadiums as well as the construction
and operation of winter theme parks. MetaSpace (Beijing) Air
Dome Corp* ("MetaSpace”), the subsidiary of Beijing Sports, is the
leading integrated service provider of construction operation and
management of air dome facilities in the PRC. These air-supported
domes are widely adapted for use in multi-functional facilities such
as sports and recreational facilities, logistic and warehousing centres,
industrial storage facilities as well as commercial exhibition space.
Up to the end of 2018, MetaSpace has already constructed over
200 air dome facilities throughout the PRC, its major customers
including sports & event organizers, government departments, real
estate developers and warehouse operators. Currently, MetaSpace
has obtained over 100 intellectual property rights (including
invention patents, patented air flight and insulation system, software,
copyrights & trademarks, etc.) covering all key technologies in the
construction and installation of air dome structure.

The Group's historical acquisition cost in relation to its investment in
Beijing Sports is approximately HK$388 million. Based on the share
price of HK$2.8 per share for the shares of Beijing Sports as at 31
December 2018, the market value of the equity interests held by the
Group in Beijing Sports was approximately HK$988 million.

HEALTH INDUSTRY INVESTMENT BUSINESS

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health focuses on the opportunities
in the medical and health care market. It participates in the
investments of the medical and health care industry-related
enterprises in the form of creating private funds. The key investment
areas include biotechnology, pharmaceuticals, medical services and
medical tourism.

In 2018, the Group mainly focused on fund investment business
in the field of the general health, including the only enterprise
specialized in the exploitation of circulating tumor cells detection
technology system and a series products in China, the international
bio-pharmaceutical enterprises with CDMO as their main business,
and personalized tumor immune cells therapy platform mainly targets
at major diseases, etc.. The valuation after investments was constantly
increasing, which has made a breakthrough in the investments of
the Group's health care industry investment sector in the field of the
general health.
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FUTURE PROSPECT

Considering "Healthy China” as its mission, Beijing Enterprises
Medical and Health Industry Group will continue to capitalise and fully
utilise the ideal external environment for the geriatric care, medical
and health care industries in China. With the general health industry
as our development focus, we will pursue active explorations in the
general health sector, seek high-quality partners, integrate social
resources and speed up our business deployment in the market.

Looking forward, the Group will continue with its multi-services and
diversification. Upholding its core visions of precise positioning,
healthy growth in the institutional geriatric care sector and daycare
centres, the Group's intelligent geriatric care business will focus on
the development of general and economical geriatric care institutions
to enable an affordable and comfortable living conditions for
hundreds of millions of elderly in China. With regard to the medical
care and health care business, we will further implement a healthy
operating model so as to achieve constant growth of this core
business. As for the health industrial park business, the planning,
positioning and pre-construction developing procedures for the
Shanghai Chunshen Road project will be underway to build a health
care and commercial complex based on the core concept of health. In
respect of the health industry and investment sector, we will continue
to pay attention to exploration and investments in high quality
projects in the field of general health, while making full utilization of
our fund platform to realize expansion and innovation in the financial
sector.

With respect to the new business, the Group plans to vigorously
develop the combined service platform of intelligent medical and
geriatric care in cities, bring together the outstanding enterprises
and experts as well as think-tanks in the health industry, and jointly
develop based on the self-built "healthcare ecological system” of
the Group. Currently, Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry
Group has established cooperative relationships with Xiehe Hospital,
Beijing 301 Hospital and Chinese Academy of Sciences. Meanwhile,
the Group actively integrated the domestic and overseas high-quality
health care resources and rapidly occupied resources of each major
cities, so as to continuously enlarge its market shares, to establish
the leading position of the brands, and to steadily create long-term
returns for shareholders.

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

There were no new material investments other than the daily business
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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MAJOR ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 26 September 2018, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with CLH 115 (HK) Limited, to among other things, transfer
80% of the equity interest of Shanghai Junbo Textile Co., Ltd., for
a consideration of RMB237,726,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$268,102,000) (as adjusted) and the disposal was completed on 21
November 2018. Details of the disposal were disclosed in Note 35
"Disposal of Subsidiaries”.

The Group did not have any major acquisitions for the year ended 31
December 2018.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue of the Group was
approximately HK$178,885,000 (2017: HK$130,625,000), representing
an increase of 36.9% as compared to that of 2017, which was mainly
generated from the manufacturing and sale of geriatric and medical
furniture.

The gross profit of the Group was approximately HK$57,246,000
(2017: HK$47,567,000) and the gross profit margin was 32% (2017:
36.4%).

The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to a subsidiary of the
Group, which engaged in manufacturing and sale of the medical and
geriatric furniture, has maintained strong growth momentum. Our new
customers are mainly China’s top 500 enterprises, including Greenland
Group, Taikang Life Insurance, Vanke Group, China Everbright Group,
China Construction Bank, Ocean Group and Sunshine Life Insurance,
etc. Supply contracts with a total of 87 medical and geriatric care
institutions were signed and implemented during the year.

In addition, the Group has delivered systematic and intelligent geriatric
care solutions to cities for the provision of one-stop services to the
elderly through its geriatric care brands "Golden Sun” and “Hongtai”.
Therein, the geriatric care business of Golden Sun are mainly operated
by 15 private non-enterprise entities (the entities excluded from the
Group's financial consolidation). As of 31 December 2018, leveraging
on the brand image and professional services of the “"Golden Sun”
and "Hongtai” brand, the number of elderly members served by the
Group was over 559,000; the number of community service centres was
352; the number of care centres was 16; the number of geriatric care
institutions was 9; and the number of beds provided by geriatric care
institutions was approximately 2,098. The occupancy rate of geriatric
care institutions has been rising. In particular, the occupancy rate of
Gulou Senior Apartment (£ AE), Hongru Senior Apartment
(BFEEFAE) and Guangyi Geriatric Care Apartment (EmEER
&) reached 100%, while the average occupancy rate of bed spaces
of elderly care centres reached over 80%, which led to the increase in
revenue from the geriatric care services.
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Other income and gains, net

For the year ended 31 December 2018, other income and gains was
approximately HK$367,138,000, representing a decrease of 41.6% as
compared with HK$629,054,000 in 2017.

Other income and gains were mainly the gains of HK$223,899,000
generated from the disposal of subsidiaries, representing a decrease
of 61.1% as compared to HK$576,121,000 in 2017. Excluding the gain
from the disposal of subsidiaries, other gains were approximately
HK$143,239,000, representing an increase of 170.6% as compared
to HK$52,933,000 in 2017, which was mainly attributable to the
investment properties located in Shanghai and Beijing due to the
growth of property market in mainland with the increasing fair value
of approximately HK$76,991,000 in 2018 (2017: fair value loss of
HK$11,792,000).

Remaining other income and gains were mainly interest income
of HK$41,861,000 (2017: HK$39,522,000) generated from the loans
we lent as a strategic plan for idle funds and the rental income of
HK$22,539,000 (2017: HK$15,682,000).

Selling and distribution expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the selling and distribution
expenses of the Group were approximately HK$43,571,000 (2017:
HK$39,627,000), representing 24.4% (2017: 30.3%) of the total sales
amount. The selling and distribution expenses mainly comprise of
remuneration of HK$10,809,000 (2017: HK$13,883,000), transportation
costs of HK$11,891,000 (2017: HK$11,741,000), promotion fee of
HK$3,121,000 (2017: HK$2,992,000) and intermediary expense of
HK$15,368,000 (2017: HK$8,600,000) for the disposal of the subsidiary
project.

Administrative expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the administrative expenses
were HK$191,557,000, representing an increase of 5.3% of the
expenses as compared to HK$181,868,000 in 2017. The administrative
expenses mainly include staff costs (excluding Directors’
remuneration) of HK$60,978,000 (2017: HK$44,927,000), professional
advisory fees of HK$20,350,000 (2017: HK$16,395,000), depreciation
and amortization costs of HK$25,578,000 (2017: HK$27,409,000) and
share option expenses of HK$5,689,000 (2017: HK$17,758,000).

The increase of administrative expenses was mainly due to the rise
of related expenses such as general professional fees, entertainment
expenses, office expenses and travelling expenses arising from the
frequent seeking of potential partners during the year as a result of
the Group's business expansion.
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Other expenses

Other expenses were mainly attributable to the one-off impairment
of asset and exchange loss without cash outflow, which includes
impairment loss of financial assets of approximately HK$15,820,000
(2017: Nil), foreign exchange losses of approximately HK$14,238,000
(2017: exchange gains of HK$8,834,000 were recognised in other
income and gains) and impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
of approximately HK$34,465,000 (2017: Nil).

Finance cost

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the finance cost was
HK$12,850,000 (2017: HK$4,363,000), and the interest capitalised
was HK$3,465,000 (2017: HK$7,045,000). The finance cost was mainly
attributable to the interests of the bank loans, and the increase in finance
cost was mainly due to the increase in weighted average principal of
loans. The weighted average principal of the bank loan amounted to
RMB230,329,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$273,078,000) and the
weighted average annual interest rate was 5.97%.

Net assets

As at 31 December 2018, the net assets of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$3,133,045,000, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$36,968,000 as compared to the total net assets of
approximately HK$3,170,013,000 in 2017. Excluding the generation of
profit of approximately HK$30,913,000 during the year, the net assets
decreased by HK$67,881,000 as compared to 2017, which was mainly
due to the weakened exchange rate of RMB against Hong Kong
dollar of approximately 4.6% during 2018, the recognised exchange
losses of HK$89,514,000 in other comprehensive income of the
Group and capital contribution from non-controlling shareholders of
HK$24,719,000 as of 31 December 2018.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's cash in hand was
HK$764,118,000 (2017: HK$471,436,000); restricted bank balances
was HK$11,755,000 (2017: Nil). The Group's long-term and short-
term loan was HK$187,148,000 in total (2017: HK$243,044,000). Total
debt decreased by approximately HK$55,896,000, mainly due to
the reduction of the bank loans for the disposal of an subsidiary
during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$143,558,000),
the additional loan of approximately HK$116,982,000, net of
the repayment of total working capital loan was approximately
HK$39,581,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Group agreed that meticulous management on cash flow is the
key to success. To ensure that there is sufficient capital to satisfy
the need of the Group's rapid growth, the Group remains good
relationships with each of the banks from time to time, so that the
Group gains easy access to application for loans.
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Capital expenditure

As of 31 December 2018, the Group's capital expenditure was
approximately HK$49,674,000 (2017: HK$162,352,000), including the
purchase of properties, plants and equipment, investment properties
and other intangible assets.

Capital structure

The Group took full advantage of the financing platform as a listed
company by striving for a constant optimisation of the capital and
financing structure, so as to obtain sufficient funds to finance the
future projects of health and geriatric care. During the year, the
Group's operations were mainly financed by internal resources and
bank loans.

Pledge of assets
As at 31 December 2018, the Group has pledged the following assets:

() A building of the Group with a carrying amount of
HK$57,394,000 (2017: HK$62,940,000) as at 31 December 2018
was pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group;

(i)  The Group's investment properties with carrying amount of
HK$367,838,000 (2017: HK$328,987,000) as at 31 December 2018
were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group
and investment properties with an aggregate carrying amount
of HK$39,375,000 (2017: Nil) were pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to an associate of the Group;

(iii)  The Group's land use right with an aggregate carrying amount
of HK$239,545,000 (2017: HK$153,477,000) as at 31 December
2018 was pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group and the land use right with an aggregate carrying amount
of HK$80,916,000 (2017: Nil) was pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to an associate of the Group;

(iv)  The Group's time deposits with an aggregate carrying amount
of HK$5,706,000 (2017: Nil) as at 31 December 2018 was pledged
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group; and

(v) As at 31 December 2018, none of the property under
development (2017: HK$105,150,000) was pledged to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group.
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Contingent liabilities

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements
in this report, as at 31 December 2018, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group's exposure to foreign exchange risks was primarily related
to other receivables, bank balances and amounts due from related
parties denominated in CAD, USD and RMB. In respect of the Group's
exposure to potential foreign exchange risks arising from the currency
exchange rate fluctuations, it did not make any arrangement or use
any financial instruments to hedge against potential foreign exchange
risks. However, the management will continue to monitor foreign
exchange risks and adopt hedging measures where necessary.

Relationships with employees, suppliers and customers
The Group endeavours to maintain sustainable development in
the long term, continuously create value for its employees and
customers, and foster good relationships with its suppliers. The
Group understands that employees are its valuable assets, and the
realisation and enhancement of employees’ values will facilitate
the achievement of the Group's overall goals. For the year ended
31 December 2018, the Group provided generous social security
benefits to its employees to motivate their proactivity at work while
heightening their sense of belonging. The Group also understands
the importance of maintaining good relationships with its suppliers
and customers to the overall development of the Group. The Group
places emphasis on supplier selection and encourages fair and open
competition to foster long-term relationships with quality suppliers on
the basis of mutual trust. To maintain the competitiveness of its brand
and products, the Group abides by the principles of honesty and
trustworthiness and commits itself to consistently providing quality
products to establish a reliable service environment for its customers.
For the year ended 31 December 2018, there was no significant
and material dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/or
customers.

Employee benefits and training

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had approximately 1,044 (2017:
1,081) employees. Total staff cost (excluding Directors’ remuneration)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$79,573,000 (2017: HK$67,043,000). The Group made great efforts
to enhance the quality of staff. During the year under review, the
Group organised internal training courses for staff at all levels.
Topics of the training courses included accounting and finance, risk
management and PRC's tax laws.
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The Group's overall remuneration system is adhered to the principle
of market orientation, offering competitive salary to retain and attract
high caliber persons. The salaries of the Group’s senior management
are determined with reference to market level as well as the Group's
overall operating results.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

The Group is not aware of any significant event requiring disclosure
that has been taken place subsequent to 31 December 2018 and up to
the date of this report.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group strives to offer investors access to updated and accurate
information on the Group's latest major development. The Group
believes that effective communication is built on a two-way basis,
and therefore welcomes feedbacks from investors to the Group. To
facilitate an easy access to information on the Company’s latest major
development, a number of measures have been taken to ensure all
necessary information and appropriate updates are made available
to investors in a timely manner through the Company’s website at
www.bemh.com.hk, under the column of the “Investor Relations”.
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Corporate Governance Report
TREGHRE

The Board of Directors (the "Board”) of the Company is pleased to
present this Corporate Governance Report in the Group's Annual
Report for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The manner in which the principles and code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) are applied and implemented is explained below.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group acknowledges the vital importance of good corporate
governance to the Group's success and sustainability. We are
committed to achieving a high standard of corporate governance as
an essential component of quality and have introduced corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of our
business.

The Company has applied most of the principles set out in the CG
Code.

The Company has adopted different measures to ensure a high
standard of corporate governance and has put in place corporate
governance practices that are considered to be relevant to the Group,
to meet the CG Code.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has
complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code, except
for the deviation from code provision A.6.7.

Code Provision A.6.7

Code provision A.6.7 provides that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Two independent non-executive directors of the
Company namely, Mr. Wu Yong Xin and Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou, were
unable to attend the annual general meeting held on 25 May 2018 due
to their other business commitments.

The Company has reviewed its corporate governance practices and
has taken appropriate actions to comply with the CG Code which are
explained in the relevant paragraphs of the Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.
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The Company has applied the Model Code to the relevant employees
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the
Model Code by the relevant employees was noted by the Company.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE
LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the Company was
informed that:

Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith, an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company, has resigned as the chief financial officer and company
secretary of Shunfeng International Clean Energy Limited (HKEX stock
code: 1165) since November 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises 12 members, consisting of 7 Executive
Directors and 5 Independent Non-executive Directors.

The list of all Directors (by category) is set out under “"Corporate
Information” on page 2 and all corporate communications issued by
the Company from time to time pursuant to the Listing Rules. The
Independent Non-executive Directors are expressly identified in all
corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there have been changes
in the composition of the Board of the Company, details of which are
set out in the Directors’ Report. The Board currently comprises the
following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Shi Xing (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Xue Heng (Joint Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming (Joint Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Siu Kin Wai

Mr. Gu Shan Chao

Mr. Hu Shiang Chi

Mr. Wang Zheng Chun

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Gary Zhao

Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp

Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith

Mr. Wu Yong Xin

Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.
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Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions

of the Board and Management

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations are followed. Each Director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company'’s expenses, upon making request to the Board.

Currently, the Chairman of the Board is Mr. Zhu Shi Xing and the
Joint Chief Executive Officers of the Group are Mr. Liu Xue Heng and
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming. The roles of Chairman on the one hand and
the Joint Chief Executive Officers on the other hand are segregated
and their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in
writing.

The Chairman’s principal role is to provide leadership for the Board
on corporate and strategic planning, ensure proper proceedings of
the Board and encourage all Directors to have active contributions to
the Board's affairs.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Joint Chief Executive Officers and the
senior management. The delegated functions and responsibilities are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the aforesaid
officers.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Every Independent Non-executive Director is appointed for a specific
term of 3 years under his letter of appointment. All Directors including
Independent Non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and eligible for re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company at least once every three years in accordance with
the Articles of Association of the Company. The Company has issued
formal letter of appointments to its Independent Non-executive
Directors setting out key terms of their appointments.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such
confirmation, the Company considers all of the Independent Non-
executive Directors to be independent.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors
Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of
the Company.

Every newly appointed Director receives formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory
and regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefing and
professional development for Directors will be arranged where
necessary.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Directors participated

RBE-Z-/\F+_A=+—HLFE &=
S HIE

the trainings as follows: %JHE’].:Eﬁ‘ZIDT
Topic

Directors BE=E =]
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Zhu Shi Xing M S A A B
Mr. Liu Xue Heng EIEIEPES B
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming RRAAEAE B
Mr. Qian Xu (resigned on 27 February 2019) BREE(R_ZE—hF_A=-_++tBE&ET) B
Mr. Siu Kin Wai miREkE B
Mr. Hu Yebi (resigned on 31 October 2018) HEELE(R T N\F+A=1+—HEIL) B
Mr. Gu Shan Chao FEEBEE A, B
Mr. Hu Xiao Yong (resigned on 2 October 2018) HEBELE(R_ZE—\F+A-B&MT) B
Mr. Hu Shiang Chi HAMRELE A B
Mr. Wang Zheng Chun TERESE A, B
Independent Non-executive Directors BYUHNTEF
Mr. Gary Zhao FHE M5 A A B
Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp Rt B
Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith Eiipes Pt B
Mr. Wu Yong Xin RKF & A B
Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou SRE AL E B

A: attending seminars relating to Listing Rules update, insider information, A: HERB ETRRIER - AFEE EFFEES

Director dealing in securities and share repurchase

B: reading journals relating to the corporate governance, directors’ and officers’

duties, anti-money laundering, accounting standard and loan financing, etc.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board has reviewed
and monitored the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management. The Board has also reviewed
and ensured compliance of the relevant legal and regulatory
requirements, the code of conducts, the CG Code and the disclosure
in this Corporate Governance Report.

In addition, relevant reading materials including directors’ manual/
legal and regulatory update/seminar handouts have been provided to
the Directors for their reference and studying.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Investment and Risk Management Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees
are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website and are available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
Independent Non-executive Directors (except for the Investment and
Risk Management Committee) and the current list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out under “Corporate
Information” on page 2.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, namely,
Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Gary Zhao
and Mr. Wu Yong Xin. All of them are Independent Non-executive
Directors (including one Independent Non-executive Director with
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise). None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external
auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

o To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the internal auditor or
external auditors before submission to the Board

o To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and
terms of engagement, and make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditors

. To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures
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The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year to review
the financial results and reports, financial reporting and compliance
procedures, the report of the internal auditor on the Company’s
internal control and risk management systems and processes,
the reappointment of the external auditors and arrangements for
employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2018
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors three times
without the presence of the Management.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members,
namely, Mr. Gary Zhao (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Tse Man
Kit, Keith and Mr. Wu Yong Xin. All of them are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of the Directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or
any of his associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration,
which remuneration will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.

The Company adopted Code Provision B.1.2(c)(i) out of the two
models suggested by the CG Code. As a result, the Board as a whole
is responsible for determining the remuneration of Non-executive
Directors whereas the Remuneration Committee has the authority to
approve the remuneration of the individual Executive Directors and
senior management of the Company and its subsidiaries as well as
share options related matters.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee met once to review
the remuneration policy and structure of the Company, and the
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management and
other related matters.

The details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the
consolidated audited financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises four members,
namely, Mr. Wu Yong Xin (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Zhu Shi
Xing, Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith and Mr. Gary Zhao. The majority of them
are Independent Non-executive Directors.

Principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
Board composition, identifying suitable candidates for appointment
as Directors and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board Diversity
Policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and ethnicity,
in addition to educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination Committee
would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the
Board for adoption.

During the year, the Nomination Committee met once to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board to ensure that it
has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company.

In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Liu
Xue Heng, Mr. Gu Shan Chao, Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp, Mr. Tse
Man Kit, Keith and Mr. Wu Yong Xin shall retire by rotation at the
Annual General Meeting. All of the above retiring Directors, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General
Meeting.

The Nomination Committee recommended the re-appointment of the
Directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

The Company's circular dated 18 April 2019 contains detailed
information of the Directors standing for re-election.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board.

The Company recognizes the importance of having a diverse team
of Board members, which is an essential element in maintaining an
effective Board and enhancing corporate governance standard. The
Nomination Committee of the Company is delegated the authority
(amongst other things) to review and assess the diversity of the Board,
with the objective of maintaining an appropriate mix and balance of
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives on the
Board which are appropriate to the requirements of the Company's
business.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to skills, knowledge, industry
and professional experience, cultural and educational background,
gender, age and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board. The Nomination Committee shall discuss and
where necessary, agree on the measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board and make recommendation to the Board. The
Board may adopt and/or amend from time to time (as applicable)
such diversity perspectives and/or measurable objectives that are
appropriate to the Company’s business and Board succession
planning, as applicable.

Director Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a director nomination policy (the
“Director Nomination Policy”) setting out the procedures and criteria
to be used by the Company in relation to the selection, appointment
and re-appointment of Directors to ensure that the Board maintains
an appropriate mix and balance of skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity of perspectives to the requirements of the Company’s
business.

The Nomination Committee shall make reference to this Director
Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy to nominate
suitably qualified candidates to the Board for it to consider and make
recommendations to shareholders for election as Directors at general
meetings or appoint as Directors to fill casual vacancies or as an
addition to the Board.
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Investment and Risk Management Committee

The Investment and Risk Management Committee currently
comprised Mr. Gu Shan Chao (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Liu
Xue Heng, Mr. Zhu Shi Xing (all being Executive Directors) and Mr.
Lam Ka Tak (the Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary).

Principal duties of the Investment and Risk Management Committee
include overseeing the risk management and evaluating the major
investment and funding projects of the Group.

There are two meetings held by the Investment and Risk Management
Committee during the year.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Company Secretary

Mr. Lam Ka Tak has been the company secretary of the Company
since 30 September 2010. Mr. Lam Ka Tak is the Chief Financial Officer
of the Company. During the year ended 31 December 2018, Mr. Lam
has received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training to
refresh his skills and knowledge.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board

EERZEEREZHERE

REBET—\F+_A=+—HIEFE &F
ENEFEREFLZEGURFRARRAGLZ
HEREIIN TR

Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held
during the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out in the table below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings

32

LERER/EERE
Investment
and Risk
Management Annual
Nomination Remuneration Audit  Committee General
Board  Committee  Committee  Committee ~ KERER Meeting
Name of Directors 3024 B2 [4ZEE¢ §WZEE  ENZEE  EEZEE  KREEAf
Mr. Zhu Shi Xing MtExE 407 01 - - 112 o1
Mr. Liu Xue Heng YBE%E n - - - 22 0/1
Mr. Gu Shan Chao BEARAE 5/7 - - - 12 0/1
Mr. Qian Xu FREE
(resigned on 27 February 2019) (RZE-NE-F-tLAEHA) 07 - - - - 01
Mr. Siu Kin Wai BlREE Wi - - - - o1
Mr. Hu Yebi REEEE
(resigned on 31 October 2018) (RZE-NE+R=1-REf) 45 - - - - 01
Mr. Hu Xiao Yong HgEELE
(resigned on 2 October 2018) (RZB-\E+R-REA) 0/4 - - - - 0
Mr. Hu Shiang Chi il 51 - - - - 0N
Mr. Wang Zheng Chun TiEFRE 37 - _ _ _ 0
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming FEEMLE 07 - - _ _ 01
Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp REELE u - - - - 1/1
Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith EpC s b7 1 1 33 - 11
Mr. Wu Yong Xin RKFR A 57 N N 13 - 0/1
Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou RERTE b7 - - - - 0/1
Mr. Gary Zhao EEIEE 3 1N 1 23 - "n
Name of Committee Member EEEHENE
Mr. Lam Ka Tak MeErs - - - - 202 -

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held meetings
with the Independent Non-executive Directors without the presence

of Executive Directors during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2018.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
price-sensitive information announcements and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory
requirements. The Directors are responsible for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements of the Company with a view to
ensuring that such financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and that relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements and applicable accounting standards are complied with.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the "Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 63 to 69.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the
year ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:
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Fees Paid/Payable

Bt EMAEA

HK$

Service Category BRI 28 BT

Audit Services ZE R

- Statutory audit services —EEERRS 1,600,000
Non-audit Services X ERTS

— Review of interim report —EBEP RS 400,000

2,000,000
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board of the Group is responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks that the Group is willing to take in
achieving its strategic objectives, and ensuring that an appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control system is
established and maintained by the Group. The Board of the Group
has overseen the management in the design, implementation and
monitoring the risk management and internal control system. The
Board has confirmed that it is its duty to establish a risk management
and internal control system, and that it will constantly oversee the
system and ensure a regular review of the effectiveness of the system
will be conducted at least once a year.

The Board and the Audit Committee of the Company have also
confirmed that during the reporting period, they have reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and its subsidiaries, covering all important control aspects
including financial control, operational control and compliance
control.

During the reporting period, the Board and the Audit Committee
of the Company have evaluated the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system, the procedures of which
include:

(1)  To determine the extent of the system, identify risks and
prepare risk checklists;

(2)  To assess and prioritize the impacts of the risks based on their
impacts on the operational efficiency, sustainable development
capability and reputation in accordance with the generally
accepted risk management framework, with reference to the
probability of various types of potential risks, the extent of the
management’s concerns and the possible financial loss arising
from the risks;

(3)  To ensure risk management measures are in place to identify
significant risks, to conduct internal control evaluation on the
design and implementation of such risk management measures
and to take actions to rectify the control gaps;

(4)  To conduct a regular review and summary on the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control system through
evaluation on the significant risks and implementation of
rectification measures carried out by the management, so as to
maximize and continuously enhance the risk management;

R B B R AR EE 1=

AEBEEES AR RETARBZKERRER

REMBEEANRREEREE - WHRARASE
B RS MRS @&ﬁxﬁ(ﬁ’]ﬂﬁﬁ*ﬁ&ﬁﬂ*ﬁ%ﬁ&

A - AEEEZSCEEEEEYRAREER
*Bﬁ*%l/? MO BREMER B9
CEBEERURBREBRABEZERS I

E %ZEEE‘E@%W WHERR D BF R —

ﬂlh BB R AR AR AR -

ARREEEMERZEGNHERAEEAREH
WE&MT$‘§@&EWE ) HY [ B i EE AN A D
EERGNEANL  ARRREAREMAE
EMERSTHE  BRMHEE  SEEENAR

ﬁf‘T/L °

EARERRN  ARAEZGNERZEEEY
RRERRANRREE R G2 ARIEEL TG - &
AMEREEMAREERZFEERE

() MIURGENEER - #HHRE - ERERRE

£

2 BE-RAZVERERER  KESH
BERBREENA NN EEEERE
MIE SRR REERNMBEESL
HEEHEK - h%?")ﬁ EHMBENTE
FRER TG T - WETERBEF

() BHERRRNERERER HEERE
BB R -f?ﬂ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁi_ﬁm‘ﬁ? GBS
i BTRRZEHEBEETRE

4 BRYEARRARFGENEEEEEER
MRS - EHEAKEREREEMAE
ERZGETRINEY  BERERER
BT RB R A5 B AR TT

BEIJING ENTERPRISES MEDICAL AND HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED 1t BEREEXEEER AR



Corporate Governance Report ® (PEEGIRE

(5)  To prepare a risk management manual that determines the
duties and responsibilities of management, board of directors
and Audit Committee in risk management, and to provide
guideline for constantly monitoring the risk management and
internal control system;

(6)  The management has reported to the Audit Committee
on the results of regular review and evaluation on the risk
management, internal control systems, significant risk factors
and corresponding measures during the reporting period.

Nevertheless, the risk management and internal control system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risks that arising from
unsuccessful business objectives, and only to make reasonable, but
not absolute assurances for the non-material misrepresentation or
losses.

As to the procedures and internal controls for handling and
disseminating the inside information, the Company:

o is aware of its obligations under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and the Listing Rules, and the overriding principle of
dealing with the inside information is to make announcement
immediately after such information comes to its attention and/
or a relevant decision has been made, unless such information
falling within the provision of “Safe Harbours” as provided in
the Securities and Futures Ordinance;

o conducts its affairs in strict compliance with the “Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities
and Futures Commission in June 2012 and "Recent Economic
Developments and the Disclosure Obligations of Listed Issuers”
issued by the Stock Exchange in 2008;

o has established and implemented procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group's affairs. Senior executives
of the Group are designated and authorised to act as the
Company'’s spokespersons and respond to specific enquiries;

o has implemented and disclosed its own Code of Conduct for
share transaction by relevant employee and Inside information
disclosure policy.

REREEGRETEAREETM - AEE
BE ZEXghFERZESHEARERET
TENBE @ WIRHHIESI AR EEERARE
B AEREE IR A

ERECHBEHAERREEMARE
RERGHE PR RHEER - EARAR
A=RAEEEEERNEZZE SRS

AW R EREBMABEIE RS EEEEM
BB ARREER XS B ROER - MARERT
SAEANKERMSIBRIEL S IEMIFBE K
RE

ATHIH A RSN A BRE R ERAREERIZ
Fr A RRES IR 1

REIAAERE(ES RAS KM )M EH
RAIPFARITHELE - EERARAA—
BERMEANRBEER/ REELEBRER
AR DM - BRIERFARIE S BN S
NEREIGDD) T [R2E HEX

REEEBEGRETEFMIESEKE
REEER_T—_FXABEMN AEHE
BWERS ] RN 2T \FHEM
M BRI MEEERBEAL ETEITAN
REAE]

BRSNS BT ML 0B T T 5B
BRI - 33 R B B AR
BABREERRALE A - EEEEH
o

Bt 3

=

EEBYAFREARIWEEERETRND
RH2BTTRIRAREERECR -

F %% ANNUAL REPORT 2018

35



36

Corporate Governance Report ® (rEEGIRE

The Company has set up an internal audit function and engaged
professional consultants to assist in the risk identification and
evaluation so as to formulate its risk management measure. The
Company has evaluated the design and implementation of internal
control measures for significant risks. The Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system and
considered it is effective and adequate and will continue to enhance
the effectiveness in the coming future.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder
meetings, including the election of individual directors. All resolutions
put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant
to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites
of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each shareholder
meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Company’s Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting shall be called by the Board on the
written requisition of any one or more shareholders of the Company,
provided that such shareholders held at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. Such meeting shall be called for the transaction of any
business specified in the written requisition to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company; and shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings
Shareholders who wish to move resolutions at general meetings may
request the Company to convene a general meeting following the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,

shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Room 2108, 21/F, Greenfield Tower, Concordia Plaza,
1 Science Museum Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Fax: 2681-2789

Email: enquiry@bemh.com.hk

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address, apart from the
registered office of the Company, and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group's business performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of transparency
and timely disclosure of corporate information, which will enable
shareholders and investors to make the best investment decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at http://www.bemh.com.hk, where up-to-date information
and updates on the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information are posted.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
Investment and Risk Management Committee or, in their absence,
other members of the respective committees and, where applicable,
are available to answer questions at shareholder meetings.

The 2018 Annual General Meeting ("AGM") was held on 25 May 2018.
The notice of AGM was sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business
days before the AGM.

During the year, the Company has not made any changes to its
Articles of Association. An up to date version of the Company’s
Articles of Association is also available on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhu Shi Xing

Mr. Zhu Shi Xing, aged 48, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in September 2014.He is currently the Chairman
of the Board and a member of the Nomination Committee and the
Investment and Risk Management Committee of the Company. Mr.
Zhu graduated from Central University of Finance and Economics with
a bachelor’'s degree in finance and obtained his master’s degree in
software engineering from Beihang University. In addition, Mr. Zhu
obtained a bachelor’'s degree in sport management from Beijing
Sport University in July 1994. Mr. Zhu started his career as an assistant
in the investment department of China Xinxing Corporation (Group)
Ltd. in 1994. During the period from 2004 to 2015, Mr. Zhu joined
Beijing Holdings Limited (“BHL"), an affiliate of Beijing Properties
(Holdings) Limited (“BPHL"”, HKEX Stock Code: 925), and had been
nominated as the vice general manager of various subsidiaries of
BHL involving in industries such as tourism, logistics and property
development, and the executive vice president of BPHL. Since
December 2015, Mr. Zhu is also an Executive Director of Beijing
Sports and Entertainment Industry Group Limited (“Beijing Sports
and Entertainment”, HKEX Stock Code: 1803), an associate of the
Company. Mr. Zhu has extensive experience in investment, financial
management and property development.

Mr. Liu Xue Heng

Mr. Liu Xue Heng, aged 45, was appointed as an Executive Director
and Joint Chief Executive Officer of the Company in September
2014 and April 2015 respectively. He is currently a member of the
Investment and Risk Management Committee of the Company.
Before joining the Company, Mr. Liu served as an Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Investment and Risk Management
Committee of BPHL during the period from 1 January 2011 to 23
December 2015, an Executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of Tai United Holdings Limited (HKEX stock code: 718)
during the period from 11 July 2014 to 19 January 2016, as well
as an Independent Non-executive Director of Guangshen Railway
Co., Limited (HKEX stock code: 525) during the period from 2
June 2011 to 29 May 2014 respectively. Mr. Liu is also an Executive
Director of Beijing Sports and Entertainment since January 2016
and the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of
Beijing Sports and Entertainment since April 2016. Mr. Liu obtained
a master’s degree of Business Administration from Cambridge
University in the United Kingdom. Mr. Liu has extensive experience in
equity investment, corporate finance, initial public offer and mergers
and acquisitions.
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Mr. Qian Xu BrEfE

Mr. Qian Xu, aged 55, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 22 May 2017 and resigned on 27 February 2019. He is
an Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of BPHL since
July 2009 and the Chairman of BPHL since June 2016, and retired as
the Chief Executive Officer of BPHL since July 2017. Mr. Qian was
also appointed as a Non-executive Director of CAQ Holdings Limited
("CAQ", a company listed on the Australia Stock Exchange with a
Listing Corporation Code of CAQ) in April 2015 and the Executive
Director of MillenMin Ventures Inc. (“MVM")(a company listed on
the Toronto Stock Exchange, Stock Code: MVM) in April 2015. Mr.
Qian graduated from the Economics and Management Faculty of the
Beijing Industrial University with a bachelor’'s degree in economics
and has obtained his executive master’'s degree in business
administration from Tsinghua University. Mr. Qian has extensive
experience in mergers and acquisitions, corporate restructuring and
financial management.

Mr. Siu Kin Wai

Mr. Siu Kin Wai, aged 50, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company on 22 May 2017. He is an Executive Director of BPHL
since July 2009 and the Chief Executive Officer of BPHL since July
2017. Mr. Siu was also appointed as the Non-executive Director of
CAQ in April 2015 and an Independent Non-executive Director of
Agritrade Resources Limited (SEHK Stock Code: 1131) in August 2010
and an Independent Non-executive Director of Orient Securities
International Holdings Limited (SEHK Stock Code: 8001) in September
2017 and an Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of
MVM in January 2017, and resigned as the Chief Executive Officer
of MVM in April 2018. Mr. Siu graduated from City University of
Hong Kong with a bachelor’'s degree in accountancy and is a fellow
members of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. Mr. Siu has extensive experience in financial management and
corporate advisory.

Mr. Zhang Jing Ming

Mr. Zhang Jing Ming, aged 55, was appointed as an Executive
Director and Joint Chief Executive Officer of the Company in
September 2014. Mr. Zhang graduated with a master’s degree in
international finance and trade in the University of International
Business and Economics. Mr. Zhang started his property related
business since 1996 being the General Manager and the Chairman
of the Board of Beijing Wangi Holdings Ltd., a property developer in
Beijing. In 2009, he was also appointed as the General Manager of
the Beijing Badachu Real Estate Group Limited. Mr. Zhang has over
twenty years’ experience in property development business.
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Mr. Gu Shan Chao

Mr. Gu Shan Chao, aged 49, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in September 2014. He is currently the
Chairman of the Investment and Risk Management Committee of
the Company and the President of the Group. Mr. Gu obtained his
bachelor’'s degree in electronic engineering from the Beijing Institute
of Technology and master’'s degree in property from Tsinghua
University. Mr. Gu participated in the property industry since 1999,
and had been the Sales Director and General Manager of various
property developers in Beijing.

Mr. Hu Shiang Chi

Mr. Hu Shiang Chi, aged 58, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in May 2015. Mr. Hu obtained his master’s degree in
International Business and bachelor’s degree in Electrical Engineering
from National Taiwan University. Mr. Hu has extensive experience in
operation management and company acquisition. Mr. Hu is now the
Chairman of the Board of Abico-Fs Co., Ltd (stock code in GreTai
Securities Market: 8071), JBON International Co., Ltd. (stock code
in GreTai Securities Market: 1566) and Transystem Inc. (stock code
in GreTai Securities Market: 5348), the Managing Director of AVY
Precision Technology Inc. (stock code in GreTai Securities Market:
5392), as well as the directors of Celxpert Energy Corporation (stock
code in GreTai Securities Market: 3323), HiTi Digital, Inc. (stock code
in GreTai Securities Market: 3494), and Jentech Precision Industrial
Co., LTD. (stock code in GreTai Securities Market: 3653).

Mr. Wang Zheng Chun

Mr. Wang Zheng Chun, aged 54, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in June 2008. He was the Chairman of the
Company during the period from October 2008 to February 2015. Mr.
Wang has over twenty years of experience in property development
and management. He has substantial experience in developing and
constructing villas, residential units and commercial buildings in the
mainland China.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp

Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp, aged 52, was appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company in May 2015 and re-designated
as an Independent Non-executive Director in May 2017. Mr. Koepp
obtained his bachelor's degree in Asian Studies from Pomona
College, USA, and Master of Business Administration from Cambridge
University in the United Kingdom. Mr. Koepp has indepth professional
experience in public and private equity financing, real estate,
economics and business strategies, particularly for those Chinese
companies which are listed overseas.

Mr. Wu Yong Xin

Mr. Wu Yong Xin, aged 55, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in September 2014. He is currently
the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. Wu is currently the Executive Vice President, Chief Government
Affairs Officer and General Manager of Regional Organization of
Siemens Ltd., China. Mr. Wu obtained his bachelor’'s degree in
economics from Capital University of Economics and Trade in Beijing
and master’s degree in business administration from China Europe
International Business School.

Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith

Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith, aged 45, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in September 2014. He is
currently the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Tse was the Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of Shunfeng International Clean Energy Limited (HKEX stock
code: 1165) from September 2010 to November 2018. And Mr. Tse
was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of Beijing
Sports and Entertainment since January 2016. Mr. Tse has around 20
years of working experience in accounting and financial management.
Mr. Tse is a fellow Certified Practising Accountant of CPA Australia
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Tse obtained a bachelor’s degree in commerce from
University of Wollongong, New South Wales, Australia in July 1997,
majoring in accountancy and finance.

BYFHITES

BEABLE

BRABELE 2 RZE—RFHAREEA
ARRZIEATEFIN T —LFHARBE
BERRBZBIFFNITESR - RELEBEBEK
EMBREMNARBLBUNEBERBARTRE
ERELBM - RAENREMLERERE
FHE KESNEEBBAERATELR
LERSRBIETEOPELE -

RIKHEE

RAXHEE 55 RZE—WFENARZER
ARBZEIIFATES - REMBARARS
ZEGXIRULRERZEGRFMHZREXKE -
RELREFEFF(HEDERRBAITEIEE -
BEBNEHE RESASELE - REERS
EREHREEEFIRABLERETERRPEE
RISk TIRERERTEN -

BT E

WG - 4558 RZE—NFNAREZEA
ARBZEIIFAITES - REMBERRAEZ
ZEGXIRULFIEEGRRRZREXKE -
HAREA_T-"TFNAZ_ZT-N\F+—AH
BETIERBZEREEERAR(FEX S
BREE - 1M65) 2 BREMBERAAMERE
TR R - ARBEEIERBE UL 2B IR
TEZ -HAEALERNSHAMMBEERTEAEFLD
THFEITEER - BEERBRNSFTHRGEER
AMAESARBESAMAGEER - Wit
R—NNEFEARSRMNFTEEBTEARERE KX

BHBELENT BT REH -

F %% ANNUAL REPORT 2018

41



42

Directors and Senior Management ® £= &=k

Mr. Gary Zhao

Mr. Gary Zhao, aged 58, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in February 2016. He is currently
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor’'s degree in English literature from
Northeast Normal University and a master’s degree in education from
Hebei University in 1984 and 1986, respectively. Mr. Zhao worked in
the State Education Commission of the People’s Republic of China
since 1986 and was re-designated to work in the Department of
Foreign Investment of Beijing Foreign Trade and Economic Relations
Commission in 1989. From 1992 to 2005, Mr. Zhao successively served
as the General Manager for several enterprises, and has subsequently
become a fulltime freelance investor since 2005. Mr. Zhao has
extensive experience in the Chinese economic development, Chinese
financial market, project investment and corporate management.

Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou

Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou, aged 52, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in May 2015. Mr. Zhang
has engaged in clinical work of internal medicine and neurology for
over 20 years. He possesses knowledge in relation to neuroanatomy,
neuropathology, electroneurophysiology, neuroimaging and other
disciplines. After finishing his first doctorate degree in Nanfang
Hospital of First Military Medical University in Guangzhou and second
doctorate degree in Xuanwu Hospital of Capital Medical University
in Beijing, Mr. Zhang obtained his qualification of PhD candidate in
Neurology from PLA Military Medical School (PLA General Hospital)
(PR EEE(EEB0 (FRIEREPRT)) in Beijing, a master candidate in
Neurology from Zhujiang Hospital of First Military Medical University
in Guangzhou and a bachelor’s degree in Clinical Medicine from The
Fourth Military Medical University in Xian, respectively. Mr. Zhang
obtained the professional qualification of chief physician in Neurology
(B AR EFEERD) in 2016. He is currently the medical group leader
of emergency Neurology (184 RRIEAERRE), and an chief physician,
associate professor and postgraduate tutor in Xuanwu Hospital of
Capital Medical University in Beijing.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lam Ka Tak

Mr. Lam Ka Tak, aged 37, is the Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of the Group, he joined the Group in September 2010. Mr.
Lam received his master’'s degree of Business Administration from
The University of Hong Kong and bachelor’s degree of Arts (Honours)
in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is
currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Hong Kong Business Accountants Association. He
has over 15 years of working experience in financial management and
corporate finance. Before joining the Group, Mr. Lam had worked
for KPMG as an audit manager. He is also an Executive Director of
Beijing Sports and Entertainment and an Independent Non-executive
Director of U Banquet Group Holding Limited (HKEX Stock code:
1483).
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Directors’ Report
EESHE

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of the business review as required
by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including
future development in the Group's business, can be found in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report.
The above section forms part of this “Directors’ Report”.

POSSIBLE RISK EXPOSURE

The Directors are aware that the Group is exposed to various risks,
including some which are specific to the Group or the industries in
which the Group operates as well as others that are common to most
businesses. The Directors have established a procedure to ensure
that significant risks may adversely affect the Group’s performance
and ability to deliver on its strategies, as well as those which may
present positive opportunities, are identified, reported, monitored,
and managed on a continuous basis.

Risk of Investment Decisions

Risk analysis: According to the Group's development strategies,
we will continue to acquire new projects in the future, whether
high quality projects will be selected and investment decisions to
be made scientifically will have far-reaching effects on the Group's
development.

Tackling measures: Subject to corporate strategies, the Group will
determine the investment decision indicators and the information
required for analysis, and maintain close communication with the
relevant assessment agencies and collaborative authorities; combine
preliminary investment research with project progress conditions
and influencing factors, such as socio-economic policies, to predict
possible external factors which may arise in later stages; select the
right timing of entry for the project and formulate the corresponding
investment strategies, and make timely adjustments to achieve the
best result.
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Risk of Financing Costs

Risk analysis: As the Group's borrowings gradually increase, there
are higher requirements for budgeting, management and control
of funds. Currently a regular reporting system has been established
for funding conditions and financing plans, but the capabilities on
assessing actual requirement of funds and the funding terms have to
be strengthened. At the same time, the Group will monitor closely the
relationship between exchange rate changes and changes in interest
rate spreads, further enhance supervision and control capabilities,
take action in advance to avoid risk of exchange rate changes and
structural risk of financing arrangements.

Tackling measures: the Group will keep on strengthening the tracking
analysis on national currency policies and capital market conditions
and trends and closely monitor exchange rate and interest rate
changes; enhance joint collaborations with domestic and foreign
financial institutions to obtain information on exchange rate and
interest rate momentum to further improve supervision and control
capabilities.

Risk of Sectoral and Economic Policies

Risk analysis: Changes in sectoral and economic policies in China will
have impact on medical and geriatric business. Currently, policies for
the sector remained stable and favourable.

Tackling measures: the Group will monitor simultaneously the
conditions of the province where the subsidiaries operate, including
industry policies, regional economic policies and macroeconomic
changes, collect and arrange the relevant information regularly
to establish a database for carrying out analysis and research to
formulate tackling measures; strengthen interaction between peer
entities and superior authorities to understand the changing direction
of the industry, exchange management experience and enable good
communication.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively known
as the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 70 to 72.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year. The Board believes in balancing returns to shareholders with
investment to support future growth and has decided that it would be
in the Group's best interests to reserve sufficient financial resources
for future business developments.
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Dividend Policy

The Board adopted a dividend policy on 29 March 2019 (the
“Dividend Policy”). According to the Dividend Policy, when
determining whether to declare any dividend in the future and the
amount of dividend to be declared, the Company shall consider a

number of factors, including but not limited to:

o the Group's actual and expected financial results;

o the general economic conditions and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial

performance and position of the Company;

o the Company’s business operation strategy, including expected
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements

and future expansion plans;

o the Company'’s liquidity position;

o retained earnings and distributable profit reserves of the
Company;
o the contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends

imposed by the Company’s lenders and other institutions; and

o any other factors that the Board considers to be applicable from

time to time.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution proportion or distribution ratio, the declaration, payment
and amount of dividends will be subject to the Board’s discretion.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy on a regular basis.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions
of its Articles of Association and provided that immediately
following the distribution of dividend, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. As at 31
December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to HK$1,172,996,000 which consisted of share premium of
HK$1,770,388,000 net of accumulated losses of HK$597,392,000.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options are set out in notes 32 and 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of the equity-linked agreements subsisting at the end of the
year are set out below:

Ordinary Shares

On 20 August 2015, United Win International Corporation ("United
Win"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered into the
acquisition agreements with an independent third party to acquire
the entire issued share capital of Beijing Spirit Commerce & Trading
Limited (t R B & E AR A 7)) (“Beijing Spirit”) at a consideration of
RMB39,000,000.

Among the consideration of RMB39,000,000, subject to and
conditional upon fulfilment or waiver of all the conditions precedent
set out in the acquisition agreement, United Win will settle the
consideration of RMB10,000,000 by cash and the remaining
consideration of RMB29,000,000 will be settled by issuing 43,862,500
consideration shares of the Company in three tranches pursuant to
the general mandate.

For details of the acquisitions, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 20 August 2015.

ME - BERREBEUARRENE
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13814 -

Al 2k &

BEHSEHEEME2NEATERIEE) &
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FHzEE RZE—N\F+=ZA=+—H ' &
DR A D IR EE A1,172,996,0008 7T © E A
BN % 181,770,388,000/8 7T (1 2t EHE
597,392,000/ 7T ) °
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RMIEE32833 -
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RZZE—RAFNAZ+H KARZEMBEAF
United Win International Corporation([ United
Win ) B985 8 = 77 AT LW BB e - AMKBBAE R
BEABARAA(MIERERE DO BEETR
A KERARM39,000,0007T °

R AR39,000,000tIREZF - FUlE RS
BTl 2 3B S R G I K 8 BA 2 12 + United Win
15 38 &5 8 AR %10,000,000t 2 KB - A
R #29,000,0007T 2 82 TRE BB AR A BRI —
RRIRHE D = HE3E1743,862, 5000 R BRD /5 1E °
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on 26
April 2002 (the "2002 Scheme”) and replaced by the share option
scheme adopted on 24 May 2013 (the “2013 Scheme”). Further details
of the 2002 Scheme and 2013 Scheme are disclosed in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses the number of outstanding share
options granted to the Directors of the Company at the beginning of
the period and at 31 December 2018:

BBRAES

ARAR BT -FOA - +RBRABARES
=TT 58 YmE—_F—=FAH
AR ERESE( - =558
DR 2R FHIAR T = F IR —
THBERBENGRE P RARMEEIS -

TERBEARANBIR-_Z-NFE+_A
=T -HERTARRAEFHARITEBRERA 2
Number of

share options

at 1/1/2018

and 31/12/2018

R=F—-N%F

—A—BR

—E-N\F

+t=ZA=+—-BZ2

BREHE

Mr. Wang Zheng Chun £IE&H%AE 30,000,000
Mr. Zhu Shi Xing ft 85 & 30,000,000
Mr. Liu Xue Heng 2|28 % £ 30,000,000
Mr. Gu Shan Chao BAZEB L4 30,000,000
Mr. Siu Kin Wai FRI#1E %4 10,000,000
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming SR 2 BA5E A& 20,000,000
Mr. Hu Shiang Chi B % 4 15,000,000
Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp FEE2 54 7,000,000
Mr. Wu Yong Xin Rk 7 4 4,000,000
Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith & 394 4,000,000
Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou 5R3& & Jt 4 2,000,000

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had 338,000,000 share options
outstanding under the 2002 Scheme and 2013 Scheme. Should they
be fully exercised, the Company will receive HK$192,460,000 (before
issue expenses). The fair value of these unexercised options measured
in accordance with the Group's accounting policy (note 2.4 to the
consolidated financial statements) amounted to HK$92,706,000.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any of the directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

RZZE—N\F+_A=+—H ARaR_ZTZ
—FFTEI R =T — = 5278 T 338,000,000
DB ARITER BEARAE - WEEREITE - AQF
A5 UK ER 192,460,000 7T (RET 8 THS) - %%
MARITEERERBERNEESHBER (KEVH
wERMIE2.4) 5T 2R R FEA92,706,000/8 7T °

BEXEEEI)N RERENKRRETMNES
FWER B ZEBEARKF FRER THITER
BBBARRRBR DK EREMER 2R - M
ARR - BERAF - EERHEQRRERM
BRRE AL RS ARRERE
ANEMEAEAE R Z ZFHER o
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Shi Xing (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Xue Heng (Joint Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming (Joint Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Qian Xu (resigned on 27 February 2019)

Mr. Siu Kin Wai

Mr. Hu Yebi (resigned on 31 October 2018)

Mr. Gu Shan Chao

Mr. Hu Xiao Yong (resigned on 2 October 2018)
Mr. Hu Shiang Chi

Mr. Wang Zheng Chun

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Gary Zhao

Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp

Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith

Mr. Wu Yong Xin

Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou

In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Liu
Xue Heng, Mr. Gu Shan Chao, Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp, Mr. Tse
Man Kit, Keith and Mr. Wu Yong Xin shall retire by rotation at the
Annual General Meeting. All of the above retiring Directors, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General
Meeting.

The Company and each Director have entered into a letter of
appointment for a term of 3 years, subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors
of the company is currently in force and was in force throughout this
year.

55
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance, to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
of the Company or any entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2018, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and
its associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

(i) Long positions
Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each of the Company

EERNERGH &R

RAFESFAREAFRE  XEEMARE] - H
ERARSEEMHERR RN - AARF
BRI EEEAWENERERARERES
BEARZERNARIER -

EERRORERKD zES

RIB-N\F+-A=+—R0 BEFERKERAH
ZHBALTRARE R EBBEE 2 B kA
R BB RARBREE S RAEED (73

NHERE &P |) EB35216 R EFE < B M Arac sk
HIRBEETRID RITAGANR ) R R 218
A

(i) #=

RAFEIREE0.20/8 7T 2 & AR

Approx.
percentage
of the
issued share
capital of
Interest in Total the Company
Interest underlying interest r NG|
Name of Director Capacity in shares shares in shares ERITRA
BExng 51 BREE HEROES R A0 48 R 25 BRBEDE
Mr. Wang Zheng Chun Beneficial owner 5,468,750 30,000,000 35,468,750 0.59%
FERESE BESHAEA (Note 3)
(BH5E3)
Interest held by spouse 35,074,000 - 35,074,000 0.58%
MECERHA < Em (Note 1)
(F5ET)
Interest held by controlled 64,811,000 - 64,811,000 1.07%
corporation (Note 2)
REEHNEERE 2R (Figsr2)
105,353,750 30,000,000 135,353,750 2.24%
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Approx.

percentage

of the

issued share

capital of

Interest in Total the Company

Interest underlying interest N

Name of Director Capacity in shares shares in shares ERITRA

EEME 230 RS HEERGOER BRipEER BABESIL

Mr. Zhu Shi Xing Beneficial owner - 30,000,000 30,000,000 0.49%
PS4 EmEAA (Note 3)
(BI7E3)

Mr. Liu Xue Heng Beneficial owner - 30,000,000 30,000,000 0.49%
ABELE ERBREA (Note 3)
(BI5E3)

Mr. Gu Shan Chao Beneficial owner - 30,000,000 30,000,000 0.49%
BEBLE EREBA (Note 3)
(KI7E3)

Mr. Zhang Jing Ming Beneficial owner - 20,000,000 20,000,000 0.33%
REPLE EnEAA (Note 3)
(BI7E3)

Mr. Hu Shiang Chi Beneficial owner - 15,000,000 15,000,000 0.25%
BRI ST A ERHEEA (Note 3)
(BF3E3)

Mr. Siu Kin Wai Beneficial owner - 10,000,000 10,000,000 0.16%
miEErE BHEHEAA (Note 3)
(KI7E3)

Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp  Beneficial owner - 7,000,000 7,000,000 0.12%
BLELE ExEAA (Note 3)
(BI7E3)

Mr. Wu Yong Xin Beneficial owner - 4,000,000 4,000,000 0.07%
RoKHEE ERBEA (Note 3)
(BI3E3)

Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith Beneficial owner - 4,000,000 4,000,000 0.07%
WX AE ERBEBA (Note 3)
(BF7E3)

Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou Beneficial owner - 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.03%
RIEELE EREEA (Note 2)
(FF5E2)
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(ii)

Notes:

1. Mr. Wang Zheng Chun ("Mr. Wang”) is deemed to be interested in
35,074,000 shares, being the interests beneficially held by his spouse,
Madam Shen Ling Zhao.

2. The 64,811,000 shares are held by Hillfame Holdings Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the entire

issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by Mr. Wang.

3. The interests were derived from share options granted by the
Company on 2 April 2015 and 28 January 2016 which entitled the
holders thereof to subscribe for Shares at an exercise price of HK$0.61
and HK$ 0.53 per Share. First 30% of the share options granted will be
vested in one year after 2 April 2015 and 28 January 2016 (as the case
may be), second 30% of the share options granted will be vested in
two years after 2 April 2015 and 28 January 2016 (as the case may be)
and remaining 40% of the share options granted will be vested in three
years after 2 April 2015 and 28 January 2016 (as the case may be). The
share options are exercisable from the vesting date until 1 April 2025
and 27 January 2026 (as the case may be).

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors, nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares
or underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Share options
The interests of the Directors and chief executive in the share

options of the Company are separately disclosed in the section
"SHARE OPTION SCHEME" above.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

(ii)

Wi

1. FIEFERE(TELRE D HER AR 35,074,000
RRAR D R EE Mk SRS 2 BB
MBRLLTEHEE -

2. 64,811,000 & A% 9 B Hillfame Holdings

Limited# A * ZRARAREBERRES
ARz AR RE2EHEEITRAB T L
BwlER -
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During the year, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company was entered or existed.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, none of the directors of
the Company had any interest in any business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than as disclosed above in the section headed “Directors’
interests in shares and underlying shares”, as at 31 December 2018,
the shareholders (other than Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had interests of 5% or more or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO or had otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

Long positions
Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each of the Company

EEEHN
Py AATLEIT L AU REERNRATE
BEBAINEEHH 2 ERRITHAL -

EENHEUEB o ER

REBEZZT—N\F+A=+—HLEFER K
REAZEEHENEAER L ENEBEIHT
R ERARMERREFNEMNEBRERE
A HE LS ©

FERR

BN EXTERTRRD BRI 2 | — &K
BEN RZF-NF+ZA=1+—H RER
A - AR REEE T EAREES RS
EIRPIEXVERE 2R FE 3D B AM AR B
BREEHNARAIZE 7 R HE P55 3361677
ENBLMARC TG ARAMSRHIA L
REIAR ZBR(ARRAEETHARFHTHRAR
BRSNS -

LSy )
AR R GREEO.20/8 T 2 EA

Number of shares Percentage
Name of shareholder Capacity beneficially held of holding
BRREEEB g BERBEROEE ERBEH
Cosmic Stand International Limited Beneficial owner 945,000,000 15.59%
BERBEEA
Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited Interest held by controlled 945,000,000 15.59%
IERERGER)BR AR corporation (Note 1)
RSRESEE RS A 2 s (M)
Beijing Enterprises Real Estate Interest held by controlled 945,000,000 15.59%
(HK) Limited corporation (Note 1)
EEEX(FB)ERQF mRIEHEE A 2 s (M)
Beijing Enterprises Group Interest held by controlled 945,000,000 15.59%

Company Limited
EREREABRAA

corporation (Note 1)

mSREGEE RS A 2 s (M)

BEIJING ENTERPRISES MEDICAL AND HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED 1t BEREEXEEER AR



Directors’ Report e EE@&3RE

Number of shares Percentage
Name of shareholder Capacity beneficially held of holding
BRREEEHB =37 BEEBEROEE ERESL
IRt EEEEBR AR Interest held by controlled 945,000,000 15.59%
corporation (Note 1)
mRIEHEE A 2 e (M)
Beijing Financial Holdings Interest held by controlled 548,409,806 9.05%
Group Limited corporation (Note 2)
EReREREEBRAF mRIEHEE A 2 s (M5E2)
Beijing Financial Investment Interest held by controlled 548,409,806 9.05%
Holdings Limited corporation (Note 2)
ERERIREZERBREAF mRIEHEE A 2 s (M 5E2)
Beijing Investment Co., Limited Beneficial owner (Note 2) 548,409,806 9.05%
EREKEEBRAF EmEA A (M5E2)
Ng Kin Nam Beneficial owner 401,300,000 6.62%
RiEmE EmEAA
DA a2RE RN BRAF Interest held by controlled 324,684,000 5.36%

corporation (Note 3)

RS GAE A 2 s (M E3)

Notes:

These Shares were beneficially owned by Cosmic Stand International Limited.
Cosmic Stand International Limited is wholly owned by Beijing Properties
(Holdings) Limited. Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited is owned as to
35.72% by Beijing Enterprises Real Estate (HK) Limited, 22.73% by Brilliant
Bright Holdings Limited, 7.11% by Beijing Holdings Limited and 1.28% by
Illumination Holdings Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of Beijing Holdings
Limited which is in turn a wholly owned subsidiary of Beijing Enterprises
Group Company Limited). Beijing Enterprises Real Estate (HK) Limited is
wholly owned by It 3b1EE £ BB & FE A F) which is in turn wholly owned by
Beijing Enterprises Group Company Limited. Accordingly, Beijing Properties
(Holdings) Limited, Beijing Enterprises Real Estate (HK) Limited, Jb RIbiE&E %
AR ETAF] and Beijing Enterprises Group Company Limited are deemed to
be interested in the 945,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by Cosmic Stand
International Limited under the SFO.

These Shares were beneficially owned by Beijing Investment Co., Limited.
Beijing Investment Co., Limited is wholly owned by Beijing Financial Holdings
Group Limited which is in turn wholly owned by Beijing Financial Investment
Holdings Limited. Accordingly, these companies are deemed to be interested
in the 548,409,806 Shares beneficially owned by Beijing Investment Co.,
Limited under the SFO.

GEX

#Z 5 17 FCosmic Stand International Limited®
#@ A ° Cosmic Stand International Limitedfiit
FEZPER)ARARZERS - tREZ(ER)
BERATHIEEX(FB)BRARERI572%
MERRIERR B R ARG 22.73% « RREX(£EE)A
RARHAT.11%Klllumination Holdings Limited
(RREBEXE(KE)ARRAFZZEMBRR - MR
ZEX(EE)ERAFA AL RIEREEFGR AR
ZE2EAWBARHEE1.28%  ILIEBEE(FH)BR
ARBIEREEEXEERETARZERSE © Mt
RUAREBEEREFEARBILRIEREEGR AR
2EHEA - Bt BEEFRAEKI - LRER
(ZER)BRAF - LEBXE(HFE)BRLIA - bR
ItEEXEREEATIRIERIEREEGRATY
W48 B Cosmic Stand International Limited® 2§
75 2945,000,0008% A% 13 G o

ZERMBIEREEERARERHES - LRKE
BRATBIERERAIEREEGRATZEHSE -
MitRemEREEERARAHILREIEERE
BRERARZERESR - At REFHFLKBEK
Bl - ZERARERARIERBREBRARERES
2.548,409,806f% A 1D R A % ©
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3. 200,400,000 Shares were beneficially owned by Easy Glory Holding Limited,
which is in turn wholly-owned by Gloryeild Enterprises Limited (“Gloryeild”).
Gloryeild is wholly-owned by Sundart Holdings Limited and is indirectly
wholly-owned by Jangho Curtain Wall Hong Kong Limited (“Jangho”). Jangho
is wholly-owned by I )i 8l £ B XD BR A F ("I "). 124,284,000 Shares
were beneficially owned by Advance Finding Investments Limited, which
is in turn wholly-owned by Peacemark Enterprises Limited (“Peacemark”).
Peacemark is wholly-owned by Jangho and is indirectly wholly-owned by /T8
Accordingly, Il is deemed to be interested in 324,684,000 Shares under the
SFO.

Other than as disclosed above and in the section headed "Directors’
interests in shares and underlying shares”, as at 31 December 2018,
the Company has not been notified by any persons (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are recommended
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company's
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme is set out in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2018.

3. 200,400,000/% f& 1 B Easy Glory Holding Limited
E % A - 1M Easy Glory Holding Limited £
Gloryeild Enterprises Limited ([ Gloryeild ]) &
BWH o Gloryeild AR ESEBEBR AR EZEH
BYRMIAREREEAERAR(NITERK]) M
BE2EHA  INERBAINAREERNER
RR(TA ) ZEHA © 124,284,000 B B 12 B
Advance Finding Investments Limited & #z= #
A i Advance Finding Investments Limited 8
Peacemark Enterprises Limited ([ Peacemark])®
BYEH © Peacemark /DA R B2 &AW I
ME2EER - Bt - REZHRBEKRE - TH
AR A1 324,684,0008% A& 19 5 1 25 ©

B EX R TEERI RABRER () 2 s | — 81K
BEN RZF-N\F+ZA=1+—8H " BEE
MAL(ARAREFARRTRABRIN EANE
ARBREBRBEESLREEPIEXVEE2RE
3D MG ARR AR B KB X EH N AR F
RES LB GO E336GFEZERMANAE
DA HARRA R D 2 R B A ©

B & BUR
AEEIEE 2 HMEEmFNERRRREZY
4 BEREENRE ©

ARREEZHEeRFHEZESK2ELARALK
BEE EEEAARRRAULBEMSERERZE

2
A%

ARARIEHRA—HBRETS - FRUESRE
BifEB 2 2R - B S ZFHRBERNGEEMH
AMEE3S ©
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AR RERLPIARARE D EFRD 2 EEH
BRAE -
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken during the year
ended 31 December 2018 are disclosed in Note 41 to the financial
statements.

For those related party transactions that constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions (as the case
may be) under the Listing Rules, these transactions are exempt
from reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The environmental policies and performance of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2018 containing the information
required under Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules are set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report which will be published
on the Stock Exchange's website and the Company’s website within
three months after publication of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATIONS

The Group is not aware of any instances of material breach of or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations such as the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Listing Rules, and other
applicable local laws and regulations in various jurisdictions during
the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this annual
report.

STRUCTURAL CONTRACTS

Background

According to the Administrative Rules for Foreign Investments in
Telecommunications Enterprises, which were issued on 11 December
2001 by the State Council and became effective on 1 January 2002,
a foreign investor is currently prohibited from owning more than
50% of the equity interest in a PRC entity that provides value-
added telecommunications services. Internet content provision
("ICP") services are classified as value-added telecommunications
businesses, and a commercial operator of such services must obtain
an ICP license from the appropriate telecommunications authorities
to carry on any commercial Internet content provision operation in
China. In July 2006, PRC Ministry of Information Industry issued a
notice (the “Notice”) which prohibits ICP license holders from leasing,
transferring or selling a telecommunications business operating
license to any foreign investors in any form, or providing any resource,
sites or facilities to any foreign investors for their illegal operation of
telecommunications businesses in China. The notice also requires that
ICP license holders and their shareholders directly own the domain
names and trademarks used by such ICP license holders in their daily
operation.
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Reasons for the Contractual Arrangement

On 21 October 2015, the Group acquired 35% of interest in It R
EHBERHEBR AR (Beijing Top-Doctors Technology Co., Ltd.*)
(“Top-Doctors”) by way of capital injection at a cash consideration of
HK$17,430,000, which was then stated as an associate of the Group.
On 5 August 2016, the Group acquired another 30% of interest in
Top-Doctors from its certain existing shareholders through a series of
share transfer agreements at a cash consideration of HK$5,382,000.
Since then, Top-Doctors has become a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group.

As such, to enable Top-Doctors to continuously obtain the ICP license
and conduct “Internet + Medication” business in China in 2017, on
7 February 2017, the Group transferred its 65% of equity interest
in Top-Doctors to F/BEREXER AR DA (Shanghai Jinkang
Corporate Management Limited*) (“Shanghai Jinkang”), a PRC
entity. Subsequently, It RRREREILHR AT (Beijing Yutai Health
Management Company Limited*) (“Beijing Yutai”), a subsidiary of
the Group, Shanghai Jinkang and its shareholders Ms. Liu Xinfeng (%I
#2) and Ms. Chu Muyin (#85E%) (the “Registered Shareholder(s)"
and Top-Doctors entered into a series of structural agreements to
enable the Group to exercise control over Shanghai Jinkang and
Top-Doctors, among which Top-Doctors (wholly-owned by Shanghai
Jinkang as to 65%, which is in turn owned as to 50% and 50% by Ms.
Liu Xinfeng and Ms. Chu Muyin respectively) holds the requisite ICP
license. As such, Top-Doctors is still deemed to be a subsidiary of the
Group with its financial statements consolidated into the Group.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
are of the view that: (i) the contractual arrangement is essential to the
legal structure of the Group and business operation of Top- Doctors;
and (ii) the contractual arrangement was entered in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group and in normal commercial terms
or terms that are favourable to the Group, was fair and reasonable or
favourable to the Group, and was in the interests of shareholders as a
whole.

Revenue and Assets subject to the Structural
Agreements under the Contractual Arrangement

For the year ended 31 December 2018 and as at 31 December 2018,
revenue and total assets of Top-Doctors amounted to approximately
HK$1,669,000 and HK$4,635,000, representing 0.93% and 0.12% of
the total revenue and total assets of the Group, respectively. The
Directors are of the view that the Group maintains its “Internet +
Medication” development in China via the structural agreements of
Top-Doctors, but its business and operation are not dependent on
Top-Doctors or the structural agreements. Below is a brief description
on the structural agreements.
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Information on Beijing Yutai, Shanghai Jinkang and
Top-Doctors

Beijing Yutai is a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability. The entire interests in Beijing Yutai are indirectly
whollyowned by the Group, and its scope of business includes health
management (excluding diagnosis and treatment services); health
information consultation (excluding diagnosis and treatment services)
and corporate management consultation.

Shanghai Jinkang is a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability. The Registered Shareholders of Shanghai Jinkang are Ms. Liu
Xinfeng and Ms. Chu Muyin.

Ms. Liu Xinfeng is a PRC citizen and a Registered Shareholder of
Shanghai Jinkang, who holds 50% of equity interest in Shanghai
Jinkang as at the date of this annual report and is currently an
employee of the Group.

Ms. Chu Muyin is a PRC citizen and a Registered Shareholder of
Shanghai Jinkang, who holds 50% of equity interest in Shanghai
Jinkang as at the date of this annual report and is currently an
employee of the Group.

Top-Doctors is a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability. 65% interests in Top-Doctors are owned by Shanghai Jinkang,
and its scope of business includes the provision of intellectual medical
services in cities, family doctors contracting services and health
management services.

Summary of the Major Terms of the Structural
Agreements

Beijing Yutai has entered into a series of structural agreements with
Shanghai Jinkang, Top-Doctors and the Registered Shareholders
for obtaining the control over the finance and business operation of
Shanghai Jinkang, Top-Doctors and its subsidiaries (the “Shanghai
Jinkang Group”) as well as sharing the economic benefits and
interests of the Shanghai Jinkang Group. The series of structural
agreements included (i) Loan Agreement; (ii) Exclusive Share Option
Agreement; (iii) Equity Pledge Agreement; (iv) Entrusted Agreement
and Power of Attorney; (v) Business Co-operation Agreement;
(vi) Master Exclusive Service Agreement; (vii) Confirmation and
Commitment Letters; and (viii) Spouse Consent Letters. The major
terms of the structural agreements are summarized as follows:
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(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Loan Agreement: Beijing Yutai and Shanghai Jinkang entered
into the Loan Agreement on 7 February 2017, pursuant to which,
Beijing Yutai will provide a loan in an amount of RMB19,615,300
to Shanghai Jinkang to acquire 65% of equity interest in Top-
Doctors from the Group. The term for the loan is 20 years from
the date of signing the Loan Agreement, bearing an interest
rate of 0% per annum. The loan can be extended by written
confirmation of Beijing Yutai, and the term for the extension is
subject to the confirmation by Beijing Yutai.

Exclusive Share Option Agreement: Beijing Yutai, Shanghai
Jinkang and the Registered Shareholders have entered into
the Exclusive Share Option Agreement on 7 February 2017,
pursuant to which, the Registered Shareholders have irrevocably
granted an exclusive right to Beijing Yutai, which can request
the Registered Shareholders to transfer their equity interest in
Shanghai Jinkang to Beijing Yutai or the third party designated
by Beijing Yutai.

Equity Pledge Agreement (1): Beijing Yutai and the Registered
Shareholders entered into the Equity Pledge Agreement
(1) on 7 February 2017, pursuant to which, Beijing Yutai is
entitled to exercise its right to sell the pledged interest in the
registered capital of Shanghai Jinkang held by the Registered
Shareholders upon the occurrence of certain specific events.

Equity Pledge Agreement (2): Beijing Yutai, Shanghai Jinkang
and Top-Doctors entered into the Equity Pledge Agreement (2)
on 7 February 2017, pursuant to which, Beijing Yutai is entitled
to exercise its right to sell the pledged interest in the registered
capital of Top-Doctors held by Shanghai Jinkang upon the
occurrence of certain specific events.

Entrusted Agreement and Power of Attorney: Beijing Yutai,
Shanghai Jinkang and the Registered Shareholders entered into
the Entrusted Agreement and Power of Attorney on 7 February
2017, pursuant to which, the Registered Shareholders have
authorized Beijing Yutai to exercise all shareholders’ rights in
Shanghai Jinkang held by the Registered Shareholders.
Business Co-operation Agreement: Beijing Yutai, Shanghai
Jinkang and the Registered Shareholders entered into the
Business Co-operation Agreement on 7 February 2017, pursuant
to which, Shanghai Jinkang and the Registered Shareholders
appointed Beijing Yutai as their exclusive service provider to
offer comprehensive support on business operation and staff
arrangement.

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)
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(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Master Exclusive Service Agreement: Beijing Yutai and Shanghai
Jinkang entered into the Master Exclusive Service Agreement
on 7 February 2017, pursuant to which, Beijing Yutai will provide
technical support and consultation services to Shanghai Jinkang
in consideration of a service fee equivalent to 100% of the
audited consolidated total profit of Shanghai Jinkang.

Confirmation and Commitment Letters: The Registered
Shareholders entered into the Confirmation and Commitment
Letters in favour of Beijing Yutai on 7 February 2017, where each
of the Registered Shareholders confirmed, among others, (i) in
any event, the structural agreements signed by the Registered
Shareholders shall not be affected; (i) when Beijing Yutai is
permitted to directly hold the equity interest in Top- Doctors
pursuant to the PRC law, the Registered Shareholders shall
co-operate with Beijing Yutai for share transfer; and (iii) the
Registered Shareholder shall not, directly or indirectly, involve
or engage in business in competition with Shanghai Jinkang
Group.

Spouse Consent Letters: The spouses of the Registered
Shareholders entered in the Spouse Confirmation and Consent
Letter in favour of Beijing Yutai on 7 February 2017, where the
spouse of each of the Registered Shareholders confirmed,
among others, (i) he was not interested in the equity interest
in Shanghai Jinkang held by his spouse, and committed not
to make any claim on such interests in Shanghai Jinkang;
(ii) confirmed that the Structural Agreements as well as any
amendments to or termination of such documents entered into
by each shareholder of Shanghai Jinkang shall not be subject to
his consent; (iii) committed to sign all requisite documents and
make all requisite actions to guarantee the proper performance
of the above documents; and (iv) committed that if he is, by
any reason, entitled to acquire any equity interest in Shanghai
Jinkang held by his spouse, he will be bound by the obligations
as a shareholder under the above documents (as amended from
time to time); and if such documents are breached or if there is
any material change in Shanghai Jinkang, he shall immediately
notify Beijing Yutai and assist Beijing Yutai in safeguarding its
legal interests and obligations under such documents.

The Directors confirms that, as at the date of this report, relevant

PRC authorities have casted no doubt over the structural agreements,

and the Group has not encountered any interruption or obstruction

imposed by any PRC regulatory authorities for operating its business

via Shanghai Jinkang in accordance with the structural agreements.

Meanwhile, the Group has obtained the opinion of its PRC legal

advisor that the contractual arrangement is currently not in breach of

the relevant PRC regulations.

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

EE®R

BRBEED:SE  LRAFE EFEER

—tF R tHIYBRRELH
#F o Bt RRREE e S ERE R
TREFARE - REK LEER100%48
KE AR BEENRISE -

ﬁw&%m&"ﬂﬁﬁmiifti:
ARtB%:TERERAE X TItRAZ

“@k?RWﬁWE¢@%)EHF°
T BRBRRAEELEBEHBBRH TSR
w;?nﬁ$liénﬁﬁ§mﬁﬁﬁ%

EREBBERER & Ek%%MAﬁﬁ
REERMDEZE : K (iVELRESTE

E&&ﬁ&,ﬂiﬁ$ﬁtiﬂﬁﬁlﬁ
B ET

EEBREX: BLBRRZEBR-_T—+
FZALHFTRBERARRAER TR
AR BEERESENEBER(EPE
B EIT B AR BN LESETFR

PO ERER  TAETERZEN L
BEENESEEHEMRR  ()ERLE
SFEBRRZERILZEBBERLZEX

fHE R 2 EAERT AR L - BT BRHKE
%Wm%%kgﬁﬁbmxﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
VARTBAREZZET Ll © Kiv)
AR EEMRE A RESEEBR
EBBFEMR ZAEMBRE - B X
F(ETEHEET) TMEREBRRZBEEML
R MWZEXHEERMER X LEH
BEHREAERES BB
T UHHUERTRREEEZSEXMHT
BIERENMREE -

RABREEH - BRENLEES S

HAEMAIMINEMNER  AAEEERBESS
WiEB LB EKEEER T EY BEE R E P
BB E A R () TIRERE - RIS - RNEED

ERFBERBERZER

BHORYE ML EE

RAABAFBUER ©

F %% ANNUAL REPORT 2018

59



60

Directors’ Report ® E=@&3RE

Risks Relating to the Contractual Arrangement HENZHERNER
The Directors is in the opinion that the following risks are related to EERAEUTRBRESLHLTHERE -

the contractual arrangement.

— If the PRC government recognized the contractual arrangement o

that established our business operation structure does not
comply with the PRC laws and regulations, or if there is any
change on those regulations or their interpretations in the
future, the Group may be subject to stringent punishment or
forced to waive the interest in those business operations.

—  On March 15, 2019, the Foreign Investment Law was formally —

passed by the thirteenth National People’s Congress and will
take effect on January 1, 2020. The Foreign Investment Law
does not explicitly stipulate the contractual arrangements as
a form of foreign investment. As advised by our PRC Legal
Advisor, since contractual arrangements are not specified as
investments under the Foreign Investment Law, and if future
laws, administrative regulations or provisions prescribed by
the State Council do not incorporate contractual arrangements
as a form of foreign investment, our Structured Contracts as a
whole and each of the agreements comprising the Structured
Contracts will not be affected. Notwithstanding this, the Foreign
Investment Law stipulates that foreign investment includes
“foreign investors invest through any other methods under
laws, administrative regulations or provisions prescribed by the
State Council”. Therefore, there are possibilities that future
laws, administrative regulations or provisions prescribed by
the State Council may regard contractual arrangements as a
way of foreign investment, and then whether our Structured
Contracts will be recognized as foreign investment, whether our
Structured Contracts will be deemed to be in violation of the
foreign investment access requirements and how the above-
mentioned Structured Contracts will be handled are uncertain.
Therefore, there is no guarantee that our Structured Contracts
and the business of our PRC Operating Entities will not be
materially and adversely affected in the future..

—  The contractual arrangement of the Group may not be as —

effective in providing operational control as direct ownership
and Shanghai Jinkang or its shareholders may fail to perform
their obligations under the contractual arrangement.

—  The Group may lose the ability to use and enjoy assets and —

licenses held by Shanghai Jinkang and its subsidiaries that are
important to the operation of our business if Shanghai Jinkang
or any of its subsidiaries declares bankruptcy or is subject to a
dissolution or liquidation proceeding.

—  The contractual arrangement of the Group may be subject to —

scrutiny by the PRC tax authorities and additional taxes may be
imposed. A finding that the Group owes additional taxes could
reduce our consolidated profit.
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Shareholders of Shanghai Jinkang may potentially have a
conflict of interest with the Group, and they may breach
their contracts with the Group or cause such contracts to be
amended in a manner contrary to our interests.

The Group conducts business operation in the PRC through
Shanghai Jinkang and its subsidiaries by way of the contractual
arrangement, but certain terms of the contractual arrangement
may not be enforceable under the PRC laws.

If the Group exercises the option to acquire the equity interest
in Shanghai Jinkang or Top-Doctors, the ownership transfer may
subject us to certain limitations and incur additional costs.

To ensure the effective operation of the Group and the

implementation of structural agreements, the Group has adopted the

following measures:

*

To ensure the operation of the structural agreements, the Group
confirms that it has reviewed the overall performance and the
compliance of the structural agreements for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The Board will review the structural agreements annually, and
confirms that (i) the transactions conducted in the aforesaid year
have been entered into in accordance with the relevant terms
of the structural agreements, thus all the revenue generated
by Shanghai Jinkang Group, net of all relevant expenses,
costs and taxes payable, has been retained by the Group; (ii)
each of Shanghai Jinkang and its subsidiaries has not paid any
dividend or other distribution to its equity holders; and (iii)
no new contract or renewed contract has been entered into
in accordance with the same terms of the existing structural
agreements.

Shanghai Jinkang Group has provided the Group with a
complete accounts for the auditor to carry out audit procedures
of the consolidated results of Shanghai Jinkang Group to the
Group.

For identification purposes only
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BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2018 are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of the annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, 43.8% of the Group’s purchase were attributed by
the Group's five largest suppliers and approximately 14.9% of the
Group's purchase were attributed by the largest supplier; and 37.3%
of the Group’s turnover were attributed by the Group's five largest
customers and approximately 26.7% of the Group’s turnover were
attributed by the largest customer.

To the knowledge of the directors, none of the directors, their
close associates or any shareholders who owned more than 5% of
the number of issued shares had interest in any of the five largest
customers of the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Zhu Shi Xing
Chariman
Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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§ * Central, Hong Kong
Independent auditor’s report BYZEMRE

To the shareholders of Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health
Industry Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Beijing
Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 70 to
223, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we o
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter

FRESSEE
ﬁﬁfk%?r%lﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%%rﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ P RAEA
PEAMBREANETRAEENER - 2F=F

AT HERA Wﬂ‘&&%%&%ﬁ&ﬁ%.ﬁrlﬁ/ﬁzﬁﬁ
E’Jjb?— J%IE SRS ERERERENE

\QTL'! FIRFAERE P EE R
zmwm%% g

below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is

provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address

EECRBIIABERUEA TS KA
FEEF RN EE  BEREZSHRE
STEIEMABMEE - HEM - BENETTES
ERT REHFHOEGS B RREAERR L
B MR R BEIZR - BERITRAIZFOE
R BREHTABRESFEMATHRT -
REAMTEHRREBERBTERIREHER -

the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter
HRETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EE BN NMEERRENER

Goodwill impairment

BERE

In accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard
("HKAS") 36 Impairment of Assets, the Group is required
to annually test the amount of goodwill for impairment.
Based on the result of this annual impairment test,
an impairment of approximately HK$29 million was
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2018.
The net carrying amount of goodwill of approximately
HK$184 million as of 31 December 2018 and the
impairment charge for the current year were material to
the consolidated financial statements. The recoverable
amount has been determined by reference to the
value in use of each relevant cash generating unit.
When assessing the recoverable amount, significant,
judgement and estimation are involved, such as future
cash flow and discount rate.
REZFESAER([EESFLER]) F365K & ZF 0
- BEEEASFREHERECSBEEDNS - BREAR
FREREAAER BE-_T—\F+-_A=+—HItF
EHIE - BERERBE L A29,000,0008 7T c HEZZT—N
FHZA=1T—BH®EE ZREFE#1184,000,0007 7T LA
RAFEZREERHGEAMBREAMEIBEK - ATK
B H2ESHBRCELBU EREBREE - &7
AT O SRR - BEELERMFE KA HIIRR
ReENEREIREK -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

HEERERN A MR E3R16

We evaluated the key assumptions including those
related to growth rates of revenue and gross profit
margin. We engaged our internal valuation expert to
assist in evaluating the methodologies and assumptions
such as discount rates, terminal growth rate of each cash
generating unit of the Group. We tested the assumptions
applied to key inputs such as sales volumes and prices,
growth rates, which included comparing these inputs with
externally derived data as well as our assessment based
on our knowledge of the Group. We performed sensitivity
analysis, which included assessing the effect of reasonably
possible reductions in growth rates and increase of
discount rates.

%‘JIE@“’L BIE B AL R R K E R A B RR
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iEiﬁMZE&&TE“ IR ERKAERE - FE
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HES *ﬁ Hrp BT b8 R XS IR D R AR K42

By

We considered the historical financial performance of
the business units and compared with the forecasts to
evaluate management’s budgeting process. We also
focused on the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures
about those assumptions to which the outcome of the
impairment test was most sensitive, that was, those that
had the most significant effect on the determination of the
recoverable amount of goodwill.
E%f%i‘““ﬁﬁ’]kﬁﬁﬂ‘xﬁﬁ I ERFEAI L &L - i
uﬁﬁ EREHTRENBIE - EENETR EEEBE@Z
ERBzBE(BEERE ﬁlJWE’] ERERBRNERER) 2
TE%’] BB EHBR ke SBETESEATE -
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Key audit matter
RERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BB NAEERREENER

Valuation of investment properties

REYFEAE

The Group adopted the fair value model for their
investment properties in accordance with HKAS 40
Investment Property. Changes in fair values were
recorded in profit or loss. The Group engaged an
independent appraiser to perform valuation on the
investment properties of the Group as at 31 December
2018. Both the fair values of investment properties of
approximately HK$471 million at 31 December 2018
and their changes of approximately HK$77 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018 were significant
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the valuation involved management judgment and
estimates based on a projection of estimated rental
value, capitalisation rate and adjustment on market unit
price which would affect the fair value of the investment
properties.

RIEETGAEYNBIORKEYF X BEEERREYE
RAQATEREN - XA TEEBFTAER - EXEEEZEE
NETERS BEEER-ZZE-N\FtZA=+t—BZKRE
MEETEHE REVMER-_T—N\F+-_A=+—82Z
R {EHI471,000,0008 TR ERBE—_F—/\F+_A
=+ —HILFEZ#8477,000,000& # T E 4R & M SR
RMEBBEK o HEESELBRESTZERE
MERNFEZEAESEEERR B ERHIGEN
EAg 2 FRAEH FIET R A5 -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.

HERERN A MR E3R14

We assessed the objectivity, independence and expertise
of the external appraiser engaged by the Group. We
involved our internal real estate valuation specialists to
assist in evaluating the valuation techniques and assessed
the underlying assumptions. We collected information
and discussed the character of the investment properties
with the management and the independent appraiser.
We performed independence market quotation for similar
properties and adjusted specific factors to get the range
of unit price for the investment properties. We assessed
the unit price derived by the independent appraiser of
the properties with similar nature and location. We also
assessed the adequacy of the disclosures on investment
properties, including fair value hierarchy.

FEECHHEH BEEBEZREZINEHERM 2 FBML B
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HEETREZUABRSRENENELEREE - TFBBEL
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Key audit matter
RERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BB NAEERREENER

Valuation of unlisted equity investments

HIF LR REZE

Since 1 January 2018, the Group adopted HKFRS 9
Financial instruments to account for its unlisted equity
investments as financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income or financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. The fair value measurement of
such unlisted equity investments was significant to our
audit because their fair value balances of approximately
HK$221 million as of 31 December 2018 was material to
the consolidated financial statements. These financial
assets are categorised as level 3 in the fair value
valuation hierarchy. The measurement of fair value
included assessment made by using different valuation
techniques and assumptions.

BZZ2-NF—A—HE KAEERNEBHBHRELR
B M TABHEIELTRERES RBBEMEEE R
NAFEFRZ GREESBEBBHZARNTEIR © @
BE RZZE—N\F+A=+—08 2S5, LTExK
B 7N TELE#RL /221,000,000 7T - ¥4RE B ®E M
EEEXN - ZEeRMEERATENEERTOERE=
B AHEZFESEERATRMGERMRERR -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 43 to
the consolidated financial statements.

HERESRN G A MR E3R43

We involved our internal valuation specialists to assist us
in reviewing the methods and assumptions used for fair
value measurement of these unlisted equity investments
when no market value is available. We assessed the
methods in the valuation models in accordance with
valuation guidelines and industry practice. We compared
the assumptions made with appropriate benchmarks and
price sources and examined any significant deviations.
We reviewed the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Man Kit.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

%;.\j_.l_A :.\/

Year ended 31 December 2018 HE=—ZT

Hfe 2 mE =R

—N\F+A=1+—HILFEE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —tF

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

ks FHERT FET

Revenue WA 5 178,885 130,625

Cost of sales HERA (121,639) (83,058)
Gross profit Bl 57,246 47,567
Other income and gains, net H b g A R U 255 58 5 367,138 629,054

Selling and distribution expenses SHE R X (43,571) (39,627)

Administrative expenses TERAX (191,557) (181,868)
Other expenses HibFx (68,046) -

Finance costs BAE KA 7 (12,850) (4,363)

Share of profits and losses of: PIEAT 2 aH REE

a joint venture —fHlaE QT 91 -
associates =N (17,294) (5,302)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRTE AT R 6 91,157 445,461
Income tax expense Frisfim X 10 (60,244) (165,298)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERER 30,913 280,163
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income ® 4z
Year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER TET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEERF 30,913 280,163
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hitb2E(F8) W
(LOSS)/INCOME
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that ~ EZHAREEF D EEEREN
may be reclassified to profit or loss Hip2mE(E518), M
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences: ME =R
Exchange differences on translation of BMEBINEBEEZ
foreign operations M 5 ER (89,514) 134,959
Reclassification adjustments for foreign HERNHENGINER 2
operations disposed of during the year B EFE 2,084 30,595
Share of other comprehensive loss of an oM —EBE AR EMEE
associate EE (1,551) (735)
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income HEgHAEFH > BEN
that may be reclassified to profit or loss ~ Hf 2@ (E1E), s F5EE
in subsequent periods (88,981) 164,819
Other comprehensive loss that HEefRBETeEn»BE2EEN
will not be reclassified to profit or loss HEf2mEEE :
in subsequent periods:
Equity investments designated at fair value 5 7E 7335 8 H tth 2 W s LA R F AT ER
through other comprehensive income ([FREA R I EIA R FEIIER])
("FVOCI"): ZHESIRE
Change in fair value NFEEE (26,429) -
Net other comprehensive loss that will HEefRBTeEgm»BEzEsz
not be reclassified to profit or loss in HEtemEEEFE
subsequent periods (26,429) -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ FEHMZE(ER) WE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX BT E (115,410) 164,819
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ FEEZHE(BE) WHEEE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR (84,497) 444,982
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income ® 474 8 & E 2 H R

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ks FHER FAET
Profit/(loss) attributable to: THATREEEF(BE)
Owners of the parent HREHER A 43,450 213,675
Non-controlling interests FEFERR M R (12,537) 66,488
30,913 280,163
Total comprehensive (loss)/income TIATEEEZE
attributable to: (E518) s ses
Owners of the parent HBARER A (54,498) 364,024
Non-controlling interests JEVERR M (29,999) 80,958
(84,497) 444,982
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE BAREEREZEEA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EhEEREF
OF THE PARENT 12
Basic and diluted EXRREE HKO0.72 cents HK3.47 cents

0.7284L

3.47540
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SE P BIR IR

31 December 2018 —E—\F+=-A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FET &L
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NERE 13 78,500 86,687
Investment properties wEMHE 14 471,239 381,625
Prepaid land lease payments e 15 511,233 553,656
Property under development BRPYE 22 391,184 -
Goodwill [EES 16 183,949 212,874
Other intangible assets HibhEmEEE 17 7,929 14,920
Investment in a joint venture R—EEaERRIZKRE 18 9.374 -
Investments in associates REEENF 2 IKE 19 500,897 461,263
Equity investments designated at FVOCI  #5F AF B EM Bk
AT Z R IE 20 225,494 -
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 20 - 46,151
Prepayments T FRIE 24 36,155 272,657
Total non-current assets EMBEERE 2,415,954 2,029,833
CURRENT ASSETS mEBEE
Inventories Ve 21 29,190 28,889
Property under development BRPYE 22 - 268,253
Trade receivables BUE SRR 23 37,565 28,325
Prepayments, other receivables and TARTFRIA o REUORIE K
other assets Hibh&EE 24 340,393 809,788
Due from related parties fEUR A sE 7 508 41 88,435 149,832
Financial assets at fair value through BBEEAATET R
profit or loss ("FVPL") (MBEBBFRAAFESER])
JERMEE 26 65,308 104,607
Restricted bank balances ZRHNIRITFR 27 11,755 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEEY 27 764,118 471,436
Total current assets MEEEMAE 1,336,764 1,861,130
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEBEE
Trade payables ERESER 28 19,338 16,878
Other payables and accruals HENRBARESER 29 196,369 178,737
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &+ 8 IE17 R E &K 30 69,595 81,541
Due to a related party B — RS AR 41 28,998 36,558
Tax payable FERELR 36,337 98,997
Total current liabilities MBI B ERRE 350,637 412,711
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEEEFE 986,127 1,448,419
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRDAE
LIABILITIES 3,402,081 3,478,252
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position ® 4348 B AR A&
31 December 2018 —ZE—N\F+-_A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tfF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FET &L
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERTBEE
LIABILITIES 3,402,081 3,478,252
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHEIRITERK 30 117,553 161,503
Deferred tax liabilities BEHERE 31 147,436 137,196
Other liabilities Hih&E 29 4,047 9,540
Total non-current liabilities MBI BEERE 269,036 308,239
Net assets BEFE 3,133,045 3,170,013
EQUITY WS
Equity attributable to BRRIER AEE#ER
the owners of the parent
Share capital B& X 32 1,212,280 1,209,648
Reserves & 34 1,635,687 1,678,545
2,847,967 2,888,193
Non-controlling interests JEIERR IS 285,078 281,820
Total equity HARESS 3,133,045 3,170,013
Zhu Shi Xing Gu Shan Chao
AL BEE
Director Director
EE =
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in

SEREZEBER

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRRERAEL
Equity-
settled
Share  Statutory share-based Exchange Asset Non-
Share  premium surplus  payment Merger fluctuation  revaluation Capital Accumulated controlling Total
copital  account  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reseve’  reserve losses Total  interests equity
T
EE  RiBER EiRD  ERER
ke ROEER RBEE  GREE  AKER & BE  ATRE  ZER By HERER  ERS
Notes ~ HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKE'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
i3 T T T Titn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Fhn T T
(note32)  (note32)  (note34)  (note 33) (note 34)
(W32) (s (Wise)  (ARaE33) (Fist34)
At 1 January 2017 RZE-t5-A-B 1,234,578 1,805,149 - 81,876 800 (167,209 9,106 (117 (398,778) 2,564,405 137,061 2,701,466
Profit for the year FREA - - - - - - - -3y 23415 46488 280,163
Other comprehensive EFEEMRENG -
income for the year:
Exchange differenceson ~ AEENERELL
translation of foreign EizE
operations - - - - - 120,489 - - - 120489 14,470 134,959
Share of other AH—HBERA
comprehensive L2 EER
oss of an associate - - - - (735) - - - (735) - (735)
Redlassification RERLEMENEHL
adjustments for foreign ENARAE
operations disposed
of during the year = = = = = 30,595 = = = 30,595 = 30,595
Total comprehensive ERPENGLE
income for the year - - = - - 150,349 - - 213675 364,024 80,958 444,982
Issue of consideration shares %771t ERH 2 32 6,263 - S S 5 5 S S 9.475 = 9475
Capital contribution of non-  FERRRTE
controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - - 63,801 63,801
Equity-settled share-based B E MR AEHR
payment arrangements o s 4 kK] - - - 17,758 - - - - - 17,758 - 17,758
Share of reserves of associates  EBE DA - - - - - - - 439 = 4309 S 439
Sharesrepurchasedand ~ RABERH
cancelled 1 (28,142) (43,656) - - - - - - - (11,798) - (1,798)
Transfer from retained profits E&ERBEF - - 11,365 - - - - - (11,365) - - -
At 31 December 2017 RZZ-tF+ZR=1+-R 1209648 1,761,756 11,365 99,634 800 (16,860) 9,106 3212 (19468) 2,888,193 281820 3,170,013

#

The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from an owner-

occupied property to an investment property carried at fair value before
1 January 2017.

R-F—tF—A—BA BRgHEXIEANE
HRREMEMEENEESHREBARTETIER -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity ® &r&#Em &g *x
Year ended 31 December 2018 #E =T — \F+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

SATERARE
Equity-
settled
Share  Statutory share-based Exchange Asset Non-

Share  premium surplus  payment  Merger fluctuation ~revaluation Capital ~ Fair value Accumulated controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total  interests equity

RELEN

%E RfAER EXED  HEER

B BEEER BRER  (RER  GHER (i B EXEE OVERR  ZiHER & FEREE  RRAY
Notes HKS'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
fr  TEn ThR ThR Tin TET ThR ThR ThRn Thn ThT ThR ThR Thn

(note32)  (note32)  (note34) (note 33) (note 34)
(W32)  (Ws2)  (Wiss)  (W&33) (Hit34)
At 1 January 2018 RZ2-N\E-5-8 1,209,648 1,767,756 11,365 99,634 800 (16,860) 9,106 3,212 - (196,468) 2,888,193 281,820 3,170,013
Effect of adoption of ROERABREE SRR
HKFRS 15 net of tax ¥2 NRHE 22 o o = o = = = - - (1,017) (1,017) - (1,017)
Effect of adoption of RABREBREENE
HKFRS 9 pd 22 - - - - - - - 545 51,967 (52,627) (115) - (115)
Restated balance R=F-N§-B-Bz
at 1 January 2018 LEy|is 1,209,648 1,761,756 11,365 99,634 800 (16,860) 9,106 3,757 51,967  (250,112) 2,887,061 281,820 3,168,881
Profitforthe year ERER - - o - = - - - - 43,450 43450  (12537) 30913
Other comprehensive (loss) ML MZE
income for the year: (B8)/
Exchange differences on BEBEHEL,
translation of foreign EXZE
operations - - - - - (74792) - - - - (14792) (14722 (89,514)
Reclassification adjustments ~ IMERHEATENER
for foreign operations LEFHERE
disposed of during the year - - - - = 2,084 = - - - 2,084 - 2,084
Fair value loss on equity BT BEALN2ERAN
investments designated AVEE iR
atRVOC JNIBER o o = - - - - - (23,689) - (23,689) (2,740)  (26,429)
Share of other AE-BRERTN
comprehensive loss Efp2mER
of an associate - - = = - (1551) - - - - (15 - ()
Total comprehensive loss EREEBREE
for the year - - - - - (74259) - - (23,689) 43,450 (54,498)  (29.999)  (84,497)
Issue of consideration shares ~ &{TH &l k) 2,632 2,632 - - - - - - - - 5,264 - 5,264
Transfer of suplus reserve  BREBREE - = 2231 = 2 2 - - - @ - - -
Capital contribution fromnon-~ FHERBEZE
controlling shareholders o o - - - - - - - - - UM 2419
Non-controling interest HE-FNEATRERL
recognised in disposal of s
a subsidlary % - - - - - - - - - - - 1,147 1,147
Disposal of a subsidiary LE-EHEL % - - - - = = = 1117 - - 1417 7,391 8,508
Share of reserves of associates  AEEELFHE o = - - - - - 3,334 - - 334 - 33

Equity-settled share-based ~ RIEEEIRAHARE

payment arrangements eSS 3 o - - 5,689 - - - - - - 5689 - 5689
Transfer of share option REREER/%2K

reserve upon the expiry/ BERERERE

forfeiture of the share options - - - (7,106) - - - - - 7,106 - - -

At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+-A=1-8 1,212,280 1,770,388  13596*  98,217* 800 (91,119 9,106* 8,208  28,278*  (201,787)* 2,847,967 285,078 3,133,045
& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$1,635,687,000 g ZEREREBERAVBUARRZEAHE
(2017: HK$1,678,545,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 1,635,687,000/8 70 ( —Z —H4F : 1,678,545,0007%

JT) e
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERERER

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE a

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KEEBEReRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax: MR ADEA 91,157 445,461
Adjustments for: AT ZHEEL AR
Finance costs %ﬂﬁﬁi$ 7 12,850 4,363
Share of losses of a joint venture and MME—EEaERRR
associates BN T ZE1E 17,203 5,302
Interest income B U A 5 (41,861) (39,522)
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hibm A g EEy 6,17 1,009 902
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TS 37 & B 4H
payments 6,15 17,596 17,116
Depreciation e 6,13 11,902 10,305
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME - BEMKEES
plant and equipment ZEE 5 110 67
Changes in fair value of investment REMEZ NV EE
properties 5, 14 (76,991) 11,792
Impairment of goodwill EERE 6,16 28,925 -
Impairment of other intangible assets HinmLEERE 6,17 5,540 -
Impairment of financial assets TRVEERE 6 15,820 -
Equity-settled share-based payment RS A &5 & DA IS 9 A AT 30
expense B 33 5,689 17,758
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial HBEEARNTFERZ
assets at FVPL TREEZATE
1R (hkas) 5 2,575 (1,169)
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AT Z W 5,35 (223,899) (576,121)
Fair value adjustment of contingent IAREBZ R TFEHE
consideration (2,631) 3,747
Dividend income from equity investments  $§ *HLZEEMEEWE
designated at FVOCI RN ETIERAERIRE
ZHQ A 5 (574) (1,435)
(135,580) (101,434)
Increase in inventories FE®E (488) (20,908)
Increase in trade receivables FEUE 5 BR FAE N (9,465) (16,312)
Increase in prepayments, other receivables FE{ZRTE - E b fE WG TE &
and other assets H fth & E= 1N (17,952) (38,343)
Increase in trade payables FERTE S RRFIG N 3,278 6,871
Increase in other payables and accruals H b e FRIE K et B 48,219 55,277
Increase in restricted bank balances xﬁﬁ%”'ﬁﬁ TIFFIE N (6,049) -
Increase in properties under development %’*)?%':F‘ ESY (246,523) -
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, [EXREE) L FEE
net 17,791 32,348
Cash used in operations KEFMARS (346,769) (82,501)
PRC corporate income tax paid BB SR (5,299) (2,227)
Net cash flow used in operating activities & EBFTARE R E/F5E (352,068) (84,722)

F %% ANNUAL REPORT 2018



78

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ® &8 & nE%

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BREARYAGHERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received BRI 39,866 39,530
Purchase of items of property, plantand  BEE®E « MELRE
equipment HH (38,042) (151,263)
Addition to prepaid land lease payment FEfT L3 AR & 18 0 - (200,878)
Additions to intangible assets REBEEE 17 = (645)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKE AT 35 306,081 1,022,417
Purchases of equity investments BERTASREMEANE
designated at FVOCl/available-for-sale A TESR 2 iR E
investments A ERE (120,095) (105,164)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWME  BELEREZ
plant and equipment Fr15 3R 53 379
Addition to an investment property NBREWE (1,695) -
Acquisition of a subsidiary Yol — M E AR - (6,763)
Advances of loans to non-controlling MEERER BN ER
interests - (3,821)
Purchase of shareholding in associates BE RS AR 2 RE (37,178) (310,822)
Purchase of financial assets at FVPL BEABESEUAATETR
JEREE (17,877) (109,992)
Proceeds from disposal of financial HEEBBRIAAFETE
assets at FVPL ZEMEEZFFHIA 3,539 142,283
Advances of loans to third parties ME=FRNER (5,546) (72,383)
Repayment of loans to third parties EEE=FEXK 522,331 18,610
Advances of loans to related parties FIRE RN E R - (83,374)
Increase in non-pledged time deposits REVSRRE A B iR =18 A
with original maturity of over 2 SR E HATE R
three months when acquired = (423)
Decrease in non-pledged time deposits RES I R B B 8 =18 A
with original maturity of over 2 EIRE RO
three months when acquired 250 80,338
Purchase of a shareholdings in BE —MAERARNRE
a joint venture (9,368) -
Decrease in pledged bank deposits B RIRITIEFOR - 21,900
Dividend received from a listed investment 2 WEX F & Z %8 574 1,435
Dividend received from an associate EUER— R E 2w 2 RS 338 -
Hong Kong profit tax paid on HREEHEN 2B EMNEH
investing activities - (2,367)
PRC corporate income tax paid on MWEFSEN 2P R EFR
investing activities 158 (98,179) (69,198)
Repayment of a loan to a director WEHRF—REE2ER 62,000 73,000
Net cash flows from investing activities KEEHMEREREFEE 607,052 282,805
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ® &2 &8R&nE%
Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZE— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M3 FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RELBMBHERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of shares for cancellation BB D R 8 32 - (71,798)
Capital contributions from FERRFFE
non-controlling shareholders 24,719 63,801
New bank loans MIRTTER 116,982 115,330
New other borrowings EHAMETE R = 4,152
Repayments of bank loans BEIRITER (39,581) (72,030)
Interest paid BEAFLE (21,565) (4,148)
Repayment of other loans EEEMER (3,905) -
Increase in an amount due to FEATIE R AR BR SR 1B
non-controlling shareholders 0 4,565 -
Increase in restricted bank balances BRI ERTT A S IG N 30 (5,706) -
Net cash flows from financing activities MEEESAEREREFHE 75,509 35,307
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH REPREFEMIEINFER
EQUIVALENTS 330,493 233,390
Cash and cash equivalents FUHeRESEED
at beginning of year 471,175 218,028
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [EXRE )7 £ 558 (37,550) 19,757
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRIBENMBEEEEY
AT END OF YEAR 764,118 471,175
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND & RIS ZEWMEH DT
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances R e RRITER 363,182 128,901
Time deposits TEBITFER 400,936 342,535
Cash and cash equivalents as stated frEMBARRKRARZ
in the consolidated statement of ReERBLZED
financial position 764,118 471,436
Non-pledged time deposits and principal R EVSH R 2IHI A BB =1 A
protected structured deposits with 2B TEBRERRRA
original maturity of over three months ElEARES
when acquired - (261)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated BERSRERMTLZ
in the consolidated statement of ReERBLEED
cash flows 764,118 471,175
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 3 2R B

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited
(the "Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its shares have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 26 April 2002. The registered address of the
Company is Century Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drives, P.O.
Box 2681 GT, Grand Cayman, British West Indies.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “"Group”) were involved in the provision of
medical care, health care and geriatric care related services and
products in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

In the opinion of the directors, the major shareholder of the
Company is Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited ("BPHL"),
which was incorporated in Bermuda, ultimately held by Beijing
Enterprises Group Company Limited and the shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange.

AEIREEER

B RRREXEBEGRAA([AR
ADARASESTMK I BRAF
EROHBEZTEZ_FMNAZ+BRESR
BEERSGABR AR ([BAZF]) ERE
M o ANRA Az ik % Century Yard,
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drives, P.O.
Box 2681 GT, Grand Cayman, British
West Indies °

FA - ARBREMBAR (5[ A%
B DRPEARKAMBE(THE])RHE
B RELREZABERERES

BEERR ARAIERRA/ILERGE
BOBRAR(MERER]) - ERERRN
BREZMAY - At REREEARA
BIREFE - BB L

Information about subsidiaries EEHBARZER
Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Name and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
EMEL/ BRTLER/
&8 aRREERS EftRE  ARFEGEEESL  TERE
Direct Indirect
BE Bk
United Win International Corporation British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$100 100% - Investment holding
("United Win")® Hong Kong
EBRREE/EE LBR100%T REER
IRBREREFABRAT PRC/Mainland China Registered capital = 100%  Investment management
(Beijing Zhong Cheng Hu Lian RMB30,000,000 consulting
Investment Advisory Co., Ltd.*)®* hE /PR AMERARKE HEEEEH
30,000,0007T
FEMEREEEERAR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital = 100%  Investment holding
(Shanghai Chongyuan Investment RMB20,000,000
Management Company Limited*)* B/ E R AMERARKE REER
20,000,0007t
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf &z it
Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZE— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

1.

RAREEER (&)
FENBEAR2EN (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Name and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
ZMEL/ BRATLER/
£ afREELE EfRE FNAEGEEASL TEXE
Direct Indirect
B EfES
FREN T EE R EREEAA PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital = 70%  Property investment
(Beijing Dragon Ground Arts & Crafts RMB90,000,000
Limited*)®* E/HERL EMERARE ESIS
90,000,0007T
I REAER R ER AR PRC/Mainland China ~ Registered capital = 82.24%  Medical and related
(Beijing Inland Port International RMB199,095,322 property development
Logistics Co., Ltd.*)%& FRE /R E R AMERARKE BEREBENERE
199,095,3227T
TREREEEEERAT PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital = 60%  Trading of geriatric care
(Beijing Weisen Prosperity Furniture RMB50,000,000 related fumniture
Limited*)®" B/ E R HMERARE BERZHM
50,000,0007T
FTRRERERAERAA PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital = 60%  Trading of geriatric care
(Beijing Kangai Geriatric Fumiture RMB20,000,000 related fumniture
Co., Ltd.*®" mE /BN AMERARYK BEERZKM,
20,000,0007T
BREBRSARRREERN PRC/Mainland China ~ Registered capital = 51%  Home-based geriatric care
BRAR(EARE)) RMB42,857,143
(Fujian Fu Ling Golden Sun Health and HE/ RER AMERARE Ex&E
Geriatric Company Limited*, 42,857,143710
"Golden Sun")®"
ABEEREEEHEREARAF PRC/Mainland China ~ Registered capital = 60%  Real estate development
(Dali Guangchen Real Estate RMB30,000,000
Development Co., Ltd.)®" FRE /R E R AMERARKE RHERE
30,000,0007T
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Notes to Financial Statements ® B &Rz Izt
Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZE— \F+_A=+—HILFE

2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

L Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of

the Ernst & Young global network

Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law
Registered as limited liability companies under PRC law
Registered as a Sino-foreign joint venture under PRC law

The English names of the above companies represent the best efforts
by management of the Company in directly translating the Chinese
names of these companies as no English names have been registered

or available.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“"HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“"HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties, financial assets at FVPL, equity investments
designated at FVOCI and contingent consideration payables,
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

2.1

BEIJING ENTERPRISES MEDICAL AND HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED 1t BEREEXEEER AR

RAREEER (&)
FEMBRAR2ER(E)

J REBBRKALRKRRBPR A KB RA
Eiz

E REPEEEZMAIEBELE
REFEEEZMABRAF
g REBEFBEAREMATIEGEDRE

* PRARMEXEHIARAEEEEZAKN
BREAFZPXELHERTE  RE
HERF W EAM L AIISOESCER o

ERIHEFERARIBREREBAEE
EKEFIMREEFEEAR D 2 ANAAM
BAE - EFERE - MY HEMHE AR
ZHBREHERERITE

ZEVBHRRDREELGTMAG([EF
AEIEAE ) BMNT B BHELER
(IEEHBREEA D (ERTREERE
FEMBHRELER - BAGTEUER
SRR RRE) BERARETREA
REBRAGI 2 HBERERE - ZEH
BHREROBREBEELKAETRER - HRA
FEAENREDE  BBBmUARFE
IRz ERMEE  BERBBEMEENK
SARFEINRZ BERE RIABMNK
BRI - ZEPBHRRAET(IATDEZ
5 MEREEAIN - FREBEIARSE
REAH TR -



Notes to Financial Statements ® Bfi§#HR& Mt 2
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE I

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 RBEE(E)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2018. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

mEEE
GEMBHRREBBEARRLEME QR
ECE-N\F+_A=+—HILFENH
BHRK - MBRAR /AR R HENFEEE
HOER(BEEBILEER) - EAEER
SHEBEHERNEBM A LB ERESATE
B - WHENBEBHREHRHEN (A
BT AKEEMEEREHRBAEHRN
EENMBRARMN) FEZFLEE - MRS
BEAYESIRE -

HARBEELEERAINREHRAK
ZHRERELENOERN - AAEER
AHEEERHEHREHRNENREE
BE—UHR=ERER - 84

(a) BEREHSEBEBEFRAANEGLY
ZHE

b) EMADTHMETHERN &
© ARENERERLEEREE-

B8 A R B 5 R T IR AR R — 2
BERREHABRER - WBARMNESE
HAEERGEFHZEERREAFE X
BBSAFE BEEZERRELZAR
1k e

BfE g EHrtIE R ERER - B
mREMEERENSEEXTDDEE
BRAKRERRRHEE AR -
FERAEERENAMZSEBNER
ARBIREENBE - #m - A - AX
ERERENERAREF2HIKME -

HEERBERER R =TRES T RSP
M—HXZELTEAEY  AAKEEE
MAEERTRAREHROERE -1
ME AR A RN E ) (W EKEE
BRARE RS o
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Notes to Financial Statements ® 81 7%

AR T

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs

for the first time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

HKFRS ¢ Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28

2014-2016 Cycle

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 4 and Annual
Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle, which are not relevant to the
preparation of the Group's financial statements, the nature and
the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs are described below.

2.1

2.2
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B EE ()
REEE(E)

1h$¢l§'€£%¢%%@ﬂﬂﬂ’?%ﬂié - Rl

BRIFBROMBLAANEE(BRREEER) R
,\%: (ii) (£ f] FE 4% I #E 25 ) BR TELME &
(et A e ) RETIE X 258 5 WHERR()
WREBHAFE: (VENBEFEENRA $

B RGiEmMEELHABROEMNR
e ERNEMEAKRAC RN REE
EEBOEETEERN  BRHAKEE
BEHERBEERABEMEBRNBEREE
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Notes to Financial Statements ® B ¥R &5+
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 2 address three main areas:
the effects of vesting conditions on the measurement
of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the
classification of a share-based payment transaction with
net settlement features for withholding a certain amount
in order to meet an employee’s tax obligation associated
with the share-based payment; and accounting where
a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-
based payment transaction changes its classification from
cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments clarify
that the approach used to account for vesting conditions
when measuring equity-settled share-based payments
also applies to cash-settled share-based payments. The
amendments introduce an exception so that a share-
based payment transaction with net share settlement
features for withholding a certain amount in order to meet
the employee’s tax obligation is classified in its entirety as
an equity-settled share-based payment transaction when
certain conditions are met. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction are modified, with the
result that it becomes an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction, the transaction is accounted for
as an equity-settled transaction from the date of the
modification. The amendments have had no impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group as
the Group does not have any cash-settled share-based
payment transactions and has no share-based payment
transactions with net settlement features for withholding
tax.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing
together all three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 prospectively, and
has recognised the transition adjustments against the
applicable opening balances in equity at 1 January 2018.
Therefore, the comparative information was not restated
and continues to be reported under HKAS 39.

Classification and measurement

The following information sets out the impacts of
adopting HKFRS 9 on the statement of financial position,
including the effect of replacing HKAS 39’s incurred credit
loss calculations with HKFRS 9's expected credit losses
("ECLs").

2.2 S BRERKESD ()

(a)
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B-EAX2#HE REKTHIE
NREBEUBRD N ZZHNE
2 REBBTHEIURNX(SIEE
ZHMBEEMBEHE T EENAE
FHEABEZUBRO XN ZRS
WO REABRON N 2R 560
GRRGEHERSED BHREHE
EEOREGEE ZETRMAR -
ZEERTRIF A EREEE AR
AT 2 FRIB R 5B R ABRTTE
THERRIR S EEARD 25K
B o ZFHERI S A—EBISMER
ENEETHER  REEETH
BEEMBANET2ENAFFHE
REBEZUBNDINZRS T3
BENBERABRBEEARN M2
R5 o Wo  ZBEEREE - WA
SREEUNBEN XN ZRXBNERK

BERERT » SERRBREAEEIL
B 2X5 AR5 BaER]

FAHEERREGEIS AR - %
FEARHTEHAKE 2 MR
MERRELEAMEATE - RA
RAEELBEMURSEE K
25 HEEMKRENR
BFRBERENURN N ZR
5 e

EBUBREENEIRLBLTAR
—F-\F—A-ANZERHZ
FEHHBMAES BIHRAEIY
SMTA: BARHE EESR
TRAGHEEN=ANE: HER
HE OMEREEE -

AEBECRAREREERRER
B MEEREIN  WERZE
—NF-A—-—BEERZERH
REATEZEEEHE - Fit - AT E
ERERNT BB ABEERES
B EFTERIEIRRELW

DERFE

AT ER &SN RANT BN B wELE
AFBIRBMBIMAKNOTE - B
BREMBRELEANEOREMEER
B(EAEEERDBRELESS
EAEVFCELEEBETEN

=474
B o

F %% ANNUAL REPORT 2018

85



86

Notes to Financial Statements ® B 5K MisE
Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZE— \F+_A=+—HILFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

(continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)

A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under
HKAS 39 and the balances reported under HKFRS 9 as at
1 January 2018 is as follows:

2.2 S ERERRESS ()

(b) (&)
DEREHE (M)
R-E—NE—A—0  EEEH
RAIEHET HEEEREBY
B ERI BRI T A2 BB

ZHEROT
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
measurement measurement
BAGHEASRIHE BRUBRERASIRE
Re-
Category Amount classification ECL Amount Category
E5l 8 ENSE  EHGEEE Ea | E5
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
st FiEn FiEn FiEn Fin
Financial assets SHEE
Equity investments designated AERERENZE FvoCk
at Fvocl W ATEDE N/A FREM2ENG
LERRE TR - 79,886 - 79,886 ATE5I
From: Available-for-sale investments & : A/ HERE (i) 8,126 -
From: Financial assets at FVPL g ARERNATE
Iz EBEE (i) 71,760 -
Available-for-sale investments TRIERE AFS! N/A
AfRLE 46,151 (46,151) - . TEE
To: Equity investments designated % : BT ABBEM
st FvoCl AANENATE
G EERE ) (8.126) -
To: Financial assets at FVPL EERERNATE
Tz eHEE (i) (38,025) -
Trade receivables BRBSE L&R? AC?
SR RERER 28,305 - (115 28210 2y
Due from related parties ERERAE L&R AC
ERRERET 149,832 - - 149,832 BHAA
Financial assets included in TABRHE £
prepayments, other receivables EUTEREMEE L&R AC
and other assets LEREE ERRENER 766,863 - - 766,863 B#mK
Financial assets at FVPL FEERNATEIR FyPLS FVPL
LEHEE FRER iyolar
DUNSERES 104,607 (33,739) - 70,872 WATESIR
From: Available-for-sale investments B : (It HERE (i) 38,025 -
To: Equity investments designated % : BT ABBEM
at voCl FENENATE
GG BERE (i) (71,760) -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEEN AC
47143 - - 471,43 £
1,567,214 - (11) 1,567,099

BEIJING ENTERPRISES MEDICAL AND HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED 1t EBEREEXEEER AT



Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf &z it
Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZE— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

" ‘W&

2.2 S ERERRESS ()

(continued) b) (#&)
Classification and measurement (continued) DERFE(E)
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
measurement measurement
ERETESEIRHE ERUBREEUEIRITE
Category Amount Amount Category
LY &8 &8 Ep]
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAR FAT
Financial liabilities SRBE
Trade payables ERESER AC AC
BEHA 16,878 16,878 BERA
Contract liabilities included in other 5t A Efth B 5B & AC AC
payables and accruals EHERZANEE B - 26,085 3N
Other financial liabilities included &t A HhER B R
in other payables and accruals B ER 2B AC AC
SHERE BRI 118,230 92,145 BN
Interest-bearing bank and AT REMER AC AC
other borrowings BHIK 243,044 243,044 BHA
Due to a related party [ —2BERHE AC AC
BEHRA 36,558 36,558 B A
414,710 414,710
Other liabilities HttB &
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHERE 137,196 137,196
1 AFS: Available-for-sale investments 1 AEEE  THEERE
2 L&R: Loans and receivables 2 B RERERR - BERRERIRRK
3 AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at amortised cost 3 B  IREEK AT ENERE
B
< FVOCI: Financial assets at fair value through other 4 FREMEEBEAANTFESE B
comprehensive income BEAMEEBRNAATESIERZ 2/
BiE
5 FVPL: Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 5 FRBRARTEIIEE : FiBEEA

AFEINEZEREE

F %% ANNUAL REPORT 2018

87



88

Notes to Financial Statements ® B &Rz Izt
Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZE— \F+_A=+—HILFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

(continued)
Classification and measurement (continued)

Notes:

@i

(ii)

(iii)

The Group has elected the option to irrevocably designate
certain of its equity investments previously classified as
available-for-sale investments as equity investments designated
at FVOCI.

The Group has reclassified its unlisted investments previously
classified as available-for-sale investments as financial assets at
FVPL as these equity investments did not pass the contractual
cash flow characteristics test and held for trading in HKFRS 9.

The Group has elected the option to irrevocably designate
certain of its equity investments previously classified as financial

assets at FVPL as equity investments designated at FVOCI.

Impairment
The following table reconciles the aggregate opening

impairment allowances under HKAS 39 to the ECL

allowances under HKFRS 9. Further details are disclosed in

notes 23 and 24 to the financial statements.

2.2 S ERERRESS ()

b) (&)

PERTTE(E)

BT

(i) AEEBEBETAI RS IEERET
BEZO\RITHEERE 2 ERIR
ERIEEAEBEMEERGEIAATF
B ERIEE -

(i) AEBEESHBTHEATHDER
B LMREEFHRABBER
AAFESRZ CMEE  REAZ
SRFREWEBRBSWHREE
AEIRZEHNBREREBFEAR -
BURSBENESR -

(i) AEBEDRETARBEMIETEET
BEZAPRABEBEBEZUAFENRE
CEMEEZRSREREERER
Hb 2wl AT EIRz EmiE
>§ °

A

TERAERBEEESTEAFEINRA

YR EREERERBEEENE

WEEEENBHEEEIBRE

ZEE BRI HREW

FE23 K24 F -

Impairment
allowances ECL allowances

under HKAS 39
at 31 December

under HKFRS 9
at 1 January

2017 Re-measurement 2018
RZB-N\&

-A—H

R-Z—tfF BEEENE
+=ZA=+-H HREER
BEEEET E-LEA)
RIS 39% BHEE
HRERE Bt ERRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THET FET

Trade receivables EWE SRR - 115 115

BEIJING ENTERPRISES MEDICAL AND HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED 1t BEREEXEEER AR



Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf &z it
Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZE— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2.2

DISCLOSURES (continued)
(b)  (continued)

Impact on reserves and accumulated losses
The impact of transition to HKFRS 9 on reserves and

accumulated losses is as follows:

B ERRRKESD ()

(b) (&)
HRERRTBERZZE
BEERABMBREEEORE
BRRFBRZZENT

Reserves
and
accumulated
losses
RERRTEE
HK$'000
FHET
Fair value reserve under HKFRS 9 BERAMBERELERFIREBT 2 AP ERE
(available-for-sale investment revaluation (BRETEAFEIRE N 2AHHE
reserve under HKAS 39) REEHFHE)
Balance as at 31 December 2017 BRI B ERE395RE
under HKAS 39 RZE—tF+_A=+—HZ&#% -
Reclassification of financial assets from BemEERBBBIUATEYR Y
financial assets at FVPL to equity ERMEEEMOAARETEREBEM
investments designated at FVOCI 2ER@EARNTEINRZ ERIZE 51,967
Balance as at 1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 BIEREVEREELERTE
RZB-NF—RA—HZH&EH 51,967
Capital reserve BEXRHE
Balance as at 31 December 2017 RIEE B ERE3951E
under HKAS 39 RIEBE—+FE+-_A=1+—RH &% 3,212
Share of effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 of D — B L N RIR AN E B SRS R
an associate FORzTE 545
Balance as at 1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 RIEF B R E LR FERTE
RZZE-N\F-—A—R2&#% 3,757
Accumulated losses 2 BB
Balance as at 31 December 2017 BIERESTEREIRTE
under HKAS 39 RZE—tF+_A=+—RAZ&H (196,468)

Recognition of expected credit losses for
trade receivables under HKFRS 9

Reclassification of financial assets at FVPL to
equity investments designated at FVOCI

Share of effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 of

RBEBBU B REEREIHR
HRRKE ZEFNRREREER (115)
REBBERARNFEIRZEREE

BEMOBEAEER
AR FET IR 2 1

FREMEE S
HIE (51,967)

DG — A R RIRAN BB SRS 2R

an associate FBPHR B (545)
Balance as at 1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 iRIBEBFBH ISR EERIFEo5FTE
RZE-N\F—-—A—RAZH&H (249,095)
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf#5iR &+
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11
Construction Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related
interpretations and it applies, with limited exceptions,
to all revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services
to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The disclosures are included
in notes 3 and 5 to the financial statements. As a result of
the application of HKFRS 15, the Group has changed the
accounting policy with respect to revenue recognition in
note 2.4 to the financial statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption. Under this method,
the standard can be applied either to all contracts at the
date of initial application or only to contracts that are not
completed at this date. The Group has elected to apply
the standard to contracts that are not completed as at 1
January 2018.

The cumulative effect of the initial application of HKFRS
15 was recognised as an adjustment of HK$1,017,000 to
the opening balance of accumulated losses as at 1 January
2018. Therefore, the comparative information was not
restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 11,
HKAS 18 and related interpretations.

2.2 S BRERKESD ()

(c)
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf &z it
Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZE— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c)

(continued)

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial
statement line item was affected as at 1 January 2018 as a
result of the adoption of HKFRS 15:

2.2 S ERERRESS ()

(c)

(&)
TX&#EIN-_ZE-NF—H—H
RAFBVHREERF 1SR MEY
BEMBHRABERTEZSE

Increase/
(decrease)
i, CRd)
Notes HK$'000
M5 FHT
Assets BE
Investments in associates REEREZIKE (iii) (790)
Total assets BEE (790)
Liabilities afE
Other payables — contract liabilities HtEMNRE-GNEaE (ii) 26,085
Other payables - receipt in advance H e 5 E — BB (ii) (26,085)
Other liabilities — non-current HtBE—-ERD (i) 227
Total liabilities HaE 227
Equity fE®
Accumulated losses REtEE (i), (i) 1,017
1,017

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial
statement line item was affected as at 31 December 2018
and for the year ended 31 December 2018 as a result of
the adoption of HKFRS 15. The adoption of HKFRS 15 has
had no impact on other comprehensive income or on the
Group's operating, investing and financing cash flows. The
first column shows the amounts recorded under HKFRS 15
and the second column shows what the amounts would
have been had HKFRS 15 not been adopted:

TYXHEHIWA_ZE—NFE+ A
=t+t—BREE=ZZ—N\F+=A
= +—HIFERFENE BT B R
EEREISTEME ST BHRERIEBE
EREEZ SR c WD BY SR
EEAEISHFEHE M2 mKERA

SEMNEE REMBERDRE
TEXE - F-WERSRBEREY
BHRELNEISHEARNESRE - M
F_WBRSNELBRAT BV

WEERF ISR ARN DR
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Notes to Financial Statements ® B &Rz Izt
Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZE— \F+_A=+—HILFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c)

(continued)

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December

2.2 S ERERRESS ()

(© (&)

HE-_ - N\F+-_A=+—H1It
FEZHGEABERREMEEKER

2018:
Amounts prepared under
BREATEAGFERNEEE
Previous Increase/
HKFRS 15 HKFRS (decrease)
ERMBRE AMEBMK
ER|E155 HEER MmO
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
= FET FET FET
Revenue WA (i) 178,885 180,011 (1,126)
Cost of sales SHE AR (121,639) (121,639) -
Gross profit EF 57,246 58,372 (1,126)
Share of losses of an associate DME—FEBE QR ZEE (i) 17,294 16,040 1,254
Profit before tax BT BT E 91,157 93,537 (2,380)
Income tax expense FEHiAY (60,244) (60,244) -
Profit for the year FEGEH 30,913 33,293 (2,380)
Attributable to: THIAL R,

Owners of the parent FRFAEAA (), (iii) 43,450 45,380 (1,930
Non-controlling interests eI AR i 2 (i) (12,537) (12,087) (450)
30,913 33,293 (2,380)

Earnings per share attributable &2 A& B

to ordinary equity holders BEANEGER

of the parent B

Basic and diluted EARKEE HKO0.72 cents HKO.76 cents  HK(0.04) cents
0.7271 0.7671l (0.04) 7L

BEIJING ENTERPRISES MEDICAL AND HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED 1t BEREEXEEER AR



Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf &z it
Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZE— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2.2 S BERBESE (E)

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(¢)  (continued) () (#&)
Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 RZE-—NF+-—A=+—HHEK
December 2018: GBI -

Amounts prepared under

REUATERGEROSH

Previous Increase/
HKFRS 15 HKFRS (decrease)
BERMERE AMEBME
ERSE155 HEER ®MCRD)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B s FAT FAT FAT
Investments in an associate N—EBERR 2 RE (iii) 500,897 502,941 (2,044)
Total assets HBEE 3,752,718 3,754,762 (2,044)
Other payables - contract Hofth FE A RRIE
liabilities —AHEE (if) 37,612 - 37,612
Other payables - receipt in Hih B RIEA
advance —B UK (ii) - 37,612 (37,612)
Other liabilities — non-current  EM B & —FE5EE) (i 4,047 2,694 1,353
Total liabilities BEE 619,673 618,320 1,353
Net assets BESFE 3,133,045 3,136,442 (3,397)
Accumulated losses 2:tEE (M, (i) 201,787 198,931 2,856
Non-controlling interests JEIE AR M e (i) 285,078 285,619 (541)
Total equity s 3,133,045 3,136,442 (3,397)
The nature of the adjustments as at 1 January 2018 and the RZEBE-NF-A—BHRABMLE

UWEZZE—-—N\F+ZA=+—H8H
BHRRAEEE—_ZE—N\EFE+=A
T+—HLFEMNEZAREHN
REHFINAT -

reasons for the significant changes in financial position as
at 31 December 2018 and profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2018 are described below:
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Notes to Financial Statements ® B &Rz Izt
Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZE— \F+_A=+—HILFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(continued)

(c)

(i)

Warranty obligations in sale of furniture
The Group generally provides for warranties for
general repairs of 3 to 5 years based on statutory
requirements and product features, and does
not provide extended warranties in its contracts
with customers. As such, most existing warranties
are assurance-type warranties under HKFRS 15,
which the Group accounts for under HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, consistent with its practice prior to the
adoption of HKFRS 15. However, in certain non-
standard contracts, the Group provides extended
warranties, which were accounted for under HKAS
37 prior to the adoption of HKFRS 15. Under HKFRS
15, such warranties are service-type warranties
and, therefore, are accounted for as separate
performance obligations to which the Group
allocates a portion of the transaction price. Revenue
is subsequently recognised over time based on the
time elapsed. Accordingly, upon adoption of HKFRS
15 at 1 January 2018, contract liabilities included
in other liabilities-non-current were increased
by HK$227,000 with a corresponding increase in
accumulated losses of HK$227,000.

As at 31 December 2018, the adoption of HKFRS
15 resulted in an increase in contract liabilities
included in other liabilities-non-current of
HK$1,353,000, in accumulated losses of HK$812,000
and a decrease in non-controlling interests of
HK$541,000, respectively. Revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2018 was also decreased by
HK$1,126,000.

2.2 S BRERKESD ()

(c)

BEIJING ENTERPRISES MEDICAL AND HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED 1t BEREEXEEER AR
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf &z it
Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZE— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(¢)  (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Consideration received from customers in
advance

Before the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group
recognised consideration received from customers
in advance as other payables. Under HKFRS 15, the
amount is classified as contract liabilities which is
included in other payables and accruals.

Therefore, upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group
reclassified HK$26,085,000 from receipts in advance
included in other payables to contract liabilities
included in other payables as at 1 January 2018
in relation to the consideration received from
customers in advance as at 1 January 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, under HKFRS 15,
HK$37,612,000 was reclassified from receipts in
advance included in other payables to contract
liabilities included in other payables in relation
to the consideration received from customers in
advance for the sale of furniture and the provision of
services.

Other adjustments

In addition to the adjustments described above,
other items of the primary financial statements
such as non-controlling interests, share of loss of
an associate and investment in an associate were
adjusted as necessary. Accumulated losses were
adjusted accordingly.

2.2 S ERERRESS ()

(c)

(#8)
(ii)

(iii)

HEEEFHREHKE

REEMB BB RELERF15
SRAT > AREREELEERPK
BB BE R R H At B 5K
H o RIBBRABVHRE LS
15%  BRAFRENER/ENE
&+ Wat AE M5B R E
&M -

Et - RERE SIS RE%E
BIZE155R1%8 MR =T —N\F
—A—BELEEPIKEHR
BmE  AEBR-_Z—N\F
—A— BB A A B RIE
2 B 3k 89 26,085,000 7T
B HBEE AL MERMNFRIE
ZEHBE-

RZE—NFE+ZA=+—
A REESHBHREELSE
155% » BEEH B RN RIRH AR
BmELEB P WK EM
T RTAEMEMAFKEZER
3R H 37,612,000 T E EH
DPEEFTARMENREZE
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d)

Amendments to HKAS 40 clarify when an entity should
transfer property, including property under construction
or development, into or out of investment property. The
amendments state that a change in use occurs when
the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the change
in use. A mere change in management’s intentions for the
use of a property does not provide evidence of a change
in use. The amendments have had no impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 provides guidance on how to determine
the date of the transaction when applying HKAS 21 to
the situation where an entity receives or pays advance
consideration in a foreign currency and recognises
a non-monetary asset or liability. The interpretation
clarifies that the date of the transaction for the purpose
of determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or
part of it) is the date on which an entity initially recognises
the non-monetary asset (such as a prepayment) or non-
monetary liability (such as deferred income) arising from
the payment or receipt of the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance of
recognising the related item, the entity must determine
the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration. The interpretation has had no
impact on the Group's financial statements as the Group's
accounting policy for the determination of the exchange
rate applied for initial recognition of non-monetary assets
or non-monetary liabilities is consistent with the guidance
provided in the interpretation.

2.2 S BRERKESD ()

(d)
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

23 CHEMEERERZERBYBR
HEER

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 (2011)
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Definition of a Business?

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Leases'

Insurance Contracts®

Definition of Material?

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement!

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
HKAS 12 and HKAS 23!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

d Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to be
considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input
and a substantive process that together significantly contribute
to the ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create
outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the business and
continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether
acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to
focus on goods or services provided to customers, investment
income or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional fair
value concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively
from 1 January 2020.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 23 CHEMEENARAENM 2T B KR

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15
Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two elective recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-
term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the
lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use
asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the revaluation model is applied. The lease
liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the
lease liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will
be required to separately recognise the interest expense on
the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-
of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as
change in the lease term and change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16
is substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS
17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees
and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under HKAS
17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard using either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The Group
will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The Group plans to
adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16 to recognise the
cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings at 1 January 2019 and will
not restate the comparatives. In addition, the Group plans to
apply the new requirements to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and measure the lease
liability at the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the Group's incremental borrowing rate at
the date of initial application. The right-of-use asset will be
measured at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the lease recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before the date of initial application. The Group
plans to use the exemptions allowed by the standard on lease
contracts whose lease terms end within 12 months as of the date
of initial application. During 2018, the Group has performed a
detailed assessment on the impact of adoption of HKFRS 16. The
Group has estimated that right-of-use assets of HK$3,790,000
and lease liabilities of HK$3,790,000 will be recognised at 1
January 2019.

HER (&)

BV BREEAZ16RMAE BT E
AIE17RHEE  FE (BB BERERE
2B -RBRIETHEL M
E ABE(EURBZES) —RBE15
GREHE-EBENTE(LRREZE
G)-RBRRAEHRAEXFEEA
RLBZAE o ZENHIIER HE 2
JIRFBEMEE ZRA - W ESEBE ALK
SHHERREERAE - REABRR
THAEAMBEAENEZRH L —KEEE
ERENGHMES - NEEFRKAY - &
HABERNEEHAXNEERIAZA
BEVEERE) RKKRIEREEEREL
BEEREEE) - RIHERBEEN
AEERENFZIORANREYELZES
FEE[REVERNYE - BERRER
RIAERE - DAEMEEEERERKARR
AEREMRERSENE - HEAEH
BILREHERREEEENBAIE MR
A HEERBEMBL o &HEAKED 5
ERHEABRZHNERXEREEE Y
FEAX - ABATARETEMHHELR
EFTEMHERE  HINaREENESE
FARBEEARBEREZ —BERALL
KBEMIBRERRAEE - ARANBE
HEMTERNEARZ SERA/EER
BEEZHE -BEUBREENE165%
BTZHEAGTREEEEGT LS
17RETEE LW ESEAED - HEAS
BENAERGHENE1TRAZE—D
BRAGHERESR YEROKLEH
ELBERE - BAVBREEF 165
ERFAMARHEAEEREL G LR
FVURAREZESWE - BEARNEE
158 A 2 T 00 0 14 aX AR 12 B B M 1 75 K B
ZIRE - AEEKE _T—AF—H—H
REAEEMBHREERE 165 - NEH
TEERAE AN BREEF 165 AER
BE - BEREANIFFERIA/ERN
—F-NEF-A-BRBRNBVEHRD
HE - ARTEEIILLERT - o K
SEHIBHRERANEANCEAETE
SEPERF17EMBR ASHEENSLD - I

MERAEERERERABHMIEESEE
FIEBIR - FAREESEHEAGESSE
e WIRBEENERB B EMBER
MEFERERERENTABEMN K ERT
FENRESEETAE - AEEFEER
AR AN E X EABSEMNI2EAR
ERNAEGHNRERTE - RN
F o AEECRERE BT HHRELRE
165N B EITHENTE - NEEAH
3,790,000 T #Y {8 FA #& & & K& 3,790,000
Eﬁ%ﬂ%%%%%:%—nifﬁ—a
MR o

F %% ANNUAL REPORT 2018

99



100

Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf#5iR &+
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition
of material. The new definition states that information is
material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify that materiality
will depend on the nature or magnitude of information. A
misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions made by the primary users. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2020. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion
of HKFRS 9 only includes interests in an associate or joint
venture to which the equity method is applied and does
not include long-term interests that in substance form part
of the net investment in the associate or joint venture, to
which the equity method has not been applied. Therefore, an
entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28, including the
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9, in accounting for
such long-term interests. HKAS 28 is then applied to the net
investment, which includes the long-term interests, only in the
context of recognising losses of an associate or joint venture
and impairment of the net investment in the associate or joint
venture. The Group expects to adopt the amendments on 1
January 2019 and will assess its business model for such long-
term interests based on the facts and circumstances that exist
on 1 January 2019 using the transitional requirements in the
amendments. The Group also intends to apply the relief from
restating comparative information for prior periods upon
adoption of the amendments.
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2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes
(current and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty
that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often referred to
as "uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does not
apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor
does it specifically include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii) the
assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax
treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers
changes in facts and circumstances. The interpretation is to be
applied retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the
use of hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
application as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date
of initial application, without the restatement of comparative
information. The Group expects to adopt the interpretation
from 1 January 2019. The interpretation is not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture
(continued)

The Group’s investments in associates and a joint venture are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and a joint venture is
included in profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint venture are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates or joint
venture, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint venture is included as part of
the Group's investments in associates or joint venture.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted
for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon
loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or
loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within

equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements ® B ¥R &5+
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

2.4 TESTTHEBE(E)

DNFEFE

AEBERTREPRRAFEFERLRE
W BBREENUAATEIKRZERMEE
FMoEBHMEEB RN A FEIIRZ 2/
BE - AFEANGHERRMSE2EEH
ETNEFRZTHEEEMBRAER
BEMXNER - A FEFETDENT
EEESEBRABNRSINEELRERN
TEMHET  IERBEEMHNER
T AREEXRBENRENTHETH
R - TBAZAMNTHELARANEER]
EANTS -  BEXBBENAFEIER
MmIZ2EEREEXRBEEERFMANRK
RFB(REAMZLBEUTEREFREL

MW AITE)

EEMARNATEN SR —ATH
SREBBARARE AR AE LI
(ERA - SUBBISAR L E TRUBAR
EERRAEERBERENR—BDH
SRETI LSRR -

AR R A R RS B AL R 07
RBUELA B AT EOEESE - LB E
£ AR AT BRI AU R R (2
TABEE A -

R BHREREIWERFENMBEEE
LREBE HRBEATVEFSEEMEE
BERNRELNBABBETRAFES
RRHETORE

F—M — ERHEREEXBBENLE
IR RECREAR)

EH — ERYATVEFAENEBE
RO R (ER R E) &
KB m A BB BET A

E=F — ERYATVEFAENEBE
RN BREKEA R @A
FEMHETE

F %% ANNUAL REPORT 2018

105



106

Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf#5iR &+
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than financial
assets and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to Financial Statements ® 81 7%
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Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person

(i)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf#5iR &+
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings Over the shorter of the lease terms
and their estimated useful lives
ranging from 20 to 50 years

Leasehold improvements  20% to 33'/3%

20% to 33'/3%

Computer equipment 20%

20% to 33'/3%

Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf 753k s
Year ended 31 December 2018 HE —ZT— N\F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes;
or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end
of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change
in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under "Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” up
to the date of change in use, and any difference at that date
between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property
is accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy
stated under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation”
above. For a transfer from inventories to investment properties,
any difference between the fair value of the property at that
date and its previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf#5iR &+
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised.
The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life
assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in
the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Brand name

Brand name acquired as part of a business combination is
valued at fair value based on the royalty relief method. Brand
name with a indefinite useful life is tested for impairment
annually.

Computer software

Computer software is stated at cost less any impairment losses
and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of 10 years.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate
future economic benefits, the availability of resources to
complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line
basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products not
exceeding five to seven years, commencing from the date when
the products are put into commercial production.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the
Group under operating leases are included in non-current
assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases are
credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor
are charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018) ”
below.
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Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZE— \F+_A=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of
the following conditions are met:

. The financial asset is held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
when they meet the definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to
profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in profit
or loss when the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss,
or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at
fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets
with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and
interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding
the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, as
described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so
eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in profit or loss when the right of payment has
been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment
only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the
contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset
out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required
to be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss.

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit
or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBEBRE(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with positive net
changes in fair value presented as other income and gains and
negative net changes in fair value presented as finance costs in
profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not include any
dividends or interest earned on these financial assets, which are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)" below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in profit or
loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in profit
or loss in finance costs for loans and in impairment losses on
financial assets for receivables.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities
in this category are those which are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response
to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market
conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss in other income, or until the
investment is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to profit or loss in other gains or losses.
Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-
sale financial investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in profit or
loss as other income in accordance with the policies set out
for "Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)”
below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in
equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to
be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under

HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

(continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the

rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of

consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS

9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of
the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit

enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of

the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

E
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBEBRE(E)

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that
the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for trade receivables which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS
39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBEBRE(E)

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS
39 applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or
loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered,
the recovery is credited to administrative expenses in profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS
39 applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not
reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair
value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which
the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBEBRE(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable before
1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings, and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, an amount due to a related party and interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss does not include any interest
charged on these financial liabilities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable before
1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial
date of recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are
satisfied. Gains or losses on liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss, except
for the gains or losses arising from the Group's own credit risk
which are presented in other comprehensive income with no
subsequent reclassification to profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into
by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBEBRE(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable before
1 January 2018) (continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i)
the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as
set out in “Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018)"; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income recognised.

Financial guarantee contracts (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability
at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of (i) the amount of the best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS
39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS
39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Treasury shares
Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the
Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised directly
in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own
equity instruments.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value and comprise construction costs,
borrowing costs, professional fees and other costs directly
attributable to such properties incurred during the development
period.

Properties under development which have been pre-sold or
intended for sale and are expected to be completed within one
year from the end of the reporting period are classified under
current assets. On completion, the properties are transferred to
properties held for sale.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of
furniture for general repairs of defects occurring during the
warranty period. Provisions for these assurance-type warranties
granted by the Group are recognised based on sales volume
and past experience of the level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present values as appropriate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and a joint
venture, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and a joint
venture, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and released to profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group a
significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(a)  Sale of furniture
Revenue from the sale of furniture is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally upon completion of the installation
services.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January

2018) (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a)  Sale of furniture (continued)
Warranty obligations
The Group provides warranties that are either solely
assurance-type warranties or extended warranties, which
are service-type warranties, to a customer. The service-
type warranties can be obtained from other providers and
do not significantly customise or modify the products.

Contracts for bundled sales of furniture and service-type
warranties are comprised of two performance obligations
because the promise to transfer the furniture and provide
service-type warranties are capable of being distinct and
separately identifiable. Accordingly, the transaction price
is allocated based on the relative standalone selling prices
of the furniture and service-type warranties.

Revenue from service-type warranties is recognised over
time, using a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

(b)  Rendering of services
The Group provides medical care, health care and
geriatric care related services. These services are
rendered on their own contracts with customers. Revenue
from the rendering of services is recognised over the
time because the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from other sources
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January
2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) from the rendering of services, when the services are
rendered;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over lease
terms;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial assets; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 January 2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services
to a customer for which the Group has received a consideration
(or an amount of consideration that is due) from the customer.
If a customer pays the consideration before the Group transfers
goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due
(whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates several share option schemes and a
share award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group's operations. Employees (including directors) and
consultants of the Group receive remuneration in the form of
share-based payments, whereby employees and consultants
render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer
using a binomial model for share options and based on the
market value for share award. Further details of the fair values of
share options and awarded shares granted are given in note 33
to the consolidated financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
equity-settled share-based payment expenses together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which
the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions
at the end of each reporting period until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for all of its employees. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentages of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rate at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the no-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.

The functional currency of certain subsidiaries and associates
operating in Mainland China is the currency other than the
Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rate prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rate for the
year.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing
rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of subsidiaries operating in Mainland China
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of subsidiaries operating in Mainland China which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rate for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,

management has made the following judgements, apart from

those involving estimations, which have the most significant

effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group has applied the following judgements that

significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing

of revenue from contracts with customers:

(i)

(i)

Identifying performance obligations in a bundled sale of
furniture products and installation services

The Group provides installation services with the sale
of furniture products to customers. The Group assessed
that the installation services bundled together with the
sale of furniture are not distinct and are not separate
obligations under HKFRS 15, because the customers only
accept goods at the point when goods are delivered
and installation is completed. Therefore, the adoption of
HKFRS 15 did not have an impact on the timing of revenue
recognition.

Identifying warranty obligations in sale of furniture
products

The Group generally provides for warranties for general
repairs of 3 to 5 years based on statutory requirements
and product features, and does not provide extended
warranties in its contracts of sale of furniture products with
customers. However, in certain non-standard contracts,
the Group provides extended warranties. the Group
assessed that such warranties are service-type warranties
and therefore, are accounted for as separate performance
obligations to which the Group allocates a portion of the
transaction price. Revenue is subsequently recognised
over time based on the time elapsed.

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on

its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,

based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the

arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards

of ownership of these properties which are leased out on

operating leases.

3.

BREF B R A ()

F &
BRATESHAEIN  RERAKRESHK

RE - EEECFL TIHPBHREAD
EREHEABREATEN A

KEEFPEKZLA
AEECEANTREZEETRBER
B HH S T N 2 HIE

() BB —OF i E G E dn R KR
HYJERIE (T
AEEREFPREHZ KRS ERH
ERMEM - AREFERHBEER
L mm b — HHE A R KR IF
B MYFEBTEMBRELLSE
ISRETHELEE  REEEF
ERRXNEMRERLEZERE
TEERMER - Rt BREAH
T E RIS 1558 I B AR
BB RER TR

(i) BEIHEGREmARER T

REE—RLRETERERE M
MR —REBRMEIESFNR
& HAREERFZHERLEM
BHPUEREHERRFE - AW
EETHEEROD AREREMH
RERRE - AREFERFRE
RRBERE  BESERBURE
MEBEEARKR  MAKEEREDE
RHEBO— D - RRBRELB
BB R A o REE BN
% WARERAERER -

# L — AEEFERLHE
AEECHERENEAEITIRAME
B - AEBIZBZF R Z R IEM
ZAHEREE  REERBUEDREL
EHERLZMERARZMEEARR
K B3R o

F %% ANNUAL REPORT 2018

139



140

Notes to Financial Statements ® B &Rz Izt
Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZE— \F+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2018 was
HK$183,949,000 (2017: HK$212,874,000). Further details are
given in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

3.
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf &z it
Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZE— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments that have similar
loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type
and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of
credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults
in the trading sector, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer's actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note
23 to the financial statements.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(@) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect
those differences;
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Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties (continued)

(b)  recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred
at those prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms of
any existing lease and other contracts and (when possible)
by external evidence such as current market rents for
similar properties in the same location and condition,
and using discount rates that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing
of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December
2018 was HK$471,239,000 (2017: HK$381,625,000). Further
details, including the key assumptions used for fair value
measurement, are given in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. The amount of unrecognised tax
losses at 31 December 2018 was approximately HK$223,424,000
(2017: HK$277,195,000). Further details are contained in note 31
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZE— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair values of unlisted equity investments and a derivative instrument
The unlisted equity investments have been valued based on
a market-based valuation technique as detailed in note 43 to
the financial statements. The valuation requires the Group to
determine the comparable public companies (peers) and select
the price multiple. In addition, the Group makes estimates
about the discount for illiquidity and size differences. The Group
classifies the fair values of these investments as Level 3. The
derivative instrument has been valued based on the expected
cash flows discounted at current rates applicable for items with
similar terms and risk characteristics. This valuation requires the
Group to make estimates about expected future cash flows,
credit risk, volatility and discount rates and hence they are
subject to uncertainty.

The fair values of the unlisted equity investments and
a derivative instrument at 31 December 2018 were
HK$221,187,000 (2017: HK$32,847,000) and HK$1,156,000 (2017:
Nil), respectively. Further details are included in notes 20 and 26
to the financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZE— \F+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

Before 1 January 2018, the Group classified certain assets
as available for sale and recognised movements of their fair
values in equity. When the fair value declined, management
made assumptions about the decline in value to determine
whether there was an impairment that should be recognised
in profit or loss. At 31 December 2017, no impairment losses
had been recognised for available-for-sale assets. The carrying
amount of available-for-sale assets as at 31 December 2017 was
HK$46,151,000.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such an indicator
exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs
of disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm's length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing
of the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows
from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. Further details, including a sensitivity analysis of key
assumptions, are given in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Recognition of share-based compensation costs

The Company and some of its subsidiaries adopted their own
share award schemes and/or share option schemes. The fair
values of the awarded shares and options granted during the
year ended 31 December 2018 were valued by external valuers
based on a valuation model. The valuation requires the Group
to make estimates about the expected future cash flows, credit
risk, volatility and discount rates, and hence it is subject to
uncertainty. There were no awarded share and option granted
during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil). The share-
based compensation costs recognised during the year ended 31
December 2018 were HK$5,689,000 (2017: HK$17,758,000).

The grant of awarded shares and share options is conditional
upon the satisfaction of specified vesting conditions, including
the service period. Judgement is required to take into account
the vesting conditions and adjust the number of awarded shares
and share options included in the measurement of share-based
compensation costs.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group has one single operating
and reportable segment, which is the provision of medical care,
health care and geriatric care related services and products. All
of the Group's operating results are generated from this single
segment. During the year, the Group's non-current assets were
substantially all located in Mainland China.

Revenue of approximately HK$47,779,000 (2017: HK$45,975,000)
was derived from sale of goods to a single customer, including
sale to a group of entities which are known to be under common
control with that customer.

3.
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Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

WA - B AR K WS F R
BAZAWMT :

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers KERBEAHZWA 178,885 -
Sale of goods HESm = 115,843
Rendering of services R RS = 14,782
178,885 130,625
Revenue from contracts with customers KEEFEHZWA
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) AIPBAEHR
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-ZE-N\E+=-A=+—HL
FE
Total
HEt
HK$'000
FET
Type of goods or services REmRREELE D
Sale of goods 4% % m 160,729
Rendering of services R RS 15,884
Others Hih 2,272
Total revenue from contracts with customers  KABF A X 2 EULA 178,885
Geographical markets 15 T 35
Mainland China ==yEilaNprid 178,885
Timing of revenue recognition TR U A Y B
Goods transferred at a point in time RE—EEEZOE R 163,001
Services transferred over time & B R 82 2 Y AR 7% 15,884
Total revenue from contracts with customers ~ KEEF A X Z EILA 178,885
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AR
—N\E+ZA=t—BILEE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET
(continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations
Information about the Group's performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon the
completion of installation of goods and payment is
generally due within 30 to 90 days from delivery, except
for new customers, where a partial payment in advance is
normally required.

Warranty obligations in sales contracts

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and long-term advances are
normally required before rendering the services.

Rendering of services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due upon
completion of the service period.

The transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially

5. A

(ii)

H W A R W3 88 ()
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™

i
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RIE o

HEAAHEREE T

JB#) 3% 7% Th BE 4R 4L AR 7% 0 B R
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~
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RESRTROEECRERKE DR

unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2018 are as follows: ER)BRXSERET -
HK$'000
FET
More than one year BiE—F 1,353

The remaining performance obligations expected to
be recognised in more than one year relate to warranty
services that are to be satisfied within ten years.

HRTEORCTHEOERBERE—F1&
R BRERBEEBNBOEE
RTFEREK °
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5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA HtARWEFEE(E)
(continued)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FET FHET
Other income Hg A
Bank interest income ERITHBULA 8,718 6,159
Other interest income H b F B U A 33,143 33,363
Gross rental income He WAL 22,539 15,682
Dividend income % 24 A 20 574 1,435
Sundry income FIEUA 1,328 1,897
66,302 58,536
Gains/(losses) Wi (ER)
Fair value (losses)/gains on financial BiBEE AN FE R
assets at FVPL ZEREEZATE
(E518) Mz (2,575) 1,169
Fair value gains/(losses) on investment "EME L NFE 14
properties, net e,/ (F518) 38 76,991 (11,792)
Fair value gains/(losses) on financial SREBEEZATE
liabilities, net gk, /(518 ) 5458 2,631 (3,747)
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries HENB ARz 35 223,899 576,121
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME « BB LRE
plant and equipment BH &8 (110) (67)
Foreign exchange differences, net ME 5 R F R - 8,834
300,836 570,518
367,138 629,054
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. FBRBLATER R
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBZBRBATRFE B (GTA) T
(crediting): B8
2018 2017
—E-N\E S
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5E FHET FHET
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAK 112,136 76,306
Cost of services provided AR 9,503 6,752
Depreciation e 13 11,902 10,305
Amortisation of other intangible assets H b A 17 1,009 902
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TET £ 370 & B 8
payments 15 17,596 29,710
Less: Amount capitalised VA= VN o = = (12,594)
17,596 17,116
Impairment of goodwill* BEERE 16 28,925 -
Impairment of other intangible assets*  Hh & & ERE* 17 5,540 -
Minimum lease payments under KEHEE THRE
operating leases HERK 8,394 8,225
Auditor’s remuneration ZEA N & 1,600 1,500
Employee benefit expense (excluding EBEBAAZ (TeIE
directors’ and chief executive's EENTETHRAER
remuneration (note 8)): B (F17E8)) -
Wages and salaries IEKEHs 72,520 59,873
Equity-settled share-based IRIELEE AR B
payment expense BRI 974 2,259
Pension scheme contributions RIS EIHR
(defined contribution scheme)** (EREMHFETE)* 6,079 4,911
79,573 67,043
Equity-settled share-based payment AHABERREORESE
expense for consultancy services VARR 5 /2 R B85 R A S2 624 2,089
Foreign exchange differences, net EHEZFF 14,238 (8,834)
Impairment of financial assets*: TRIBEEME"
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE 5 R FORE 23 110 -
Impairment of financial assets included 5T AFEfTRUE -« HAth
in prepayments, other receivables FEYGRIE R A& =
and other assets ZeMEERE 24 15,710 -
15,820 -
Direct operating expenses (including HRESIREWMEM
repairs and maintenance) arising from EENEEZERY
rental-earning investment properties (PEEERE) 1,311 990

*%

The impairment of goodwill, other intangible assets and financial

assets are included in "Other expenses” in profit or loss.
At 31 December 2018, the Group had no forfeited contributions

available to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes scheme in

future years (2017: Nil).

* MERE  EMBEVEERSREETGA
REAE) [ -

** RIB-NF+ZA=+—R0B AEELE
BB MR A GRS EOR R F R AR R 2 5
BHR(—E—F |-
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Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZE— \F+_A=+—HILFE

7.

FINANCE COSTS

BE R A

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BERADFTWT :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMERZFE 16,315 11,408
Less: Interest capitalised B BEREFE (3,465) (7,045)
12,850 4,363
DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERIETHAEMSE
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and the chief executive’s remuneration for the AFEZEERFETBRABZHEIR
year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of BEABMAERSMARAGES LT
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the MBI EmARA]) - EBLABKRHIE
“Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong 383(1)(a) * (b) ~ () (D F - AR AR (HEE
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies EENRER)ROIE 25T T -
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Fees o 2,475 2,320
Other emoluments: Hi4 :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He - ZAEREMER 5,969 5,899
Performance related bonuses FRIRMEBEIEL 6,780 8,970
Equity-settled share option expense M s R AR ) =2 4,091 13,410
Pension scheme contributions RIS TR 337 322
17,177 28,601
19,652 30,921

In prior years, certain directors were granted share options, in
respect of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements. The fair value
of such options, which has been recognised in profit or loss over
the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and
the amount included in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the above directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration disclosures.
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Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE

8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

8.

L6y
L e
" 2 e
'i:';z.:' 7 »
i

EERFERTHRAEME (E)

(a) BAFHTES
FARBILFATESINz2EE

during the year were as follows: [N
Equity-
settled
share-based
payment Total
Fees expense remuneration
BELE
UMD ARER
Be AREX B & 485t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
2018 —E-N\F
Independent non-executive directors: FIFHTESE :
Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou RERKE 180 81 261
Mr. Wu Yong Xin RoKEEE 180 107 287
Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith EIpESites 180 107 287
Mr. Gary Zhao Mt 180 - 180
Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp" SR el 180 145 325
900 440 1,340
2017 —E—tF
Independent non-executive directors: BIUFHTES :
Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou REFELAE 160 166 326
Mr. Wu Yong Xin RoKFRAE 160 295 455
Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith Eip & Tiad 160 295 455
Mr. Gary Zhao LA 160 - 160
640 756 1,396
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8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EENRIETHAEM=(E)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors and a non-executive director (b) BITEER—ZBIHTESUR
and the chief executive FEITHAE
Equity-
Salaries, settled
allowances Performance  share-based Pension
and benefits related payment scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration
RELE
e 2% NRAGBEE  BfeHY
Be  RENEAN REEERL BESF3 5 Meast

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TiEn FiEn TER

2018 —E-N\E

Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Wang Zheng Chun IrEEEH 180 - - 662 - 842
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming FRAEE 180 - - 534 - 714
M. Zhu Shi Xing tREE 180 2,266 2,260 662 187 5,555
Mr. Gu Shan Chao BEBLL 180 1,839 2,260 662 150 5,091
Mr. Liu Xue Heng AZEEE 180 1,864 2,260 662 = 4,966
Mr. Hu Xiao Yong!! HEBEL0 135 - - - - 135
Mr. Hu Shiang Chi )b 180 - = 469 = 649
Mr. Qian Xu®® BB % 30 - - - - 30
Mr. Siu Kin Wai EREEL 180 - - - - 180
Mr. Hu Yebi BHEL W 150 = = = - 150

1,575 5,969 6,780 3,651 337 18,312
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Year ended 31 December 2018 HZE T — \FF+-_A=1+—HIEFE s *,'Q
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EENRIETHAEM=(E)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors and a non-executive director (b) BITEER—ZBIHTESUR
and the chief executive (continued) FETHAE(E)
Equity-
Salaries, settled
allowances  Performance  share-based Pension
and benefits related payment scheme Total
Fees inkind bonuses expense  contributions  remuneration
higgs
e M DRGORER  RicesE
e REWERN RREERA R 5 [l

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR ThL Thx Thr Tin TR

2017 “E-tE
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Wang Zheng Chun TEERE 165 - - 2,119 - 2,284
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming REREE 180 - - 1476 - 1,65
Mr. Zhu Shi Xing REELE 180 2,235 2990 2119 186 7,710
Mr. Gu Shan Chao BERAE 165 1822 2,99 2119 118 7214
Mr. Liu Xue Heng e Eb 165 1,842 2,990 2,119 18 7,134
Mr. Hu Xiao Yong'! BB LA 165 - - 1,060 - 1,225
Mr. Hu Shiang Chi i 165 - - 1,154 - 1,319
Mr. Qian Xu® BREED 105 - - - - 105
Mr. Siu Kin Wait EfeELan 105 - - - - 105
Mr. Hu Yebi®! il 105 - - - - 105
1,500 5,899 8,970 12,166 3 28,857
Non-executive director: FHTES !
Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp Skl 180 - - 488 - 668
1,680 5,899 8,970 12,654 32 29,525
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERIFETHAEME(E)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors and a non-executive director (b) BITEER—ZBIHTESUR
and the chief executive (continued) FETHAE(E)
There was no arrangement under which a director or FRUEEERFEITHABME
the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any SRAEMBEMNE 2L HE(BRER
remuneration during the year except for the arrangement T (i) 2 ZHEAN) ©
included in (iii) as below.
Notes: B 5
(i) Resigned on 2 October 2018 (i) RZZT—N\F+AZHET
(i) Appointed on 22 May 2017 (i) R —+tFRA-T-_BEEE
(i)  Resigned on 27 February 2019 and waived his salary from (i) RZTE-AFZRAZ-+EBEBERE
1 March 2018 of HK$150,000 on his own initiative, no PRERBE T N\F=ZA—HEZ
compensation to be paid in lieu of the waiver 150,000/7% ;B & - If £ 2 1< B & BA
KRB IERE
(iv) Resigned on 31 October 2018 (iv) RZE—\F+A=+—HET
(v) Re-designated from non-executive director to an independent (v) R-E—+FRA -+ ZHBEkHNT
non-executive director on 22 May 2017 EERERBUFNTES
9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. HERSHES
The five highest paid employees during the year included three FRNEEBRHEERE=RER(=-F
directors (2017: four directors), details of whose remuneration —t+FOREE) - BEMNEZFEIR
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the EXHE8 - BE—T-N\F+_A=+—
year ended 31 December 2018 of the remaining two (2017: one) HIEFE#HTMEEaHEE(Z2—+
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief Fr-R)(UFARBEFTHEIRITHA
executive of the Company are as follows: B)ZMeFBEHT -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He o  ZAEREMEAR 2,035 1,170
Performance related bonuses RIBEBEIEL 639 575
Equity-settled share-based payment AR AE 45 E AR 1D A A
expense NS 257 437
Pension scheme contributions RIKEFTEIEK 179 18
3,110 2,200
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) 9. HEBRSHES(E)
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest e T TS E BIWIEE S RIIETTH
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following BEOEHMEES AZOT
bands is as follows:
Number of employees
BEAH
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7C 2 1,500,000 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,000 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,000/ 7T £2,500,00078 7T 1
2 1

In prior years, share options were granted to a non-director
and non-chief executive highest paid employee in respect
of his services to the Group, further details of which are
included in the disclosures in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements. The fair value of such options, which has
been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the prior year is included in
the above non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employee’s remuneration disclosures.

10. INCOME TAX

RBEFE  —RIESR—BIFEET
BAERSHEEREAAEERHT 2R
BRRBEE  E—PHBHARNEANE
BARMEANBZHES - CRBBHANER
SRR ZZEBREZATFEDNED
HEIEE @ Mt ABZBEFERBERE
ZERBDFALEXBEE s —RFEER—
FIFIBTBRAERGHEEH: -

10. FREHE

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Current — PRC corporate income tax BNER — R B (R ZE PRSI
Charge for the year REFEH 41,656 170,463
Under provision in prior years MEFERETNR 475 -
Current — Canada withholding tax on BER— pnZ RKF S A
interest income EEIb 866 -
Deferred (note 31) PRI (BFE3T) 17,247 (5,165)
Total tax charge for the year FEHIER X 425 60,244 165,298

Hong Kong profits tax

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no Hong Kong
profits tax had been provided as there were no assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year (2017: Nil).

ERANER
REBE_F-NF+-_A=1+t—BL%F
B BRFRAALBREBE LM ERB
B MY BRBENERIELBEE(=F
—tEFE) -

F %% ANNUAL REPORT 2018

155



156

Notes to Financial Statements ® B &Rz Izt
Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZE— \F+_A=+—HILFE

10. INCOME TAX (continued)

PRC corporate income tax

Under the PRC income tax laws, PRC enterprises are subject
to corporate income tax at a rate of 25% except for one PRC
subsidiary which is entitled to a preferential tax rate of 10%.

Canada withholding tax on interest income

The Group is subject to Canada withholding tax of 5% on the
gross interest income arising from its loan provided in Canada
to the borrowers.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rates for jurisdictions in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax
credit at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the
applicable rates to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

10. G (&)

FEEREH

REFBATEHE  BRETHEKBRG
A[E10% 2 B BB KA - DEBER
ROSBEHITIEEFEH

MERFEWAFENB
REBBIZS% 2 RERNIMEXNAE TR
R ERELENF SRABEHRINEX
B

REAARA R REKE DB A R M AE
BEZEEREAEZBRBAER (B
B)ERZHBERYRRERHEAE IR
B %2 $IR - DA NGE AR R B R R R
ZEERIOT

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
FHExT FHEIT
Profit before tax [ 75 B v ) 91,157 445,461
Tax at the statutory tax rates IRETEMERAE 1A 28,196 30.9 106,334 23.9
Lower tax rate enacted by B R A A R Y
local authority BRI (15) = (59 -
Adjustments in respect of BB AR ET A
current tax of previous periods SRS 475 0.5 - -
Profits and losses attributable to —fE& & A 7] KB A 7
a joint venture and associates FE(L 2T R ER 3,064 3.4 740 0.2
Expenses not deductible for tax Na[1Fi 2 A 18,845 20.7 88,444 19.9
Income not subject to tax HERF 7 WA (13,620) (14.9) (22,292) (5.0
Tax losses utilised from BESHEZEEA
previous periods IEEE (1,997) (2.2) (25,891) (5.8)
Tax losses not recognised RIERHIEERE 25,296 27.7 18,022 4.0
Tax charged at the Group's RS E BB E
effective rate AHEMBIE 60,244 66.1 165,298 37.1
The share of tax attributable to a joint venture and associates —HEERAIRBERA 2 HE X

amounting to HK$807,000 (2017: HK$2,089,000) is included in
“Share of profits and losses of a joint venture and associates”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

807,000/ 7L( —Z & —+ 4 :2,089,00077T)
EEERGA RS REMEEKERZ(E

1[5_|EE| /El\fﬁi\\

A e
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11.

12.

DIVIDEND
The directors do not recommend the payment of dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent of approximately HK$43,450,000 (2017:
HK$213,675,000), and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 6,057,253,119 (2017: 6,156,890,538) in issue during the
year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

11.

12.

RE
EXVTEERBE_Z-N\F+-A
=T -HEFERNBRE(ZZ—LF:
&) -

%ﬁﬁ%iﬁﬂi%ﬁ%ﬁk@ﬁ%
I

BRERABABEDES QA EBRR
= A A FE R F 443,450,000
B (=T — 1 & ¢ 213,675,000 7%
L) UERAREECETMETHLER
B% £ B 6,057,253, 119 ( =T — +F
6,156,890,538f% )51 & ©

BHE_Z-NFR-_Z—tF+-A

=t+—BULEFE  AEEHMECEHITAE
EEEERNEARK -
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Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. % BERRE
Leasehold Furniture Computer Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements  and fixtures  equipment vehicles in progress Total
Be RENEEE  GARRE BB AE EEIR Eh
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Tén T T TR Tén Tén
31 December 2018 RZB-N\ET-F=1-H
At 31 December 2017 and RZB—+ET-F=1-H
1 January 2018: RZF-N\E-A-R:
Cost R 69,391 23,239 3,168 12,378 5,062 131 114,609
Accumulated depreciation ZHERAE
and impairment (7,605) (9,414) (731) (9,166) (1,006) - (27,922)
Net carrying amount REFE 61,786 13,825 2,437 3212 4,056 1,31 86,687
At 1 January 2018, RZE-\E-R-B-
net of accumulated MR ZEAERAE
depreciation and impairment 61,786 13,825 2,431 3,212 4,056 1311 86,687
Additions AE - 8,630 2,225 2,182 2,300 - 15,337
Disposals e - - (119) (15) (29) - (163)
Depreciation provided R ERRE ()
during the year note 6) (3,369) (5,610) (753) (1.172) (998) - (11,902)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 35) HEMBRA(H335) - (5,814) (622) (1,103) - - (7,539)
Transfers # - - 785 - - (785) -
Exchange realignment EiHE (2,769) (545) (164) (134) (277) (31) (3,920)
At 31 December 2018, RZE-N\E+ZA=1+-8"
net of accumulated MR EAERAA
depreciation and impairment 55,648 10,486 3,789 2,970 5,052 555 78,500
At 31 December 2018; RZE-\E+-f=t-R:
Cost A 66,179 21,065 5,155 13,853 6,616 555 113,423
Accumulated depreciation ZinERAE
and impairment (10,531) (10,579) (1,366) (10,883) (1,564) - (34,923)
Net carrying amount BEFE 55,648 10,486 3,789 2,970 5,052 555 78,500
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. V¥  BERZRE(E)

Leasehold Furniture Computer Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvements  and fixtures equipment vehicles —in progress Total
BT HEMERE  GAREE S g kEIR gt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEn THL TEL TEL TEL ThEL

31 December 2017 RZB—+ET-F=1-H
At 31 December 2016 RZB-—"ET-R=+-BR

and 1 January 2017: “F-+E-R-H:

Cost e 64,835 16,623 2,241 10,718 2,967 156,044 253428

Accumulated depreciation ZHMERNE

and impairment (4,032 5,233 (202) (7,584) (562) - (17,613)
Net carrying amount EmEE 60,803 11,390 2,039 3134 2,405 156,044 235,815
At 1 January 2017, WZE-+E-A-B-

net of accumulated MR ZEAERAE

depreciation and impairment 60,803 11,390 2,039 3134 2,405 156,044 235815
Additions AE - 8,741 863 1,054 2,242 136,899 149,799
Disposals e - = 0) (39) (402) = (446)
Depreciation provided SRR ERRE ()

during the year note 6) (3172 (5,076) (557) (1,078) (422) - (10,305)
Disposal of a subsidiary it E-BHBAR(HES)

(note 3) - (3583) (97) (89) - (133,984) (137753)
Transfers #x = 1,902 = = = (1,902) =
Transfer to property under BRETERNE

development (note 22) (RE22) = = = = = (163,10) (163,100
Exchange realignment EHER 4,155 451 198 226 233 7418 12,681
At 31 December 2017, RZE—+E+-B=1t-H"

net of accumulated MR EAERAA

depreciation and impairment 61,786 13825 2431 322 4,056 137 86,087
At 31 December 2017: RZE—t£+-A=1-A:

Cost e 69,391 23239 3168 12378 5,062 1,31 114,609

Accumulated depreciation ZHITERAE

and impairment (7,605) (9.414) (7131) (9,166) (1,006) - (21922)
Net carrying amount BEFE 61,786 13,825 2437 3212 4,056 1,311 86,687
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. W% - BERXRE(E)

At 31 December 2018, one of the Group’s buildings with a net
carrying amount of HK$57,394,000 (2017: HK$62,940,000) was
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group (note 30).

%-ﬁ—ﬂ¢+—ﬂ—+—a $¢l%
M FE 557,394,000 T (= —+F :
62,940,000 L) 2 HrA— Hﬁ%aﬁﬁf’ﬁ
AR TAEEN—MRBITHE 2 ER(HE

30) °

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REYHE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HZEEE 381,625 356,498
Additions NE 34,337 11,908
Net gain from a fair value adjustment NEEFHE RIS 5 76,991 (11,792)
Exchange realignment P o R (21,714) 25,011
Carrying amount at 31 December R+—_B=1+—BZEAEE 471,239 381,625

The Group's investment properties consist of certain
commercial properties in Beijing and Shanghai, the PRC. The
directors of the Company have determined that the investment
properties consist of one class of asset, i.e., commercial
properties, based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the
properties. The Group's investment properties were revalued
on 31 December 2018 based on valuations performed by
Greater China Appraisal Limited, an independent professionally
qualified appraiser, at HK$471,239,000. Each year, the Group's
management decide to appoint which external appraiser
to be responsible for the external valuations of the Group's
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained.
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 39(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2018, the Group's investment properties with
a carrying value of HK$367,838,000 (2017: HK$328,987,000) were
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group (note 30) and a carrying amount of HK$39,375,000 (2017:
Nil) were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted
to an associate of the Group.

Further particulars of the Group's investment properties are
included on page 224.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group's investment properties:

14. BEWHE(E)

REMEDREBELEHELHTE=F -
HE—IHEF BN GE M B mKMETE
39(a) °

RZZE—NF+ZA=+—H &x&£E
B 1 {8 367,838,000/8 7L ( — T — L 4 ¢
328,987,000 L) 2 IWEWHED T IUE
| ESAASERL 2 —RIRITHRE
(Bf#7£30) » K ERMI{E39,375,000/8 T( ==
—tF BB FUER - DESRALAEE
—MBERRIRE 2 —RIRITRLE -

AEENREMEZE-THBEARNSE
2248 -

AT EER
TRUBAEEEENE? AT EIH BB
A

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2018 using

REZB-NE+-A=+—-BEAUTHAZAFEFE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SRR IS EATEE EATTEE
WwE BWAE B AE
(-4 (=4 (B=4) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET FET FET
Recurring fair value KEENTFERE
measurement for:
Commercial properties IRz A E
located in the PRC - 471,239 471,239
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Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

14. REYH(E)
AEEER(E)

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2017 using
KT tE+ A= T BEANTHAZATEIE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
h BT I5 BRAEBE BARTAHEE
WwE BWAE EPNEEL
(B—%) (B=#) (B=%&) KRy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THETT THETT THETT THTT
Recurring fair value KEEQTFERE
measurement for:
Commercial properties R ELZ A
located in the PRC - - 381,625 381,625

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2017: Nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within

FN - E-REFE_KoAWEAFAERT
EZHEE TEAF=ABAFEL(=Z
—tF &)

DEEAVFEEBRTE=EN R FEFTE

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

Commercial

properties

EEEZES

HK$'000

FET

Carrying amount at 1 January 2017 RIE—+F—A—HZE@EE 356,498

Additions NE 11,908
Net loss from a fair value adjustment recognised Rz 7 WA KW R 2 A FEFHE

in other income and gains in profit or loss EE=ES (11,792)
Exchange realignment [ 5 FE#& 25,011
Carrying amount at 31 December 2017 and 1 RZE—tF+_A=+—HEKZZT—NF—

January 2018 A—BZERHEE 381,625
Additions NE 34,337
Net gain from a fair value adjustment recognised Bz 2 EMURA KU F R 2 A FEFHE

in other income and gains in profit or loss FU 76,991
Exchange realignment VE 3 A2 (21,714)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 RE-E-NF+-A=+—HZKHEE 471,239
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Year ended 31 December 2018 EH =

14.

R N\F+ZA=T—BHILEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is the valuation technique used and the key input to the
valuation of investment properties:

Valuation technique

Significant unobservable input

14. BEWHE(E)

AFEEBR(E)
FTAGEROREEMEGRBEZEZEHA
(EQ RN

Range or weighted average

fhERD BERPAEREAE EE R MEFY
2018 2017
—B-N\F “FF
Commercial properties Income approach Estimated rental value
(per sgq.m. and per month) RMB82 RMB60-120
BAME Wak RAHEBE(ETHREERH) ARM82T ARW¥60-1207T
Capitalisation rate 6%~7% 5%-6%
Bt &
Comparison approach Adjustment on market unit price -20%-10% N/A
LeBUE BTG B FiEm
Estimated unit price (per sq.m.) RMB9,400- N/A
24,500 TiEm
fh &t BB (FFTTK) AR¥9,400-
24,5007T

Income approach measured the fair value of the investment
properties by capitalising rental receivables during the term of
the tenancies at appropriate yield (capitalisation rate) with due
allowances for the reversionary value upon expiry of tenancies.

A significant increase (decrease) in the unit rent in isolation
would result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value
of the investment properties. A significant increase (decrease)
in the adjustment to the capitalisation rate in isolation would
result in a significant decrease (increase) in the fair value of the
investment properties.

Comparison approach measured the fair value of the investment
properties by making comparison based on prices realized or
market prices of comparable real properties. Comparable real
properties of similar size, character and location are analysed
and carefully weighted against all the respective advantages
and disadvantages of the real properties. Adjustments in prices
of the comparable real properties are then made to account for
the identified differences between such real properties and the
real properties in the relevant factors.

A significant increase/(decrease) in a positive adjustment or
a significant decrease/(increase) in a negative adjustment
on market unit price in isolation would result in a significant
increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the investment
properties.

W a8 BV E BRSO 2 % (A A
L) BAE AR S R R S 3t
B R BT ERANEHA
i -

BB EBREEMORD) BEBIRE
MENRFEARBEMORD) - BRI
RREEFABEMORD) S EBUREY)

ENRFHERERED (RN

HWEETDHRBEATELBEME 2 B2
ERATEETEBUAAEREVELZAR
FE - BEONRE  BUERMBEEEZ
AELBEHE  WIFAGEREFBE
Z—HIESER - JELREME 2B
EELHEE U RAERXPARET
EHRFEMEZBHNEENER -

™ 35 B AL B 1%
/G ) sk
DR %%Z’&¥ E?ﬁﬁﬁi
m/CRd) -
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15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

15. A1 EE

2018 2017

—2-N\F —E—tF

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

B 5E FERT FHT

Carrying amount at 1 January N—A—HZERE 571,410 1,342,629

Recognised during the year FNFER 6 (17,596) (29,710)

Transfer to property under development &% & 35 fh ) 2 22 - (105,149)

Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FREAR 35 - (702,304)

Exchange realignment FE 5 R (25,643) 65,944

Carrying amount at 31 December RT-_A=+—HBHZEEEA 528,171 571,410
Current portion included in prepayments, st AFEfTFRIE « HAfb

other receivables and other assets el GRTE R B E
Z BNERER S 24 (16,938) (17,754)
Non-current portion JEBNHRER > 511,233 553,656

As at 31 December 2018, the land use right with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$239,545,000 (2017: HK$153,477,000) was
pledged to secure bank loans granted to the Group (note 30)
and an aggregate carrying amount of HK$80,916,000 (2017: Nil)
was pledged to secure bank loans granted to an associate of the
Group.
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16. GOODWILL 16. BE
Notes HK$'000
ks FET
At 1 January 2017: RZE—+F—-—HA—R:
Cost %N 265,659
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE -
Net carrying amount REDFE 265,659
Cost at 1 January 2017, net of RZTE—+F—A—BZAE -
accumulated impairment LB REDRE 265,659
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FREAT 35 (52,785)
Impairment during the year FERRE 6 -
Cost and net carrying amount at RZE—tFE+A=+—82
31 December 2017 BN K AR TEDFHAE 212,874
At 31 December 2017: RZZE—+tF+=-A=+—8":
Cost AN 212,874
Accumulated impairment Z5HRE -
Net carrying amount REDFE 212,874
Cost at 1 January 2018, RZTE-NF—A—BZAE -
net of accumulated impairment Sk REHRE 212,874
Impairment during the year FARE 6 (28,925)
Cost and net carrying amount RZZE—N\&E+_-_A=+—H82
at 31 December 2018 B e PR TEFHE 183,949
At 31 December 2018: R-FB-N\F+=ZA=+—8:
Cost D@ 212,874
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (28,925)
Net carrying amount FREDFE 183,949
Impairment testing of goodwill BEERER

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated
to the following cash-generating units ("CGU") for impairment
testing:

o Zhi Jian CGU;

o Jing Tou Holding CGU;

o Beijing Spirit CGU;

° Golden Sun CGU; and

° Top-Doctors CGU.

BRRGAHRENEERIEEATEH
SEABM([REELEM ) ETRE
A,

e ERRSELSB:

o RRERREELBM

o URBEEREELBN

s SAGRTELEBM R

. BMBERSELEN -
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Notes to Financial Statements ® B &Rz Izt

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE

16. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
Zhi Jian and Jing Tou Holding CGU

At 31 December 2018, no impairment tests were performed as
the carrying amounts of the goodwill were less than the carrying
amounts of the respective deferred tax liabilities arising from

the acquisition.

Beijing Spirit CGU

The recoverable amount of the Beijing Spirit CGU was
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by senior management. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 18.50% (2017: 18.50%).
The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the
Beijing Spirit unit beyond the five-year period is 3.00% (2017:
3.00%), which approximates to the long term average growth

rate of the furniture trading industry.

olden Sun CGU

The recoverable amount of the Golden Sun CGU was
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by senior management. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 15.36% (2017: 15.00%).
The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the
Golden Sun unit beyond the five-year period is 3.00% (2017:
3.00%), which approximates to the long term average growth

rate of the geriatric care industry.

Top-Doctors CGU

The recoverable amount of the Top-Doctors CGU has been
determined based on the recoverable amount of the net assets
excluding goodwill and other intangible assets. During the
year ended 31 December 2018, due to the suspension of the
business in Top-Doctors CGU, the directors of the Company
considered no cash flow would be generated in the future.

BEIJING ENTERPRISES MEDICAL AND HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED 1t BEREEXEEER AR

16. BHE(E)

ﬁglﬁdﬁ()
B ] A% A
\ZE-NF+ZA= ‘1’ A AREE
2 BREER RS P E 4 B B IR IRE R 1A
BEZERHE  RIEETRENR -

4/, = 5 ::v,,,\’ =

L T ,_7,47

IREBEERSELEEUNTWESEETIIE
REGHAEEAEETE  CREBEEFED
BESREEEHECTIFHMBIEE
EHEZRE&REREAEE - RERETE
BIFT AR RLIE R B18.50% (=T —+4F ¢
18.50%) - AR £¢HELA$7|\E'H|:ELM
%ﬁﬁZﬁimEiQETJ%SOO%(
—+t%F :3.00%) - Eﬂf?ﬁﬁAEE?T%ZEEﬁ
IR REES

4B

\

BB S EE BN

iﬁ%Zﬁi?i 5 (i #) AT UK B KB Th IR
Vﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ BT ERBEHED
BESREBEELEZTFHMBESR
E 2B e REEAGE cHERETE

BIFT M BRIR R 515.36% ( — T —t4F ¢
15.00%) - ARHEE R FEHNINNE KB
BUZReRELRER300%(ZE—+
F:3.00%)  BEETEZRPFIHER

R &=F; e o B &

EE GRRCELEUNIKESRENE
REEFE(TEERERAMELEE)
WAKRE & EMEE - RBEZT—/\F
ToA=+—HIEFEHE AR B
BREEFEMEBLE  ARARERER
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Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE

16. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
At 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of goodwill
allocated to each of the CGU is as follows:

16. BHE(E)

AERERH (&)
R-F-N\FE+=-A=+—~8

AR TE
ReErBUMEmEZREERT

Zhi Jian Jing Tou Holding Beijing Spirit Golden Sun Top-Doctors Total
&k RRER ¥RER .t RERE it
2018 01 218 01 2018 017 2018 017 2018 01 2018 01
ZE-NE ZE-tE ZB-NF O ZEtE ZR-NE ZE-F ZR-NE ZR+E IR-N§ EtE ZE-NE R
HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS00  HK$'000  HKS00
Tén TEn  TEn TR TER  TEr TR A T T TEr TEn
Canying amount of goodwil &7 A 62585 42585 40734 07 17394 7394 6323 8280 = 9267 183949 212874

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
Beijing Spirit CGU and Golden Sun CGU for 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017. The following describes each
key assumption on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.

Growth rates — The growth rates used to extrapolate the cash
flows beyond the five-year period are based on the estimated
growth rate of each unit taking into account the industry growth
rate, past experience and the medium or long term growth
target of each CGU.

In view of the fact that the geriatric care service and medical
care service business has been loss making and it is not
considered probable that adequate profits will be available
in the foreseeable future, an impairment loss of HK$9,267,000
(2017: Nil) and HK$19,658,000 (2017: Nil) was recognised for
goodwill in relation to the Top-Doctors CGU and Golden
Sun business CGU with a carrying amount of HK$9,267,000
and HK$82,894,000 (before deducting the impairment loss),
respectively.

R-ZE—NFE+_A=Z+—BR-_ZT—+
F+ZA=+—H  FEILRERBASE
EBENREAGHEeELESBN 2 FEAEE
BREMFRETRE - TXHLEEELE
TEERENAKRELR SRR
BHSEEZE®RE

B E — FERARR R ARMRHIEA © I
BB ERR -

BRE —ARBEERIFHURRERE
ZEEE - DUSEM2EFHEREAE
£ WERBTEERE  BELREEH
EEABUZPRMERARMAERS -

ERBEERBEERESEEE  BAAUR
BRTAARESERONEMNZEE
At REBHBERCELEBEM LS KRB
EBBESELEUSNEREERMES
92670008 L (=T —tF : ) K&
19,658,000 T (=T —+4F : &) » HE
T 85 Bl 59,267,000 7T & 82,894,000
TT(RIBRIREEER)
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to Financial Statements ® B &Rz Izt
Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZE— \F+_A=+—HILFE

17. EtEREE

Brand Computer
name software Total
meEEE EhEE st
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
B 5 FET FHET FET
31 December 2018 —E-N\E
+=A=+-8
Cost at 1 January 2018, netof R=ZZE—NF—HF—HZ
accumulated amortisation BN - 3OBR Rty 7,858 7,062 14,920
Amortisation provided during R 2 #5815
the year 6 - (1,009) (1,009)
Impairment during the year ~ FREE 6 - (5,540) (5,540)
Exchange realignment B i A (361) (81) (442)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ—NFE+=A
=+—H 7,497 432 7,929
At 31 December 2018: RZZE—N\F+=A
=+—H:
Cost D% 7,497 8,005 15,502
Accumulated amortisation RRTE#HERRE
and impairment - (7,573) (7,573)
Net carrying amount BREFE 7,497 432 7,929
31 December 2017 —E—+tF
+=A=+-8
At 1 January 2017: RZZT—tF—HA—1:
Cost AN 7,342 7,128 14,470
Accumulated amortisation REHEORE
and impairment = (274) (274)
Net carrying amount BRTEFE 7,342 6,854 14,196
Cost at 1 January 2017, netof RZ_ZF—+F—HA—HZ
accumulated amortisation B - 30BR REt Y 7,342 6,854 14,196
Additions NE s 645 645
Amortisation provided during R 2 ## i E s
the year 6 = (902) (902)
Exchange realignment I 5, A 516 465 981
At 31 December 2017 R-_E—+E+_-H
=+—H 7,858 7,062 14,920
At 31 December 2017: R-ZTE—+F+=-8
=+—8:
Cost B8 7,858 8,392 16,250
Accumulated amortisation ST = (1,330) (1,330)
Net carrying amount BREFE 7,858 7,062 14,920
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Year ended 31 December 2018 HE=-T—\F+_A=+—HILFE an
17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 17. e B EE (H)
A brand name acquired in 2016 at a fair value of HK$7,497,000 R-ZE—RNFWE A FEAET,497,0005 7T
was regarded as having an indefinite useful life because ZmBABARHAIARRHEEFRS
the brand name is expected to generate net cash inflows MAMER EEEERFERFHE - =
indefinitely. As at 31 December 2018, the brand name with E—-N\F+-_A=+—08 EEEEAF
indefinite useful life was tested for impairment. AEnREEEEETRENR -
In view of the fact that the business of the Top-Doctors CGU ENREBBEREELEEVERAFER
has been suspended in current year, a full impairment of TEZ2EE  RUMEMNEREERRSE
HK$5,540,000 (2017: Nil) was recognised for other intangible EURES,540,000 0 ( ZF—+4F « )
assets with a recoverable amount of Nil. WA S FE o
18. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 18. R—ESERTANRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Share of net assets FEEEEFE 9,374 -
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TEEMAEFBNSZEATER TS LT
information of the Group's joint venture that is not individually BAMMEIEER :
material:
2018 2017
A —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Share of the joint venture's profit for the year  [E(54& & QR A F R F 91 -
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's REEREERRINKREYZ
investment in the joint venture HREREE 9.374 -
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Notes to Financial Statements ® B &Rz Izt
Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZE— \F+_A=+—HILFE

19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

19. RBERFAZRE

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Share of net assets DIHEEFE 185,780 159,187
Goodwill on acquisition U RERE 2 P 315,117 302,076
500,897 461,263

Particulars of the material associate are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

FEMERNRFBOT

Percentage of
ownership
interest

Particulars of registration attributable
Name issued shares held and business to the Group  Principal activities
SMAL
FEZBRT MR E % EEEERS
2% R FE B BEREEEAL TEXH
Beijing Sports and Entertainment Ordinary shares Cayman Islands/ 27.02  Air freight services, investment
Industry Group Limited ("Beijing Hong Kong and operation of the sports and

Sports and Entertainment”)*
ERBELEXEEBRAR EER MERE/EE
([EREEXL])

entertainment related business
TERY - BERREABERER
E/

# Shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

Except for the Group’s shareholding in Beijing Sports and
Entertainment comprising equity shares held by the Company,
the shareholdings in associates are held through a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company.

Beijing Sports and Entertainment, which is considered a
material associate of the Group, is accounted for using the
equity method. The Company acquired a 7.55% equity interest
of Beijing Sports and Entertainment on 30 November 2017
resulting in a total shareholding of 27.22% in Beijing Sports and
Entertainment. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group's ownership interest in Beijing Sports and Entertainment
was diluted from 27.22% to 27.02%.

# P& A7) FOBSE 52 P E AR B

BASERIEREER R BB AR QR
MEZBDIBAN  REBE QR ZBET
BEBARF-—H2EMBARRA -

IREBENE(ERAREEZ EEHEN
RN ERERZEAR - ARFR_E—+
F+—A=1+BUYKEIREE X7.55%
2B AR AR REE b2 #
BEHEB27.22% - RBE=_ZE—N\F+=
AZ+—BLEFEHM  REEBRIERE
BEX s HEEEESRHA2. 2% ES
27.02% o
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19. REEE QT2 RE(HE)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of Beijing Sports and Entertainment

TREMICREE NP BERBE(E
REBRZEMEZEFLFR - YLK

adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and AU BHRERABRERESER)
reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements:
2018 2017
—E-N\F S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Current assets mENEE 387,618 414,992
Non-current assets, excluding goodwill ERBEE  TEIEESE 217,479 211,688
Goodwill on the acquisition of the associate Uk B B N R 2 PR 300,951 300,951
Current liabilities nEEE (125,263) (66,745)
Non-current liabilities EmEatE (3,352) (9,130)
777,433 851,756
Less: Non-controlling interests o IR RS (115,503) (130,237)
Net assets BEZE 661,930 721,519
Net assets, excluding goodwill BEEFE TRERE 360,979 420,568
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest REFENREE R TR R ¥
in the associate: B -
Proportion of the Group's ownership REE 2 AR 27.02% 27.22%
Group's share of net assets of the associate, KEBED G E QAR 2 EEF
excluding goodwill B TeEfE 61,379 74,936
Goodwill on acquisition (less cumulative U BB RS 2 2 O R ETRE)
impairment) 300,951 300,951
Carrying amount of the investment & & 2 REE 362,330 375,887
Fair value of the Group’s investment REERNKEZRNTE 988,400* 1,002,520*
e Based on the market price of the equity held by the Group * EREEERFEOER 2 ME
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Notes to Financial Statements ® B &Rz Izt
Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZE— \F+_A=+—HILFE

19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19. REEE QT2 RE(E)
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Revenue N 155,361 156,823
Loss for the year FEEE (66,805) (18,134)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hiham(EE) WS (10,551) 2,563
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEHEEBRRE (77,356) (15,571)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial

TREGAREEBEREERZ

bk N =
F/NE]|

information of the Group's associates that are not individually 2 ER B
material:
2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Share of the associates’ loss for the year DMEBENR Z FEEE (2,744) (735)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's REERBEARINREZ
investments in the associates BRMEEE 138,567 85,376
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20. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR 20. EEAEBHEMZEKERAFE
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE BIRZEZRE THEER
INCOME/AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS &

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT

Equity investments designated at FVOCI EEREBHMEZEKEMN

DNREIRZERZRE
Listed equity investments, at fair value FhERRE  RATE 68,459 -
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value FELMERKE  RATE 157,035 -
225,494 -
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE
Unlisted equity investments, at cost less JEETIRERSIEE
impairment B AR E - 46,151
The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at Pt ERRE TN AR IR E RS R E
fair value through other comprehensive income as the Group ftb 2 Y A R TFESIRR - TR AR EE
considers these investments to be strategic in nature. REZEREBEKMEE -
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group received REBE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HIL*F
dividends in the amount of HK$574,000 (2017: HK$1,435,000) EHME AEECDRRITRESES
from listed investments. 574,000 70( —ZF—+4F 1,435,000 7T)
2B -
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21. INVENTORIES 21. 7€
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Finished goods Bk 29,190 28,889
22. PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT 22, BHETYE

2018 2017
—B-N\F —F—tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k3 THET FHET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZKREE 268,253 -
Addition = 279,514 -
Transfer from prepayment (L8 SR N EE] 24 200,878 -

Transfer from property, plant and ERYE - BELRE
equipment 13 - 163,104

Transfer from prepaid land lease ERFEN TS

payments 15 - 105,149
Disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR 35 (323,296) -
Exchange realignment FE 5 L (34,165) -
Carrying amount at 31 December RT-_A=+—HBZEEEA 391,184 268,253
Current portion mENER S - (268,253)
Non-current portion FEMENER S 391,184 -

RZE-NE+-_A=+—H0 IEBER
RYE(ZZ—t4F : 105,150,000%87T)E
AL EERBITERMEIR(HFE30) »

As at 31 December 2018, none of the property under
development (2017: HK$105,150,000) was pledged to secure
bank loans granted to the Group (note 30).

ERARKEBERTMENE - TFHITHRT
RE2247 -

Further particulars of the Group's property under development
are included on page 224.
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. EWEZERXK

2018 2017

—E-N\F S

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHT

Trade receivables W E SRR 37,781 28,325
Impairment NENIE] (216) -
37,565 28,325

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit period is generally 3 months.
For major customers, the terms may change in accordance
with the terms of the respective contracts. Each customer has
a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is
no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its
trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

BHEF —RABMNZKEBN  FEETE
MEETRERTFITEE SRR - KK
BETEFPZEEHN—RA=MEA - Bx
BEFPME @ FRAEREEBEEN K
RMEMES - BEEFPHRARSEE
B o N BB HAREEE KSR B
7S - BHFEAEREEEENETE
Bl o REBLEABARANEE 2 ERIE S
RUADHEPAE BAESERETEE
MR o ANSR B3 A R R 5 IR A
BEAEAERMmIEMBERERTR -
FEWE ZIRAIL TR -

RIESRR  BUESEFTREZTAHE
(FNER B IR BB MR DTN T

2018 2017

—E2-N\F —FtF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within 3 months =@EAN 12,849 15,793
Over 3 months =@AUE 24,716 12,532
37,565 28,325
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Year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z

AR MIRE
—N\E+ZA=t—BILEE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

23. BWESKRM(E)
FEE BB ERRRFEZES T

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FET

At beginning of year REL - -
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 FRANE B R 5 4R

RO E 115 -

At beginning of year (restated) RETNEEE) 115 -

Impairment losses (note 6) S A1 (B 5T6) 110 -

Exchange realignment M 5, A 2 (9) -

At end of year RER 216 -

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31

December 2018

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e.,
by geographical region, product type, customer type and
rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit
insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written
off if past due for more than two years and are not subject to
enforcement activity.

BE-E-NF+ZA=+—HIF
BERBEBUBHEEEREIRETH
HE
RERE R AGRABBEEETRED
- AEHERBEEERE - BEXDER

Eda?ﬁ&ﬁ*ﬂ&%%@ﬁﬁﬁ’]571!%}5’“*

THACHRMIBUE - EmiRE - }5’*E
’*‘J&EW& AR ERESEMEERRT
AWREHLE) MBHN ABEE - LAt HE
RRAXNEER  ERRELRNRS
HEIRI S B BBEEIE - ERTIEMFRAR
X?&zﬁfﬂﬂﬂﬁiiﬂﬂE’\Jé.\fi&TsEéfﬂ o — &

CEWE SRR NAREBMERE
éﬁ ﬁEE"?ﬁ%‘J#ﬂﬁiﬁ@ElJ%L‘M‘vﬁﬁﬁ°
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31
December 2018 (continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2018

23. EWE 5 KR (E)
F-F-N\FF-A=1+—HILF
BREEBUBHREEREIRETH
e (%)
T S B 2 1 A B 1) R A R L ) FE MR
ZERFEERB AR

RZZE—-—N\F+=—A=+—H

Past due
B
Less than 1to3 Over

Current 1 month months 3 months Total

Bal 2MMEA 1Z3A ZWH3EA et

Expected credit loss rate  FBEfZ BB R 0.34% 0.38% 0.40% 1.06% 0.57%

Gross carrying amount WRREE(THET)

(HK$'000) 12,893 2,858 10,971 11,059 37,781
Expected credit losses BEEEEE(TET)

(HK$'000) 44 11 44 117 216

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended 31 December
2017

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables, which was measured based on incurred credit
losses under HKAS 39, as at 31 December 2017 was a provision
for individually impaired trade receivables of Nil with a carrying
amount before provision of HK$28,325,000.

The individually impaired trade receivables as at 31 December
2017 related to customers that were in financial difficulties or
were in default in interest and/or principal payments and only a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.

BE_E—tHF+-A=+—HILFER
BEEBEIERFEI9W A
AR —_E—+F+=_A=+—82
FEURE SR FURERE (IRIBE BB R 2R
FIRERCELEFEBBHE)ANA
RENEREEKESERBERT -
A B Al 2 BR T B /428,325,000 7T ©

RZB—tF+ZRA=+—H  @EER
1B B W B 5 R 5 B [ 3R B I PR 38 = 38 R R
B/ RESRENEFERH  HHEA
Y Bl 5B > FEUR AR 5K
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended 31
December 2017 (continued)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at 31 December
2017 that were not individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired under HKAS 39 is as follows:

23. BEWE SRR (E)

E-E—tF+ZA=1+—HLHF
ERBEERBSTENEIVRZREE
(&)

RZZE—+F+ZR=+—H REEE
SEFERF 39U IEE R R KB R FRE
R EE ZIRRERRER DT LA T -

2017

—T—tF

HK$'000

THET

Neither past due nor impaired A fe58) HA Sl (B 15,793
Less than 1 month past due BERD T E A 1,566
1 to 3 months past due B ER 1 Z=31E A 10,966
28,325

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
several major customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that had a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company were of the opinion that no provision for impairment
under HKAS 39 was necessary in respect of these balances as
there had not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances were still considered fully recoverable.
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24. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

& "y “W

24, AR - HMBERREAREM

OTHER ASSETS BE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ihg=s FERT FHT
Prepayments BT A 62,732 297,828
Loans to third parties RE=ZTER (b) 144,958 669,973
Deposits and other receivables Be M E M EKGRIE 170,241 100,244
Prepaid land lease payments FEN TS 15 16,938 17,754
394,869 1,085,799
Impairment allowance BB (18,321) (3,354)
376,548 1,082,445
Portion classified as current assets DEEAREEESD 340,393 (809,788)
Non-current portion — prepayments IERBNEL D — FEfTFRIE (a) 36,155 272,657
The movements in provision for impairment of other receivables HAb IR ERENEHIT
are as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F S
Note HK$'000 HK$’'000
b= FERT FET
At beginning of year REH] 3,354 3,134
Impairment losses recognised BRI ER B 6 15,710 -
Exchange realignment B 5 FH 8 (743) 220
18,321 3,354
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24. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Included in the Group's prepayments at 31 December 2018 were
mainly (i) a non-current payment of HK$20,996,000 in relation to an
item of property, plant and equipment; and (ii) a prepayment of
HK$11,413,000 in relation to the proposed acquisition of a 0.5% equity

interest in Yantai Maibairui International Biological Medicine co. Ltd.

Included in the Group's prepayments at 31 December 2017 were (i) a
non-current prepayment of HK$200,878,000 in relation to a land use
right in Dali, Yunnan Province, for which the total consideration was
RMB316,792,000 (equivalent to HK$378,983,000); and (ii) a prepayment
of HK$71,779,000 in relation to the proposed acquisition of a 15%
equity interest in Beijing Enterprises City Investment Holdings Group
Co., Ltd. ("BECIH").

Included in the loans to third parties as at 31 December 2018 were
unsecured loans of HK$144,958,000 (2017: HK$669,973,000) in
aggregate, which bore interest at rates ranging from 4.5% to 10%
(2017: 4.5% to 10%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2018, except for the guaranteed loan of
Canadian dollar ("CAD") 16,250,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$93,437,000) denominated in CAD, all loans to third parties were
denominated in RMB (2017: all were denominated in RMB except the
loans of CAD15,050,000, equivalent to approximately HK$93,639,000).

24 ENRE - - HtEWREBERHEM
EE(E)
GEE

(a) ATAREE T - NF+=ZA=+—H8HK
ENRBEEZANEME  BERZHER
B8 B Z 3E7 B 5035 20,996,0007 7T ¢ K (i)
A 7 3% W B8 Yantai Maibairui International
Biological Medicine co. Ltd 0.5% /% #E %
EYFEFFRIE11,413,000/ 7T ©

FAREE-_T—+F+-A=+—H®HHE
NREAR)ELRERARY316,792,000
70 (#8 & 1 49378,983,00078 7T ) M E R’ A
Bzt AEEENERDBENKE
200,878,000/ 7T : K (ii) B2 2 555 U A AE 4%
BEREBER AR ([EEHMBIER 1) 15%
A& A BARY TE (5 58 71,779,00078 7T °

b) FAZZE—N\F+-A=+—HHNE=H
BERA H5144,958,0008 T (=B —+H4F :
669,973,000/ 70) M EEHE R - REFME
NTFA5%E10%(ZFT—LF : 4.5%=10%)
B .

R=ZF-NF+=ZA=Z+-—-80 ' &
16,250,000 2 A ([ l) (BBERK
93,437,000 L) BB ERE KA M TTET
B BZHERE2HHUAREFE
(ZZE—+tF: 2BHAARETE - B
15,050,0000 7t (18 & 7 4993,639,0007% 7T.)
BERBRIN) -
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25. LOAN TO A DIRECTOR

The loan to a director, disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the

25. BRF—REBZEX
RIEEB D AIEHIEI83N (A ER DA (H
BESHSAR)ROIEIPRE BT —

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of ZEEETWENT -
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
Maximum At Maximum
amount 31 December amount
At outstanding 2017 and outstanding At
31 December during 1 January during the 1January  Security
Name #% 2018 the year 2018 prior year 2017 held
RoB-tfF
+ZB=1+-H iy oked
RZZ-N% RERZ  RZB-NF FEZER  R-B-tfF
tZA=1+-B EBAxEELHE -F-H FEELE -B-B  HEZER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TARL TAL TAR TAL TAL
Mr. Wang Zheng Chun Tr&ERE - 65,731 62,591* 138,544 136,012 Commercial
property
R

This balance is included in “Due from related parties” in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

ISR ERT AR R MR R 2 AR BTE

Wl -
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26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 26. ERBEZULAFEIRZEHE

PROFIT OR LOSS E
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Listed equity investments, at fair value FHRAKRE - RATE = 71,760
Other unlisted investments, at fair value B LHIRE - BATFE 64,152 32,847
Derivative instrument, at fair value PTHETE  BATE 1,156 -
65,308 104,607
The above equity and derivative investments at 31 December RZZE-NF+A=+—H Li#gzx
2018 were classified as financial assets at fair value through RUTHEREDBREBEBERNARTETER
profit or loss as they were held for trading. ZeMEE  HAREREESR -
27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 27. RERBESEEWARZRHE
RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES TER
2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTH S 363,182 128,901
Time deposits EHTFR 412,691 342,535
775,873 471,436
Less: Restricted bank balances R RBREIRITER (11,755) -
Cash and cash equivalents BeMEEEEY 764,118 471,436
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27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

28.

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES (continued)

At 31 December 2018, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in Renminbi (“"RMB"”) amounted to
HK$757,717,000 (2017: HK$416,736,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates.
The bank balances and restricted bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

27. BERASEEYUARZIRER

28.

TERE)

MW-ZZ—-NE+-_A=+—0 K&£H
MARB(TAREDFEZRS RIRTT
8% E757,717,0008 L ( ZF —+F :
416,736,000 7T) - AR B A H ik
BEALEE - AR R B A HNE B IR K
Bl ARGEE  EERGESEET &~
EEEESREFRETINER HEKH
IRITIHEAREH IR AEMER -

RITEFRBRESRRTERNXEEDN
FBNERGE - EHERFERRFAEH
MEBREFRENF-—BE=EANT
RIBAMEL - SWIRE B8R HEHFERA X
BREUM B - IRITHEBRRRERITERT
ARSI EIER L8 B EBRIFHIIRTT ©

FEA+ B 5 B
RBEK - EHESRARELEAY
MARER D HTINT -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within 3 months =@ARN 10,974 12,603
Over 3 months =@AMNUE 8,364 4,275
19,338 16,878

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on terms of 3 to 6 months.

ENEBESEARREER—RN=Z2/EA
MAELT

7
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29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

9. EtbENRERETEM

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B &E FET FHT
Current: BNER -
Receipt in advance 2 E K - 26,085
Contract liabilities EHaE (a) 37,612 -
Consideration payable JERTRE 5,706 5,982
Contingent consideration payable FE SRR E 4,053 5,178
Consideration deposits REZE 37,663 39,478
Other payables H TR (b) 107,648 97,530
Accruals FEErEA 3,687 4,484
196,369 178,737
Non-current: JERNER -
Contract liabilities S48 E (a) 1,353 -
Other payables and accruals At FEAT RUE K
R 2,694 2,768
Contingent consideration payable FERT S AKAE = 6,772
4,047 9,540
200,416 188,277
Notes: MI5E -
(a) Details of contract liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and 1 January (a) RZEBE—NF+_A=+—BEK_Z—N\&F
2018 are as follows: —A—HB  AHNBENFEET :
31 December 2018 1 January 2018
—E-N\F —E-N\F
+=A=+-8 -A-8
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TR
Short-term advances received from customers B EFEER RS0
Sale of goods HEM M 37,612 26,085
Contract liabilities received from customers BEFEZEENSHEE 1,353 -
Sale of goods 4 & 7
Total contract liabilities BEXERE 38,965 26,085

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver
goods. The increase in contract liabilities in 2018 was mainly due to the
increase in short-term advances received from customers in relation to

the sale of goods at the end of the year.

(b) Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of

three months.
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30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

30. FFERITREMMER

BORROWINGS
2018 2017
“E-N\F “E %
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BBRFE%) ZHA T ERAER% IHA FHT
Current BN
Bank loans — secured RITET — HHEHF 4.35-5.23 2019 39,375 522 2018 35,889
—E-hE “T-N\EFE
Current portion of long  REHRITERZ 4,90-6.65 2019 25,108 490-5.22 2018 35,890
term bank loans BIERER > —E-hE —E-N\E
- secured — B
Other loans HWED 5.60 On demand 5,112 4.35-560 Ondemand - 9,762
- unsecured — Ei 2018
BER BER —
—T-N\F
69,595 81,541
Non-current FEENE
Bank loans - secured  $R{TEH — HHEIF 4.90-6.65 2020 117,553 490 2019-2024 161,503
—E-ZF —Z-NEE
—EomE
187,148 243,044
2018 2017
—E-N\F I
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Analysed into: PDITE
Bank loans and overdrafts repayable: EERBITERRES
Within one year or on demand AR —FARRERER 64,483 71,779
In the second year RE_FRNEE 117,553 68,190
In the third to the fifth year, inclusive BEREZEZERFA
(BEERME)EER - 45,460
Beyond fifth years ERFUNEEE - 47,853
182,036 233,282
Other borrowings repayable: FEEEBEMER -
On demand BER(EERE 5,112 9,762
187,148 243,044
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30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Certain of the Group's bank loans were secured by:

(@)

(i)

(i)

mortgages over the investment properties situated in the PRC,
which had an aggregate carrying amount at the end of the
reporting period of HK$367,838,000 (2017: HK$328,987,000);

mortgages over a land use right, which had an aggregate
carrying amount at the end of the reporting period of
HK$239,545,000 (2017: HK$153,477,000);

As at 31 December 2018, there was no mortgage over the
property under development (2017: HK$105,150,000);

the pledge of certain of the Group's time deposits amounting
to HK$5,706,000 (2017: Nil); and

mortgages over a building situated in the PRC, which had an
aggregate carrying amount at the end of the reporting period
of HK$57,394,000 (2017: HK$62,940,000).

In addition, as at 31 December 2018, the Group's bank loans of
HK$30,815,000 were guaranteed by certain third parties (2017:
HK$53,835,000).

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, all borrowings were denominated in

RMB.

The Group's other loans are borrowed from a non-controlling

shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company, which are unsecured,

bear interest at 5.60% per annum and are repayable on demand (2017:

4.35% per annum for one year and 5.60% per annum and are repayable

on demand, respectively).

30.
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FRBTREMER(E)

GEE

(a)

REEETRITEFRATFI A -

(i) HAMRREZIREMERE - HRA
s HAR 2 48 BR T {8 4 367,838,000
BT (=T — £ 4 ¢ 328,987,000%
TT)

(i) B AR - ERAREHR
2 HABE T (B 5239,545,0008 T (=&
—+ 4 1 153,477,00087T) :

iy RHRZZE-—NF+ZA=+—8"#
EERBERFDE(ZT—EF -
105,150,000/ 7T )

(iv)  EBAEEAEHS5,706,0008 7T (=%
—tF  BINEHREFER K

(v) AR FEMEFIER - ERAR
& HASK 2 48 IR T {E A 57,394,000 7T
(ZT—+4 : 62,940,000 T) °

W RZB-AFTZASt—B &
5 5 30,815,000 T (= — £ & :
53,835,000 7T) CERMETFE=FHER -

RZBE-NFR=ZFE—tF+=_A=+—
B FEEFTHUARBE -

AEBZEMERTIBARE—HEHE AR
ZIFERAR R - HAEEE - 115.60%
ZEMEHNE  WEAKEREE(ZT—+t
F DR —FIRFHEL35% K5.60% 2 F
& WEERBREE) -
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31. DEFERRED TAX 31. EERIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the BLERIBEEEMNEERFRZEEHHT :

year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities EEHREERE
Fair value
adjustments  Depreciation Fair value
arising from allowance  Revaluation  adjustments
acquisition in excess of  of financial
of of related  investment assets
subsidiaries depreciations properties at FVPL Total
ERERR
ELBWE UATE
WEAR SRz &/
ZAVE  FERER EfftRE HEZQVE
#E HAERE VES A )
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mzt TET TR THL TR THT
At 1 January 2017 R-ZE—+F—A—H 141,146 = 60,138 S 201,284
Disposal of a subsidiary Wi - E LA 35 (70,161) S = - (70,161)
Deferred tax FREABEN
credited to profit or BB
loss during the year (2,217) = (2,948) = (5,165)
Exchange differences EHEH 7,131 = 4,107 = 11,238
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
and 1 January 2018 +ZA=+—-Bk
—Z-\$-A-H 75,899 - 61,297 - 137,196
Deferred tax charged/ FRRERNIR/
(credited) to profit or (GtABH)H
loss during the year ETHA 10 (3,701) 571 19,248 1,129 17,247
Exchange differences EHER (3,405) (21) (3,540) (41) (7,007)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\F
+ZA=1+-H 68,793 550 77,005 1,088 147,436
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AR T

31. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
HK$223,424,000 (2017: HK$277,195,000) that will expire in one to
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
above items as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss making for some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can
be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect
of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2018, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s
subsidiaries and associates established in Mainland China. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries and associates will distribute such
earnings in the foreseeable future. There were no temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

31.
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IEAEBIE ()

7 5 [ 5 R B 9 i E A 223,424,000 T
(ZZT—+4F 1 277,195,000/ 7T) 2 HIBE
B E—ERFREERRERTEF

W FMIEE BREERIEEE - KA
AEBBEENRAEEIE BB ZWEB
AR BEARET AT B B AR B v A Ay 4
FRYE R B8 -

REBFELRAEHE  RANEIREE
BEIRN P BE AR 2 INE B EHRE
WI0%TEMBL - BERARED —TFT/N\F—
A—BBEY  WERAR-_FTTLF+=
A=+—BEMFEEZEFN - W EAH
HBINEREEB AL AR ZBEBRS
EERARREENH R - NEEH
BRALERI0% - At - AEBEARZE
PAFP B A 3 RS2 B B B 2 ‘Iﬁfjjﬂi
—A—RRELEZBNMDIKZ R
B

%:g—ﬂ¢+:ﬂi+—5’$$ﬁﬁ
A LA £R B A2 R B P b K ST B BB R A
ﬁ%“ TR TE TR R BE H 2 I HERR
BEFIBEE ARAESERA  WEW
BRAREERRNA RERDIRZS
BRHgETK - R_E—-NF+_A
=+—R  TERETEAHHERF
MREMELHRHERRELERIERE
WEREZR(ZE—tF: &) -
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32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. A&
Shares % 4
2018 2017
—E-NF —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Authorised: JEIE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares 10,000,000,000/%
of HK$0.2 each (2017: 10,000,000,000 FRMEE.2E LY
of HK$0.2 each) L@k (=T —+F -
10,000,000,000/%
BREE0.2ET) 2,000,000 2,000,000
2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Issued and fully paid: BETRAE
6,061,399,027 ordinary shares of 6,061,399,027 1%
HK$0.2 each (2017: 6,048,240,277 GREE02ET
of HK$0.2 each) (ZE—+4%F:
6,048,240,277 %
BREE0. 2B L) 2 Eimk 1,212,280 1,209,648
A summary of movements in the Company's share capital is as RRABRAZ ZBFEMT
follows:
Share
Number of Share premium
shares in issue capital account Total
BRfT
RA#E B RAEER @t
Notes ‘000 shares HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MisE TH FHEL TAL TAL
At 1 January 2017 R-Z—tF—A—A 6,172,892 1,234,578 1,805,149 3,039,727
Issue of consideration shares BIRERD (@) 16,060 3,212 6,263 9,475
Shares repurchased and cancelled EEEE L) (b) (140,712) (28,142) (43,656) (71,798)
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—+fF
1 January 2018 TZA=+-BR
“Z-\F—A—-H 6,048,240 1,209,648 1,767,756 2,977,404
Issue of consideration shares BIRERD (a) 13,159 2,632 2,632 5,264
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+ZA=1+—H 6,061,399 1,212,280 1,770,388 2,982,668
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Shares (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Issue of consideration shares

On 26 April 2018, the Company allotted and issued an aggregate of
13,158,750 new ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.4 per share
as the second instalment of the share consideration for the acquisition
of Beijing Spirit. The aggregate fair value of the 13,158,750 ordinary
shares, determined by reference to the closing quoted market price
of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange at the issuance date,
amounted to HK$5,264,000, of which HK$2,632,000 and HK$2,632,000
were credited to the share capital and share premium account of the

Company, respectively.

On 26 April 2017, the Company issued and allotted an aggregate of
13,158,750 new ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.59 per share
as the first instalment of the share consideration for the acquisition
of Beijing Spirit. The aggregate fair value of the 13,158,750 ordinary
shares, determined by reference to the closing quoted market price
of the Company's shares on the Stock Exchange at the issuance date,
amounted to HK$7,763,000, of which HK$2,632,000 and HK$5,131,000
were credited to the share capital and share premium account of the

Company, respectively.

On 28 April 2017, the Company issued and allotted an aggregate of
2,901,183 new ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.59 per share
as the second instalment of the share consideration for the acquisition
of Golden Sun. The aggregate fair value of the 2,901,183 ordinary
shares, determined by reference to the closing quoted market price
of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange at the issuance date,
amounted to HK$1,712,000, of which HK$580,000 and HK$1,132,000
were credited to the share capital and share premium account of the

Company, respectively.

Shares repurchased

The Company purchased 140,712,000, in aggregate, of its shares
on the Stock Exchange at a total consideration of HK$71,798,000, in
aggregate, which were cancelled during the year 2017.

32. BwA&(&)

g2 (&)
P& -
(@) BERERE

(b)
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RZZE—NFEEAZ+8 ' KARIZER
0.4/ 7T 2 B8R 8 R 31T A 513,158,750
RARFEBR - EAKBILREENRN
RIBZE B3R 2 13,158,750 LBk =
BNFEEL2ERRARDVEITABRE
B8 22 P T S 2 W T (B 1T & E ) /35,264,000
JC 0 E 2,632,000 7T 1 2,632,000 7T 5
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33.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES
Share option schemes

2002 Scheme

Effective from 26 April 2002, the Company operated a share
option scheme (the “2002 Scheme") for the purposes of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Eligible
participants of the 2002 Scheme included (i) any employee or
proposed employee (whether full time or part time, including
any executive director but not any non-executive director) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity")
in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest;
(ii) any non-executive director or proposed non-executive
director (including independent non-executive director) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; (iii)
any supplier or potential supplier of goods or services to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (iv) any customer
or potential customer of the Group or any Invested Entity; (v)
any person or entity that provides or will provide research,
development or other technological support to the Group or
any Invested Entity; (vi) any shareholder of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued or proposed to be issued by any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; and (vii) any adviser (professional or
otherwise) or consultant to any area of business or business
development of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; and (viii) any joint venture partner or business alliance
that co-operates with any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity in any area of business operation or development.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of the
options which may be granted under the 2002 Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Company to each participant
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company for the time being. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit was subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
respective associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director, or to any of their respective associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Company's shares as at the date of the grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, were subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.
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33. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES

(continued)

Share option schemes (continued)

2002 Scheme (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise period of
the share options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the
share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company's shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which
must be a trading day; (ii) the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer of the grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares.

The number and exercise price of the share options were
adjusted as a result of the rights issue completed on 10 August
2010.

The 2002 Scheme expired in April 2012. The provisions of the
2002 Scheme shall remain in full force and holders of all options
granted under it prior to such termination shall be entitled to
exercise the outstanding options pursuant to the terms of it until
expiry of the said options.

33.
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33. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES 33. IR AERNWHEESTE(E)

(continued)
Share option schemes (continued) BEIRAEETEI(E)
2002 Scheme (continued) TEFE —FAE(E)
The following share options were outstanding under the 2002 FR —EBEE-FHEBIAERTEZE
Scheme during the year: &MEN T -
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
hn#EFEg g5
TEE BREHE 7B EREE R
HK$ HKS$
per share ‘000 per share ‘000
BRERT T4 BRET T4
At 1 January n—HA—H 0.954 4,838 0.954 4,838
Lapsed during the year FE RN 0.954 (4,838) = =
At 31 December BWt+-—A=+—8 - - - 4,838

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options

outstanding as the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

2017

Number of options

Exercise price*

RERE R RITENBRENITEE
RATERT

—E—+F

Exercise period

BRI A TTEE* 1T
‘000 HK$ per share
T BRET
4,838 0.954 10 January 2010 — 9 January 2018

—F-FFE-AFAE
—ZE-N\F—ANA

*

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in

the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the

Company'’s share capital.

* FBRE 2 TR E AR R AR BATALAR ~ =
RABBAZ MR E BT AR -
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33. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES 33. RO A/ERNHETEH)
(continued)
Share option schemes (continued) BRERTE ()
2013 Scheme ZE—=FiE
On 24 May 2013, the Company adopted a new share option RZE—=FRA=-+TWEE ' KABER
scheme (the “2013 Scheme”) to replace the 2002 Scheme. FEREE([ = —=F58 HUER
Upon termination of the 2002 Scheme, no share options can BT _FiHE o c NI ETE-FEHE
be granted under such scheme and holders of all share options % - BET B ZAT B M ARRE - MR RZET
granted under it prior to its termination shall be entitled to BIRIERIREEBREZIEBEARRE
exercise the outstanding share options pursuant to the terms of RIEZ T EVMEFRATE B AR TTE A B A -
it until expiry of such options. BEEZEBRERRRL
The eligible participants and the terms of the 2013 Scheme are TE-—ZFFE A ER2HEE KGR E
the same as those of the 2002 Scheme. ZET - FHEIER -
The following share options were outstanding under the 2013 FR - ZE-=FFEBETHRITEZE
Scheme during the year: R
2018 2017
—E-N\F —+t%F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
hnFEF39 g5
TEE BREHE 7B EREE R
HK$ HKS$
per share ‘000 per share ‘000
BRERT T4 BRET T4
At 1 January Hn—H—H 0.57 353,000 0.57 353,000
Forfeited during the year ~ FFRR UL 0.58 (15,000) = =
At 31 December R+-—B=+—H 0.57 338,000 0.57 353,000
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33. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES

(continued)

Share option schemes (continued)

2013 Scheme (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options

outstanding as the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

33.

UR&GHERVmHETS(E)
B E (E)

— B — A=l H 45
ZEFT-FHE(E)

RBERRARITENBRAEZITEER
TN

2018 —E-N\F
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BRERE TEEME* TR
‘000 HKS$ per share
T4 BRER
166,500 0.61 note (a)
BizE(a)
171,500 0.53 note (b)
B &£ (b)
338,000
2017 —FtF

Number of options

Exercise price*

Exercise period

BAES A T 1T H
‘000 HK$ per share
T BRET
176,500 0.61 note (a)
M5t (a)
176,500 0.53 note (b)
Ft5E (b)
353,000
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33. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES

(continued)
Share option schemes (continued)
2013 Scheme (continued)

Notes:

(a) First 30% of the options granted are vested in one year from 2 April
2015, second 30% of the options granted will be vested in two years
from 2 April 2015 and the remaining 40% of the options granted will be
vested in three years from 2 April 2015. Upon the lapse of the vesting
period, the share options are exercisable until 1 April 2025.

(b) First 30% of the options granted will be vested in one year from 28
January 2016, second 30% of the options granted will be vested in
two years from 28 January 2016 and the remaining 40% of the options
granted will be vested in three years from 28 January 2016. Upon the
lapse of the vesting period, the share options are exercisable until 27
January 2026.

* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the

Company'’s share capital.

The Group recognised a share option expense of
HK$5,689,000 during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
HK$17,758,000).

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measure of the fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
338,000,000 share options outstanding. The exercise in full of
the outstanding share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 338,000,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$67,600,000 and share premium of HK$124,860,000
(before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 338,000,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 5.6% of the
Company'’s shares in issue as at that date.

As at 31 December 2018, the total number of shares available
for issue under the 2013 Scheme (save for those granted but not
yet exercised) is 438,390,000, representing approximately 7.2%
of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

BEIJING ENTERPRISES MEDICAL AND HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED 1t BEREEXEEER AR
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34. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 75 to 76
of the financial statements.

Equity-settled share-based payment reserve

The Company operates two share option schemes as part of the
benefits to its employees. The share-based payment reserve
comprises the fair value of share options which are yet to be
exercised granted which are unvested, as further explained in
the accounting policy for share-based payment transactions in
note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements. The amount
will be either transferred to the share premium account when
the related share options are exercised or be transferred to
retained earnings should the related options expire or related
options shares be forfeited.

Assets revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve arose from the change in use from
owner-occupied properties to investment properties carried at
fair value.

PRC statutory surplus reserve

Subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC are
required to make appropriations to a certain statutory surplus
reserve, namely the reserve funds, from their statutory profit
for the year after offsetting accumulated losses as determined
under the PRC accounting regulations from prior years and
before profit distribution to equity holders. The percentage to
be appropriated to such statutory reserve funds is determined
according to the relevant regulations in the PRC at 10% or
at the discretion of the boards of directors of the respective
companies.

34. f#E
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Financial Statements ® B &Rz Izt
Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZE— \F+_A=+—HILFE

35. HEMBLATR

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FET FHET
Net assets disposed of: BEHEZEEFE
Property, plant and equipment W R NERE 13 7,539 137,753
Prepaid land lease payment AR S 15 = 702,304
Property under development ERPYE 22 323,296 -
Goodwill RS 16 - 52,785
Investments in associates REERRZRE 60,630 -
Equity investments designated BERERATE
at FVOCI VAR A 20 T W
FIRR Z i & 2,273 -
Inventories T8 187 -
Cash and bank balances B NIRRT 2,127 3,765
Financial assets at FVPL FIBANFERER
HIBR z R R E E 4,170 -
Trade receivables FEUE Z R 110 -
Prepayments and other receivables TaRTRRTE B H W R IR 13,548 23,304
Trade payables ERE SRR (928) -
Other payables and accruals E b FER FRIE M BRI B A (130,632) (539,184)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTBIRITRER 36 (125,585) -
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE 31 - (70,161)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR 7,391 -
164,126 310,566
Exchange fluctuation reserve SN SR Bh (E A 2,084 30,595
Capital reserve B ARG 1,117 -
Recognition of non-controlling TR IEE A S
interests 1,147 -
168,474 341,161
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AT Z W 5 223,899 576,121
392,373 917,282
Satisfied by: A3 EL
Cash Re 308,208 917,282
Fair value of interests retained rEBEREERZ
by the Group NE 84,165 -
392,373 917,282
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in

35. HEMBAT (&)

BRAHENBLARZASRREEEYR

respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: ANFHEZAMT :
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Cash consideration ReERE 308,208 917,282
Cash and bank balances disposed of BEHEZR® RIRITEH (2,127) (3,765)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents BRALEWNBRARZES R
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries BEESEMRASRE 306,081 913,517
36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 36. ZGERERERME
OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (a) METHELENEESH
activities
Bank and
other loans
RITRHEMER
2018 2017
—2B-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 January mw—HA—H 243,044 182,835
Changes from financing cash flows MmEREREL 73,496 47,452
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMREAT (125,585) -
Effect of foreign exchange rate M SR S B R B R R
changes, net (3,807) 12,757
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H 187,148 243,044
4% ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 36. REREREBRMEE(H)
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Total taxes paid (b) BIRHIEAZE
The total taxes paid during the year were: FRENBIERE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Operating activities: RS
PRC profit tax paid BB ATER 5,299 2,221
Investing activities: REES :
PRC profit tax paid BB 98,179 69,198
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEREBRIEH - 2,361
98,179 71,559
37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 37. AREE
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not R|ERR - EFBRRRIEBBEOIA
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: BEWT :
2018 2017
—E-NEF —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Guarantees given to a bank in connection with Ft#% ¥ — 8 & A Rl AR TT
bank loan granted to an associate BRI mERTTIE B R 123,260 -
As at 31 December 2018, the banking loan guaranteed RZZE-N\FE+_HA=+—8 BAF%&E
by the Group to an associate was utilised to the extent of ERERE T —EBEARMNRITERLY
approximately HK$123,260,000 (2017: Nil). 123,260,000 (=B —+4 : &) -
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38.

39.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS 38. EEEM
Details of the Group's bank loans, which are secured by the REB ZRTERFB(RAEE EERE
assets of the Group, are included in note 30 to the consolidated R)BRER A B TSR FMIFE30 -
financial statements.
OPERATING LEASES ARRANGEMENTS 39. EKEHERH
(a) As lessor (a) EBHREA
The Group leases its investment properties (note AEBREBEKLEHEZHHBEER
14) under operating lease arrangements, with leases B (M 14)  SEENEBN
negotiated for terms ranging from one to twenty years. F—F T AF o FHAKK R
The terms of the leases generally also require the tenants EXMEPXNREE LFTAARIE
to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent ERTMATHEHESELAZE -
adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.
At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future RZE—NEFE+_-_A=+—H ' K
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable S ERIR M E P RTS8 T AT R
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows: KEMER TP HE 2 B8 R R &
REERKFIEATMNT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Within one year —F K 22,556 17,772
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE_EZFERF(BEEEMSF) 91,398 50,279
After five years % 105,638 124,955
219,592 193,006
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39. OPERATING LEASES ARRANGEMENTS 39.

(continued)

(b) As lessee
The Group leases certain of its office properties and staff
quarters under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to three years.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

RERERHE)

(b) fEREMEA
AEERBEEHEERHHEAET
WMAEMERBIBS  KHEHHE
HNF—==%F-

R-ZF-NF+ZA=t—B" &
SERBETARBELEHEER T
RO RRZEEENHAR

(AN
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —F K 5,431 4,808
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE_EZFERF(BEEEMSF) 1,139 924
6,570 5,732

40. COMMITMENTS 40. &I

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note
39(b) above, the Group had the following capital commitments
at the end of the reporting period:

B £ XM EE39(b) Rl MY R B TR E AR -
REBERRERROEARALELNT

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —FtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FET
Contracted, but not provided for: EHEEES -
Land and buildings iy R AEF 63,266 425,685
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the
Group had the following transactions with
related parties during the year:

41.

BELTXRS

(a) BRZEEUBHRAGEHFLZ
REHN AEERFREBER
EITUTRS

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ks FET FHET
Interest income from a director KE—RESZFBWA (i) 3,140 5,304
Interest income from a company  REARR A —& AIERIRER
which a director of the Company &&= 2 F| 8 U A
is a controlling shareholder - 687
Interest income from a company HE—EHAAARESR
which is jointly controlled by the ~ HEEHIF AT Z
directors of the Company FE U A (i1) 8,166 3,868
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) (continued)

(i)

(i)

On 28 October 2016, the Group entered into a loan
facility agreement with Mr. Wang Zheng Chun, a
director of the Company, pursuant to which, the
Group provided a loan of HK$135,000,000 for a
term of twelve months, bearing interest at 4.5%
per annum. A handling fee of HK$1,200,000 was
charged and deducted upon the first drawing of
the loan facility. On 30 June 2017 and 1 November
2017, HK$20,950,000 and HK$52,050,000 of the loan
facility, respectively were received and HK$5,725,000
of the related interest receivable was received. The
Group provided a loan extension of the remaining
principal of HK$62,000,000 for a term of twelve
months, bearing interest at 6.0% per annum. The
remaining principal of HK$62,000,000 and the
relevant interest receivable of HK$591,000 as at
31 December 2017 were collected during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

On 17 July 2017, the Group entered into a loan
facility agreement with Jinfu N.A. Real Estate
Investment Limited (“Jinfu N.A."), a company partly
invested by Mr. Zhu Shi Xing, Mr. Gu Shan Chao
and Mr. Liu Xue Heng, the executive directors of the
Company, pursuant to which, the Group provided
to Jinfu N.A. a loan of CAD13,400,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$84,019,000), which is due on
20 July 2020 bearing interest at 10% per annum.
On 20 July 2017, the Group entered into a loan
facility supplementary agreement with Jinfu N.A.
and its subsidiary, 1121695 B.C. Ltd., pursuant to
which, the borrower of the loan was changed from
Jinfu N.A. to 1121695 B.C. Ltd. During the year, the
Group earned interest income of CAD1,359,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$8,166,000) on the
loan to 1121695 B.C. Ltd. The remaining principal of
HK$77,049,000 and the relevant interest receivable
of HK$11,386,000 as at 31 December 2018 were
guaranteed by Mr. Yu Lu Ning, a third party, Mr. Zhu
Shi Xing, Mr. Gu Shan Chao and Mr. Liu Xue Heng.

41. BELXRZ (&)

(a) (%)
0

(ii)
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Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 41. BEFXR S ()
(b) Outstanding balances with related parties: (b) MREBEMRES &R

(i)  The Group had an outstanding balance due () RAARFEHKR NEERES—
to a related company of HK$28,998,000 (2017: MEEARIM M REEEHB
HK$36,558,000) as at the end of the reporting 28,998,000/ L (=& — 4 :
period. This balance is unsecured, interest-free and 36,558,000/8 7T ) ° 4k AEIER
has no fixed terms of repayment. B RERETEENE -

(i)  Details of the Group's loan due from a related party (i) AEEEKREZEHFERNFB
are included in note 41(a) (ii) to the consolidated BNR A B IR R4 (a)i) ©
financial statements.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of (c) AEEZEEEASHE

the Group:

In the opinion of the directors, the directors and the EERE ARFESFKEF2MTHR

chief executive of the Company represented the key AEBHAEEXTEERAE - HH

management personnel of the Group. Further details EERFETHAEMe2E—F

of directors’ and the chief executive’'s emoluments HIBEHN R A VIS HRMARMIFES o

are included in note 8 to the consolidated financial

statements.

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42, REHE S 2EMITHE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RARERR  SfEpem T AZERE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: T
2018 —E-N\F
Financial assets SREE
Financial
assets at Equity Financial
FVPL- investments assets at
held for  designated amortised
trading at FVOCI cost Total

UAYE HtzEWs
SRz NA¥E BEHERA

CRMEE- 1) HE-1:0kA:
BEEE ERRE BE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERx FTiER THER THET
Equity investments at FVOCI EBEM T E RS
ARFEFIER 2
BaiRE - 225,494 - 225,494
Trade receivables FEWE HERR - - 37,565 37,565
Financial assets included in AR - HthEl
prepayments, other receivables ~ FIBNEMEEZ
and other assets THEE - - 296,878 296,878
Financial assets at FVPL FBRERANTETERZ
SREE 65,308 - - 65,308
Due from related parties FEUEEE A A - - 88,435 88,435
Restricted bank balances ZRERITIFER - - 11,755 11,755
Cash and cash equivalents BeRHRLZMEY = = 764,118 764,118
65,308 225,494 1,198,751 1,489,553
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42. Z¥RE s 2EM T AE)
(continued)
2018 (continued) —E-NFE(#)
Financial liabilities =R
Financial
liabilities at
FVPL
designated Financial
at such liabilities at
upon initial amortised
recognition cost Total
DNFESRZ
cRAE
RER g 5
BAR  REFHEN
RIETE cREE HEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTERT FER
Trade payables ERE SRR - 19,338 19,338
Financial liabilities included in other SAEMENAZER
payables and accruals EAERZsREE 4,053 116,048 120,101
Due to a related party EN—ZBERFIAE = 28,998 28,998
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t B 8R17 & E M - 187,148 187,148
4,053 351,532 355,585

BEIJING ENTERPRISES MEDICAL AND HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED 1t BEREEXEEER AR
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42. Z¥RE s 2EM T AE)
(continued)
2017 —E s
Financial assets TREE
Available-
Financial for-sale
assets Loans and financial
at FVPL receivables assets Total
ERBEE
AATE
SR BEHR AHREs
TREE FEURBR X THEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT FTAT TAT FTAT
Available-for-sale investments AERERE = = 46,151 46,151
Trade receivables U E 5 R - 28,325 - 28,325
Financial assets included in SAFEMFE - HibEWFER
prepayments, other receivables —~ HEEZ SREE
and other assets - 766,863 - 766,863
Financial assets at FVPL BRBRNATFENRZ
SREE 104,607 - - 104,607
Due from related parties [ BEiE 7R - 149,832 - 149,832
Cash and cash equivalents BeRHRLZEY = 471,436 = 471,436
104,607 1,416,456 46,151 1,567,214
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42. BERE s 2T A(H)
(continued)
2017 (continued) —T—tE(H)
Financial liabilities TRBE
Financial
liabilities
at FVPL
designated Financial
as such liabilities at
upon initial amortised
recognition cost Total
FEIBEER
REEIEZ
eRAaBR RgH
MNEHERE KA E 2
RILIEE =K fet
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT THET
Trade payables B NS = 16,878 16,878
Financial liabilities included in other FTAEMENFEREFTER
payables and accruals SREE 11,950 106,280 118,230
Due to a related party R — % EE T 5B - 36,558 36,558
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings & 8817 R b5 - 243,044 243,044
11,950 402,760 414,710
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial

instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that

43. EMIEAZ A ERATFEER

AEENEHTIA(MBEZERAERR
FEAEMREE) ZEEERAHENIRA

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: T
Carrying amounts Fair values
IRTEE NFE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—EB-N\F ZT—tF =ZB-N\F T+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FET
Financial assets TRMEE
Equity investments designated 387 A& BEMEEK
at FVOCI AR AR 2 1
=EE 225,494 - 225,494 -
Financial assets at FVPL BRBETARFEYER
ZEpEE 65,308 104,607 65,308 104,607
290,802 104,607 290,802 104,607
Financial liabilities TRtBE
Consideration payables included &t A Eth g {< 218 K fig
in other payables and accruals T EBZENRE 4,053 11,950 4,053 11,950
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank balances, trade receivables,
amounts due from/to related parties, trade payables, financial
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets, interest bearing-bank and other borrowings and financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals approximate
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the chief
financial officer and the audit committee. At each reporting
date, the finance department analyses the movements in
the values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation process
and results are discussed with the audit committee twice a year
for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than
in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

BEIJING ENTERPRISES MEDICAL AND HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED 1t BEREEXEEER AR

43. eMI A2 AT ERAFEER

(%)

ERECHMRASRRSEEY IR
RITER - REEZRN - BN
BITHIE - BRNESERR - FFARMK
B HRERFBELREMEENSRE
E R EIRIT REME ARG AL ME
NREREFEANERAENAFER
HEmERS  TZERAZZEFIANE
HISFHARE -

AEBRPBRERENUBHERETE
ERMTARAFEFENHENIEF - BB
RIEEERAMNGRERERTE WS -
RERSEH  BBMOTERTAEE
BHVEEHEMRERBARE - 58
M BREEZREYL - FERTFRER
BFEEZZBENWMA - fPHRF
EHBREZA -

BpoassREEN  EREERAEBR
RFHERBBEBIIOT CHETRAERS
PR TAZARBERE - LTIHERRR
ERREEAFE
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43.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair value of a listed equity investment is based on quoted
market prices. The fair values of the fund investments are
based on value quoted by the relevant institutions. The fair
value of a derivative instrument is estimated using the Black-
Scholes model with the underlying equity interest value
determined under the income approach. The fair value of
an unlisted equity investment designated at FVOCI is based
on the external transaction in the investee's equity, such as
a fresh issue of equity. The fair value of the other unlisted
equity investment designated at FVOCI, which was previously
classified as available-for-sale equity investments, have
been estimated using a market-based valuation technique
based on assumptions that are not supported by observable
market prices or rates. The valuation requires the directors
to determine comparable public companies (peers) based
on industry, size, leverage and strategy, and calculates an
appropriate price multiple, such as the price to book value ("P/
B"”) multiple, for each comparable company identified. The
multiple is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the
comparable company by an asset measure. The P/B multiple
is then discounted for considerations such as illiquidity and
size differences between the comparable companies based on
company-specific facts and circumstances. The directors believe
that the estimated fair values resulting from the valuation
technique, which are recorded in financial position, and the
related changes in fair values, which are recorded in other
comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that they were the
most appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

For the fair value of the unlisted equity investments at FVOCI,
which were previously classified as available-for-sale equity
investments, management has estimated the potential effect
of using reasonably possible alternatives as inputs to the
valuation model and has quantified this as a reduction in fair
value of approximately HK$4,476,000, using less favourable
assumptions, and an increase in fair value of approximately
HK$4,476,000, using more favourable assumptions.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent
wealth management products issued by banks in Mainland
China. The Group has estimated the fair value of these unlisted
investments by using a quoted price.

43.

(%;E%IEZ’&SFE&’D\SFEJE&
trERENQAFERMABEMETHE -
ESRENAFERBEBKEMREE
B TAETANRATFEEARALETZ
Bz —sFRET Mg EE R ERAERED
EEREEEETET BERBEBEM
EHREARFEIRZIFLTRERE
M A FEREERET 2 g 2N S5
H(HBTZBAE) - HE/BBHEMLE
U E AR AR 2 B 3F E s %
ENATEBEDBERIHEENERIR
B)DERMSEERDYENY AT
BEMSERILEIFNRRMET - &
MEEZREERETE  RAE  BRE
REBEABLRARAR(RE) - A&
HEREHEMNAELBRARZABERE
g(PlmmRER(TmREDES) - GRfE
BRI ELBRARNEREEBRAEE
EiEATE - MREEHERREARTAR
MEERBERARAELRRRZEHER
BUEMAREREEBRAERMR - EFH
5 REDEFHB G A FERBHR
AAR) RAFENEBES(REMCEE
Wah AR)BAIE - YRARERRKNE
EHfHME o

MEBEMEEMKEARFENNEZIEL
MESEECRE I EAHEEEER
Bz ATEMS  ERED A FRAE
ATERAREAGEEAZB AR
BEZE VEFARBRIBZTES
L BN FER 44,476,000 7T MAE
EBFZRAUZE( AR FELEINL4,476,0007%
7T|: °

REBIRERIELTIRE - B E AR

TTRITNEMER - ARBECDEABE N
BEt S LHRENDFE -
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 43. ERMIBEZAFERATFEER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (&)
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the NTTAEAR-_E—NEER-_Z—+F+—-A8
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative —t+— B2 TEAEMENE AT ER
sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2018 and 2017: BMABENTEERRESNT :
Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair value
technique unobservable input Range to the input
fHE R EXFAEEGAE BE AFEHEBABZHRE
Unlisted equity Valuation Average P/B 2018: 1.1907 5% (2017: Nil) increase/decrease
investments multiples multiple of peers to 1.3160 in multiple would result in
(2017: Unlisted (2017: Nil) increase/decrease in fair value
available-for-sale by 3,553,000 (2017: Nil)
equity investments
EEmEREE HEREE CES: RS —E-N\F B TBE5%
(ZZ—+F: MR A 1.1907%1.3160 (ZZ—t5F - J\)HEH
FETAHEE (ZZ—+%F - 8) RFEEM %I 3,553,0007T
ERiRE) (ZE2—tF: &)

Discount for lack 2018: 22% to 24% 1% (2017: Nil) increase/decrease
of marketability (2017: Nil) in discount would result in
decrease/increase in fair
value by 923,000 (2017: Nil)

RS RBIENE —T—/\F: P& TRE1%
22%ZE24% ZE—LF  E)EH
(ZZ—+F &) DFERDHN923,0007T
ZZE—LF )
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 43. ERMIBEZAFERATFEER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (&)

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts BRemERBEITREAEEMETE TS
of premiums and discounts determined by the Group that 2MENERETEBREEE 2 GENT
market participants would take into account when pricing the EOHEE -

investments.

Fair value hierarchy ANEEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRHAALAGSEZEBMI A Z AT ER
hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments: BER:

Assets measured at fair value: URAFEFEZEE:

As at 31 December 2018 R-ZZB-NE+=A=+—8H

Fair value measurement using
FRUTEABEZAFEFE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SRR IS EATEHEE EXRTUHEE
HwE BWAE WAE
(B—%&) (=) (B=#) Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET FET FET
Equity investments EEASBHEMERE
designated at FVOCI WA A TFE
PRz IR E 68,459 - 157,035 225,494
Financial assets at FVPL FHBBEUATE
Rz RLE E - - 65,308 65,308
68,459 - 222,343 290,802

%% ANNUAL REPORT 2018 213



Notes to Financial Statements ® B &Rz Izt
Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZE— \F+_A=+—HILFE

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 43. ERMIBEZAFERATFEER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) PFEEEBR(E)
As at 31 December 2017 R_E—+&+-_A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ERATEAEZ X FEE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
VR T 5 ERABR EEXRTAEE
& EPNIE] BAE
(B—#) (=) (B=#&) #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
Financial assets at FVPL BimBE AR AR
ZEmEE 71,760 - 32,847 104,607
The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 RER » FZMAFEAENESHAOT -
during the year are as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Equity investments at FVOCI/ FiRHM 2 E AR TES]
available-for-sale investments — unlisted: R ESIE AR HER
E—3F Lt
At 1 January w—HA—H 46,151 11,295
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 KNEBEMBREERFEIR 2
wa (38,025) -
At 1 January (restated) R—RA—R(KE5]) 8,126 11,295
Purchases BE 174,693 33,385
Losses recognised in other REMPEERRER
comprehensive income E51E (23,128) -
Exchange realignment FE o %R (2,656) 1,471
At 31 December R+t-—A=+—H 157,035 46,151
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 43. eMI A2 AT ERAFEER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (&)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) PFEEBR(E)
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Equity investments at FVPL/ FEiREEUATEIEREZ
available-for-sale investments — unlisted: BHERE /MHEERE
—3EET :
At 1 January ®—HA—H 104,607 134,687
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 BRANE B R 5 4R
B B (33,735) -
At 1 January (restated) R—A—H&EE5)) 70,872 134,687
Purchases BE 2,259 109,992
(Losses)/gains recognised in other income REAMWEERT ABZZ
included in profit or loss (&), W (2,453) 1,169
Disposals HE (3,391) (142,283)
Exchange realignment BE W T (1,749) 1,042
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 65,538 104,607
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 43.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2018

TMIAZAFERAFEER
(%)

D EER(E)

BRFE B A -

R=ZB-NF+=ZA=+—H

Fair value measurement using
ERUTHABEZAFEE
Quoted

prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
JERB™ IS BEAUTHE BEAFTUEE
WwE BWAE BWAE
(%) (B=#) (B=4) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHExT FHERT FHERT
Financial liabilities included &t A E fih & {~ 5X 18 [ fE
in other payables and ArERzemAaE
accruals - - 4,053 4,053
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: ERBERFENEE
As at 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F+-HA=+—H
Fair value measurement using
FRAUTRABAATERFE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
JE T 5 BERAAEBE ERTABE
WA LNz EPNE]
(B—#) (=4%) (BE=%) #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHT
Financial liabilities AT AL At FE A SR8 K B
included in other ArERzEmAaE
payables and accruals - - 11,950 11,950
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44. B EREB2BERBEE

AND POLICIES

The financial assets of the Group mainly include cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, available-for-sale investments,
financial assets at FVPL, equity investments designated at
FVOCI, restricted bank balances, amounts due from related
parties and deposits and other receivables, which arise directly
from its operations. Financial liabilities of the Group mainly
include other payables and accruals, an amount due to a related
party and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank
borrowings with floating interest rates.

At present, the Group does not intend to hedge its exposure
to interest rate fluctuations. However, the Group will constantly
review the economic situation and its interest rate risk profile,
and will consider appropriate hedging measures in future as
may be necessary.

With all other variables held constant, a change in interest rates
of 50 basis points per annum would cause a responding change
in the Group's profit before tax by approximately HK$422,000
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$476,000).

Foreign currency risk
The Group's businesses are located in the PRC and most of the
transactions are conducted in RMB.

The Group's exposure to foreign exchange risks was primarily
related to bank balances, amounts due from related parties
and other receivables denominated in RMB, US$ and CAD.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. It manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring
the movements in the foreign currency rates.

AEESRAETEREERBREEMN
BzRekREEFEY  BREZERF
AHEERE - BBBRAUAFEINERZ
TREE  KEEREBEMEEKENR
FEIRZESRE  XRHIRITER
FE W R i 07 SRIR A R AR & B H i FE MR
B AEEBFABEIEEEEMENK
EREHER - BN —RBED AR
At BERIT REAM AR o

AEEMBETAZEIEZRABRANERR -
SNERM - FERBRRABESER - #
FEMAUHEERLERBZEE &
BT -

T 71 iz
AEEmHFERARNK BTN RFAE
ZEt BIRITIE AR 2 S M R 2 E R L -

- AREREE —EBERKEBRLER
KEBMR - BENERE - 8 FERI
BEZEPEE

REMEERIFIENBERT - FIRGF
HIRS0EB 2 E#HFERAEEB 2R
EFREBE—S—N\F+=-_A=+—8
IFEEHIRA422,0008 (- F—+ 4 :
476,000/ 7T ) 2 HEFEEE) -

S it
AEENEBERBEAABIRH A
RESET -

REBATAZWINERBREZRBRAA
RE - XTRNTHEENRITES - BIK
R 7 5R0A S B A FE WROR » AN B B Al
WRMINEE R - HBBEVNERINE
MR FHEIRHIMNERR o
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Notes to Financial Statements ® B &Rz Izt
Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZE— \F+_A=+—HILFE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44,

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in
the RMB, US$ and CAD exchange rates (against HK$) on the
Group's profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of

monetary assets).

MHREREEBERBEKE)

S iz (48
TRINERAHERRARE 2RV BE
FMERARYE - ETRMTEX(GLET)
ERESBEANREREEZ A EZESMN
AR C BB GURE -

Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
in RMB in CAD in US$ in profit
rate rate rate before tax
ARBER mEE EnER BRE AT R
ER/(FE) E#/(TH%) LR/ (T #m/ ()
% % % HK$'000
TET
2018 —E-N\F
If the HK$ weakens against the RMB  fi/& 7 AR B E N/A N/A
5 TEA TERA 67
If the HK$ strengthens against HWETHAREHE N/A N/A
the RMB (S) TiE A i A (67)
If the HK$ weakens against the CAD fi#/& T %, itz (& N/A N/A
TEA 5 TERA 5,718
If the HK$ strengthens against A T T HE N/A N/A
the CAD TEA (5) i A (5,718)
If the HK$ weakens against the US$  f/&c &tz B N/A N/A
TEA TEA 5 94
If the HK$ strengthens against WAL ETLHE N/A N/A
the US$ TEA TiE A (5) (94)
2017 —E—tF
If the HK$ weakens against the RMB i/ A RE I E N/A N/A
5 TER TEH 84
If the HK$ strengthens against AT ARBEHE N/A N/A
the RMB (5) TiEA TEA (84)
If the HK$ weakens against the CAD  {i§i& 7t L2 E N/A N/A
TNERA 5 N 5,340
If the HK$ strengthens against AT R T HE N/A N/A
the CAD TE M () TEA (5,340)
If the HK$ weakens against the US$ Bt L& LiE N/A N/A
TE A TEA 5 110
If the HK$ strengthens against AT R ETLHE N/A N/A
the US$ TE A TEA (5) (110)
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf &z it

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44. BBEREREEZBRRBEKE)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk EEmE
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third rEEEEREMBERRTEEZE=
parties. It is the Group's policy that receivable balances are IR  EANEBZEHET @ EWFHIE
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to R TIIRIE B EERER . MAREBFTAS
bad debts is not significant. ZERRRITERX o
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 R-ZE-NE+ZA=+—HHES
December 2018 B B R F KPR
The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum TREIIBBEAEEEERRLT FEERN
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, BEE R (RIEEMERBAMNBBZRA
which is mainly based on past due information unless other BN S EENEEEERESE
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year- BMANFREERDIE  FT2EWMNESELESD
end staging classification as at 31 December 2018. The amounts MEEMNBEAELVEERENINEE
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets and e M
the exposure to credit risk for the financial guarantee contracts.
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 A FEHE
5 2HRHBEEER
Simplified

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  approach

E—MER EZRR EZRR Sk b7

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT TERT FHET TERT TERT

Trade receivables* FEWE 5 IR 2 - - - 37,565 37,565
Financial assets included STAFENFIE - HibEW

in prepayments, other REREMEEZ

receivables and other SRVEE

assets

— Normal** A 252,056 - - - 252,056

- Doubtful** - TR - - 44,822 - 44,822
Due from related parties FEU #8338 A XA 88,435 = = = 88,435
Restricted bank balances R HIRITIFER

- Not yet past due — HkEE] 11,755 = = = 11,755
Cash and cash equivalent HeLBEELEEY

- Not yet past due — Ak EE] 764,118 = = = 764,118

1,116,364 - 44,822 37,565 1,198,751
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Notes to Financial Statements ® B &Rz Izt

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31
December 2018 (continued)

*

approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is

disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements.

*%

other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is

considered to be “doubtful”.

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,
available-for-sale investments, financial assets at FVPL, amounts
due from related parties and other receivables, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to

the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
of both its financial instruments and financial assets and

projected cash flows from operations.

The maturity profile of the Group’s as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as

follows:

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,

44. VREREEZBEERBEK(E)

R-F-NF+ZA=+—HHWRE

2R F AR BB (4R

* RS RAETAR A  ERE 5
BRAME - EAREER AR RE
M 23R -

= fERTATENROR - B ERGRIR R At E E
MERMEETEARARTEEHERERE
ENEERREVIREREAELA - KE
EEZRBERIER] - BRI SREEN
EEERBWER [f75E] -

R-FB—tF+ZA=1+—HHRS
= B
rEBHEpEREE(ERRASRESEE
Y BREZERNR THEERE BB
BHENAATEIIRZEREE  RUKME
77 RIE R A IR R E E R TR B
HFTWEY  BEARREREHETIAN
fRmfE -

mEBELEE
AEEBBEAKLTEUERDESRITA
ERESRRNAR  FREIAZEHES
BTAREHMEENZIMA  REEMSE
MRS RE

AEERARSHRRIBECITHORBRRS
KT EROEHRERAT

2018
= S
On demand

or within 1to5
1 year years Total
RERA—FR —ZRE #st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FHET FTHERT THERT

Interest-bearing bank and other FPERITREMMBER

borrowings 76,705 120,750 197,455
Trade payables ERE S RN 19,338 = 19,338
Other payables H e RIE 118,709 2,694 121,403
214,752 123,444 338,196
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Notes to Financial Statements ® Bf &z it

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

44,

MEEREE B ERBEKE)
TEELmEE (E)

45.

2017
“T—+fF
On demand

or within 1to5 Over
1 year years 5 years Total
RERHK—FN —ERF BT Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET T FET

Interest-bearing bank and  FHBIR1T R E A E
other borrowings 91,052 133,613 50,303 274,968
Trade payables FENE BRI 16,878 - - 16,878
Other payables L e SRR 108,690 9,540 = 118,230
216,620 143,153 50,303 410,076
Capital management BXREHE

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform
to current year's presentation.

45.

AEEETEAEENTIEERRRER
SEEAFELERRIFRBRERLEIA
XFHEEBERESRREBERKAL -

AEBERBEEARNES RAABEEDN
RERHHEEEERNRBLHEIEL A
B RURSGIEERRE  AEE4
AERMBERRMORE  MERREEER
HEITHRD - AEBBAXEMIIHE
RERBR - RBEE-_ZFT-NF+_-A
=t—BRZZE—tF+-A=t+—HIL
FE - EANEEMNBR  BERIEFHE
AT -

LERE

ETHRESHDCEF IR  UNAEXFE
MEHNTTH -
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Notes to Financial Statements ® B &Rz Izt
Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZE— \F+_A=+—HILFE

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

46. KA T Z MR T

RARESHRBEBARRBMBIRAERZE

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

SN

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENK 315 832
Investment in an associate R—EBERR 2 ®E 362,330 379,649
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZHE 5,143 5,143
Equity investments designated at FVOCI BEEMEER AR TFE
SRR I E 157,096 -
Total non-current assets IEREEERE 524,884 385,624
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Due from subsidiaries iy = VNCIE S 1,883,478 2,019,294
Due from related parties FE s B8 T A 88,435 87,241
Prepayments and other receivables TaRTRRIE R H e U R I 1,242 1,132
Financial assets at FVPL BREBEAANTETRZ 28
BE 26,763 104,607
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFEY 7,102 55,742
Total current assets BB EAE 2,007,020 2,268,016
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAEE
Other payables and accruals H fth BT 5018 KR FEEH B F 5,386 3,979
Total current liabilities mENBERRE 5,386 3,979
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 2,001,634 2,264,037
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #AZERABAER 2,526,518 2,649,661
Net assets BEFE 2,526,518 2,649,661
EQUITY e
Share capital P& 7N 1,212,280 1,209,648
Reserves (note) R (M aE) 1,314,238 1,440,013
Total equity BIE LS 2,526,518 2,649,661

BEIJING ENTERPRISES MEDICAL AND HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED 1t BEREEXEEER AR
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Ve i ‘
Notes to Financial Statements ® BA73RR M5 3 & ?

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 46. AR Tz MR RE (E)
COMPANY (continued)

Note: MizE -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RNABZREEHERT -
Equity-
Share settled Exchange
premium Merger  payment Capital  fluctuation  Fair value Accumulated
account  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve reserve losses Total
R U Bx EARE AYE it .
BER i NERE 1] fi# &3t
HKS'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000
TEL Thn TR TEL Thn TEn T TEn
Balance at 1 January 2017 R-5—tE-A-BzEH 1,805,149 200) 81,876 - - - (484,563 1,402,262
Profit for the year ERgH - - - - - - 53,792 53,792
Other comprehensive loss for the year: ~ EMEM2FER
Share of ather comprehensive loss He-FEEREZ
of an associate L2 EER - - - - 739) - - 739)
Total comprehensive gain/{loss) EERmbG/(5R)EE
for the year - - - - (739) - 53,792 53,057
Issue of consideration shares ¥IRERR 6,263 - - - - - - 6,203
Equity-settled share-based payment REEENRD BER TS
arrangements - - 17,758 - - - - 17,758
Share of reserves of an associate AMe—HRELAGE - - - 439 - - - 439
Share repurchased kir%E (43,656) - - - - - - (4365¢)
At 31 December 2017 N
“A=T-H 1,767,756 (200 99,634 4329 (735 - @30771) 1,440,013
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 15, FaEAERSEY
net of tax 2155078  MRRA - - - - - - 790) (790)
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 SRERYHREEY
X A - - - 545 - 5197 (52512 -
Restated balance at 1 January 2018 R-E-\E-A-BZ
e 1,761,756 (200 99,634 4874 (739) 51,967 (484.073) (1,439,223
Loss for the year EEERE - - - - - - (10429 (120425)
Other comprehensive loss for the year: ~ EREM2EFE :
Share of other comprehensive loss AM-BBELAL
of an associate HprmEE - - - - (1,951) - - (1,551)
Fair value loss on equity investments HEREREMIENAN
designated at FVOC DTSR, BRRE
JALEEE - - - - - (14,664) - (14,664)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ ZE2AFELEE - - - - (1,551) (1466d) (120425 (136,640)
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options TFEREEZTHA 2632 - - - - - - 263
Equity-settled share-based payment REEE R BERNZ TS
arrangements - - 5,689 - - - - 5,689
Transfer of share option resenve upon REREE R REER
the expiry/forfeiture of share options BRERE - - (7,106) - - - 7106 -
Share of reserves of an associate AMe-ERELARE - - - 334 - - - 333
At 3 Decemoer 208 ROE-NERSATH-A U0 @0 WA 8N QA W I 13128
47. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47. PBHR 2B E
The financial statements were approved and authorised for FHEREEN-F-NAF=A=+NABE
issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2019. EFEeEREETIE -
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Particulars of Properties

MEFHTE

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —ZT— \F+_A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BREW=

Percentage
of interest
attributable to

Location Use Tenure the Group

vE A HH TEBELEEEESL

No. 2, Zheng Fu Jie West Road, Office and retail Long term lease 70%
Changping District, Beijing, China

LR B TR BUN AT 78 B 257 MRAERTE REEAL

No. 2518 and No. 2538 Dongchuan Road, Retail and Medium term 100%
Minhang District, Shanghai, China car parking spaces lease

B A RITTIE R 11 B8 251855 K 2538%% TEREEN A4

No. 2-16, Lane 480 Ruili Road, Minhang Retail Medium term 100%
District, Shanghai, China lease

FE L BRTEREKIS0E2E 165 ZTE T HEIRR A

PROPERTIY UNDER DEVELOPMENT

BEPUR

Gross
Site floor Expected Attributable
area area Stage of completion interest of
Location Use (sq.m.) (sq.m.) completion date the Group
WEER BEEE Bt r%E
B A (FFK) (FHK) BIKR %I EH FEfh R
Center District Haidong, Commercial 275,000 N/A  Property N/A* 100%
Dali, China under
development
FRAETERF O R I% NER EERPYE  TER*

in March 2019 the temporary suspension of the development and construction
in Haidong New District for the purpose of protecting the ecological
environment of Erhai Lake in Dali City. As the properties under development
were located in Haidong New District of Dali City, the completion date

was subject to uncertainty. Up to the date of this report, the Group has not

The board of directors awared that Yunnan provincial government announced

received any formal notice from the competent authorities.

* BERREE  RRENSESERRE  ZHEAR
FR-ZZE-NF=ZAEMRERELERFTEMER
R ARAEBEZ REDMEEMERAETER
i@ o MERT ARELREN  BEAREAH
AR AR B EEARE T ERBENEBA

BEIJING ENTERPRISES MEDICAL AND HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED 1t BEREEXEEER AR
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